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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Concord New Energy
Group Limited, | present to you the report on the results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group generated a revenue of
RMB2,679 million, representing an increase of 22.0% over the
same period last year, and achieved a profit of RMB872 million,
representing an increase of 10.7% over the same period last
year. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s net assets amounted
to RMB8,095 million and its liability-to-asset ratio was 70.2%.

The New Industrial Landscape

In 2022, the worldwide energy crisis has reshaped the global
energy landscape. To mitigate to climate change and to ensure
energy security, countries around the world continued to
increase their investments in renewable energy. According to the
International Energy Agency (IEA), global renewable energy will
increase by 2,400GW over the next five years, equivalent to the
total amount added in the past 20 years, and China is expected
to account for half of this addition globally. Renewable energy
is undoubtedly experiencing a historic period of development

opportunities.
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In 2022, China’s newly installed capacity of wind power and
photovoltaic exceeded 120GW, reaching a new record high. The
Chinese government has set a target of reaching a total installed
capacity of over 1,200GW of wind and solar power by 2030, the
newly added capacity of which will continue to lead the world.
The Chinese government is vigorously promoting new energy
into a new era of high-quality development, by placing greater
emphasis on technological innovation as the main driver of this
progress, adhering to the general direction of market-oriented
reform, accelerating the construction of a nationwide unified
electricity market system, and putting emphasis on creating a
new era of international cooperation to promote the integrated
development of the global clean energy industry chain, supply
chain and value chain.

Business Highlights

In 2022, all staff of the Group continued to strive and compete
to achieve good results. The Group’s key operating indicators,
including net profit, net assets, return on net assets, attributable
power generation and newly added capacity, all demonstrated
growth as compared with last year.

The Group made new breakthroughs in project development
through proactive planning, obtaining new annual wind power
development and construction permits of 1,355MW and
national approval of 4,000MW. The pace of project construction
was accelerated, with a capacity of 1,982MW of under-
construction and 1,111TMW newly added capacity, both hit
record high in the Group’s history. We strengthened operational
management, continued the disposal of power plants with green
electricity subsidies, and achieved the increase of attributable
installed capacity to 3,588MW while optimising the quality
of the existing assets. The Group’s levelized cost of electricity
continued to decline, achieving impressive results in both green
power trading and green certificate sales. These operating
results have enhanced the Group’s core competitiveness and laid
a solid foundation for its rapid and sustainable development.
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With innovation ingrained in its DNA, the Group has been
actively nurturing the future-oriented technology and
management advantages of its intelligent O&M segment and
maintaining its rapid growth in O&M capacity.

In 2022, the Group received an A rating from Morgan Stanley’s
MSCI ESG Rating for its environmental protection, compliance
and social responsibility. This honour reflects the Group’s
continuous improvement in its sustainability development
capability and the creation of more social and economic values
over the past year through its practice in various aspects
including green environmental protection, social responsibility
and corporate governance.

Strategizing for the New Phase

In response to the new and changing situation, the Group
continues to maintain its insight and foresight into the industry
and has decisively formulated a new five-year development
strategy (2023-2027) to lead the Group to grasp new
opportunities, address new challenges and achieve new
breakthroughs. Compared with the past, the new strategy
places greater emphasis on proactive business growth, adopting
a differentiated competitive strategy for project development,
ensuring continuous and rapid growth in installed capacity,
while exploring new opportunities to gradually layout the global
market. We prioritize technology-led business by increasing
investment in technological innovation and promoting the
application of new technologies to create more value. We will
take initiative to respond to market-oriented reforms, by placing
emphasis on building capacity to adapt to the electricity market,
conducting vigorous research on market patterns, diligently
carrying out power trading, strengthening the sale of green
certificates and plan ahead for the operation of carbon assets.
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Staying True to Original Aspiration

The Group has always been focused, maintaining its original
aspiration while keeping up its insight into the essence of the
market, making trade-offs, and insisting on doing truly value
creating work. As we enter a new phase of development, the
Group has conducted a comprehensive review, sorted out
and refined its corporate culture, and once again reiterate
the core values of “people-orientation, value creation, pursuit
for excellence”, guiding all our staff to practice the simple
but profound belief of “Seeking truth from facts, valuing
professionalism”.

The Group recognizes corporate culture and development
strategy are equally essential. Only by adhering to our original
aspirations and upholding traditions can we continue to strive
for excellence and create new horizons.

Forge Ahead on a New Journey

Through the efforts of the past year, the Group has been able
to build a solid foundation for development and is in a better
position to achieve new and greater strategic goals.

We are in an era of exponential growth for renewable energy
and we are shouldering the great mission of replacing fossil
energy. The great era provides us with excellent opportunities
to grow and to show our capabilities. With the rapid expansion
in installed capacity, the Group has embarked on a new phase
of this great journey. We will seriously implement our new
development strategy, grasp the opportunities of the times,
focus on planning and development, work hard and strive to
move ahead.
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Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
express our sincere gratitude to our shareholders, investors and
friends from all walks of life for their trust and support over the
years.

Liu Shunxing
Chairman
28 February 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWR DM

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

Since 2022, global energy security issues have intensified,
countries are more determined to promote the energy
transition, and significantly increase investment in
renewable energy. Renewable energy deployment is
obviously accelerated. According to the International
Energy Agency’s forecast, Renewables are set to account
for over 90% of global electricity capacity expansion
between 2022 and 2027.

In 2022, the Chinese government issued a number of
favorable policies for renewable energy development,
specifying that by 2025, annual renewable energy
generation will reach around 3.3 trillion kWh, the
proportion of incremental electricity generation from
renewables in the incremental electricity consumption of
the society will exceed 50%, and the electricity generation
from wind and solar power will double. China aims for
over 1,200 GW of wind and solar power capacity by 2030.
It also plans to basically build a modern energy system
by 2035. Energy security safeguards shall be greatly
enhanced, green production and consumption shall be
widely adopted, and renewables shall become the main
source of power generation.

2022 F LA - 2IREEREZ 2 ME L
% BUEE DN ERE H HEHE REIREEAY « 30 KME N
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN
I.  BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED) — RERF(E)

In 2022, China continued to achieve significant growth in 2022 - FEREFRE - HREMES
newly installed capacity of wind and PV. According to the FRARIEE R - KIBEPEIBEIREER B
National Energy Administration of China, as of the end of ER HE2022F12 8K - PEIRER
December 2022, China’s newly installed capacity of wind B E 37,630MW » YR FrI R %A
power was 37,630MW, and the newly installed capacity £87,410MW ° 20224 - B 2t & A
of PV was 87,410MW. In 2022, China’s total electricity BEEL6BETRR  AHEIEK3.6% -
consumption was 8.6 trillion kWh, representing a year- AHEEREESEN27EETRE
on-year increase of 3.6%. Renewable energy generation HEHEREEMN31.6%  EFRFEEEH
reached 2.7 trillion kWh, accounting for 31.6% of China’s BE - - KARBEEEF12BETRE 14
total domestic electricity consumption. The wind and PV PHEAEN13.8%  BHER2EES
generation was about 1.2 trillion kWh, accounting for B BB BEREERESE -

13.8% of China’s total domestic electricity consumption. It
was 2 percentage points up year-on-year, which is close to
the consumption of all urban and rural households.

e REEERAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWR DM

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

(1

The Upsizing Trend of Wind Turbine Continues,
N-Type PV Panel is Replacing the P-Type

During the reporting period, the development of
large-sized wind turbines continued to accelerate.
with high power, high tower, long blades continuing
to be the mainstream development direction for
wind turbines. The most common wind turbine
model was upgraded from 5.X at the beginning
of the year to 6.X. The 7.X model has also been
deployed.

During the reporting period, N-type cell technology
including TOPCon, HJT, HBC and perovskite cell has
been further developed. It is the consensus that
N-type cell technology is replacing P-type as the
next-generation technology.

- RERR(E)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR D
I.  BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED) — RERFE(E)
(2) Rapid Growth of Energy Storage While New (=) ReEmEER  EMW2RZ L

Technologies Continued to Diversify
Since 2022, China has issued a series of policies to 2022 FLAZK - R BB B4 2 TR
support the development of energy storage, setting BB RAMALCR - RREREERAE
the direction for the roll-out target, market position, BiZ  migHh - mEBRXIERT
and business model of energy storage. At present, FE e BATFREI90% M EHESE
more than 90% of regions in China released B e L ot 58 I MEBC R 25k - AR
explicitly the mandatory energy storage requirements BER] B AR IREE R -

for wind and solar power plants. Energy storage
has been accelerated with the development of
renewable energy.

HEHERERERA T
2022 F 3
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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. BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

(2)

(3)

Rapid Growth of Energy Storage While
New Technologies Continued to Diversify
(CONTINUED)

During the reporting period, the diversified
development trend of novel energy storage
technologies such as compressed air, liquid flow
battery, flywheel, solid-state battery, sodium ion,
and gravity was obvious. About the aspect of use of
technology, the new type of energy storage, mainly
lithium-ion battery technology, still dominates the
new installation market of energy storage. About the
aspect of system safety, thanks to the full adoption
of lithium battery water-cooling technology, the
safety of the energy storage system has been further
enhanced.

Wind Turbine Prices are Relatively Stable with
Declines, Photovoltaic Panel Prices Began to
Drop

Wind turbine price entered a downward path since
2021 and dropped to RMB 2,000/kW in early 2022.
The price of wind turbines continued to decline in
the second half of the year, with bid price of RMB
1,500/kW reported in the industry.

At the beginning of 2022, the raw material prices
of solar panel continued to soar due to supply
shortages. At the same time, as the energy crisis
has swept many countries, their demand for PV
dramatically increased, resulting in the price hike
in the PV supply chain. However, since December
2022, the release of domestic silicon production
capacity in China led to a drop in prices of PV cells
and components, which will help reduce the cost of
investment in PV power plants in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

. BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

(4)

(5

Further Deepening the Electricity Market
Reform, and Electricity Market Becoming
Increasingly Sound

In 2022, China continued to deepen the electricity
market reform. The regions of pilot provincial
electricity spot market continued to expand, with
additional 6 provinces joined in. In 2022, the
proportion of transacted electricity volume in China,
which is about 5.3 trillion kWh, had a significant
increase, accounting for approximately 60.8% of
China’s total electricity consumption, representing an
increase of 15.4 percentage points as compare with
last year.

Emphasis on Low-Carbon Development Green
Manufacturing, Actively Encourage Carbon
Asset Development

In November 2022, the National Development and
Reform Commission of China (NDRC) published
a document clarifying that the newly-added
renewable energy would be excluded from the cap
on total energy consumption. The issuance of Green
Certificates will cover all renewable energy power
projects, thereby establishing a nationwide unified
green certificate system. These policies will actively
promote the construction of a green certificate
trading market and the participation of renewable
energy in green certificate trading. Green certificates,
renewable energy and CCER have become the
supportive direction by the Chinese government,
and the government also stresses more on the
development of carbon assets, thus the income from
carbon assets is expected to improve in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBNWMEDW
. BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED) — - RERE(E)

(R) EREBRBRECHE  BEHE

(5) Emphasis on Low-Carbon Development Green

Manufacturing, Actively Encourage Carbon
Asset Development (CONTINUED)

In December 2022, the EU Council and the European
Parliament reached an agreement in relation to the
Carbon Border Adjustment Mechanism (CBAM,
i.e. carbon tariff) of the EU and the EU Emissions
Trading System, formally setting the EU’s “carbon
tariff”. Pursuant to the agreement, the EU will
levy additional duties on steel, aluminum, cement,
fertilizer, electricity, and hydrogen energy importers
from 2026 onwards to compensate EU enterprises
for the losses caused by stringent emission reduction
measures. This will promote the development of
carbon assets in the international market.

Continued Easing in the Credit Environment,
Further Reduced Financing Cost

On the financial aspect, the financing environment
for domestic enterprises in China continues
improving in 2022, and the financing environment
for renewable energy power plants continues to be
relaxed, with China’s domestic lending rate (LPR)
currently at a low level in the past three years. The
Central Bank of China encouraged social capital to
raise funds through multiple channels, and set up
investment funds to support the development of
the renewable energy industry according to market-
based principles. Under the guidance of the “Dual
Carbon” target, both China’s policy banks and
commercial banks are actively engaged in the green
financing business, providing sufficient bank loans
with lower interest rates for investment renewable
power plants.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, the Group achieved remarkable progress in
project development, maintaining a continued growth in
various businesses. The scale of projects under construction
hit a record high. The Group’s asset quality continued to
be optimized, and the service business was rapidly moving
forward.

In 2022, the Group achieved a total revenue of
RMB2,679,368,000 (2021: RMB2,195,540,000 (restated)),
representing a year-on-year increase of 22.0%. Profit
attributable to equity holders of the Group amounted to
RMB871,817,000 (2021: RMB787,534,000 (restated)),
representing a year-on-year increase of 10.7%. Basic
earnings per share was RMB9.90 cents (2021: RMB9.46
cents (restated)), and diluted earnings per share was
RMB9.86 cents (2021: RMB9.39 cents (restated)).

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had net
assets of RMB8,094,892,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB7,562,887,000 (restated)) and net assets attributable
to equity shareholders of the Group per share (excluding
treasury shares held for the purpose of cancellation) was
RMBO0.91 (31 December 2021: RMB0.84 (restated)).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Il. BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED) — - EKEE

(—) FERBERREK  ERERRE

Implementation of Power Plant Construction HIE

(1) Breakthrough in Project Development, Rapid

20

Actively Develop New Type Projects with
Breakthrough in Large Projects

During the Year, by closely following new
policies of renewable energy in various
provinces, the Group finely tuned its top-
level design, and leveraged the advantage
of its flexibility and expertise. It adopted a
differentiated strategy by taking advantage of
our strengths, avoiding our limitations, and
actively planning. The Group kept increasing
project reserves by proactive introducing new
business sectors and new business models,
actively expanding the types of projects,
promoting collaboration, and coordinated
development of new energy and industries,
and developing projects with great efforts by
leveraging its professional capabilities.

During the Year, the Group obtained wind
power construction permits of 1,355MW
in China. Meanwhile, the Group secured
preliminary approved renewable energy
projects from national authorities of 4,000MW
in China (to be further arranged by provincial
authorities as renewable energy construction
permits) and achieved a breakthrough in the
development of large-scale projects. In 2022, 7
wind power projects and 4 PV power projects
were newly approved/registered, totaling
1,556MW. The Group also actively developed
energy storage projects in several provinces.

1 BEEHREEEE AHEH
ERER

RER  AKEEZBRHREE
MHEMABERREXR
R MTAERE - BHEEE
ME I EE  BXAENE
% KRERLER  HRE
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T HBHEEREERRS
BRZR KB HFRE
N 2AEFEER - T
IEINEEEIE B A o

REE AEEETHEEA
BEREFEMEERERZ
1,355MW : [A) B 38 BU 1S B =X
HE1ETE B 4,000MW (;Z 1B H
REE—SREIFEHRER
RIEEFE) - £EAKTIEE
BN 0 20224 » IR
HEBR)REEB 7@ - K
15 B41E - & &H1,556MW -
EZEENERAREFEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(1

Breakthrough in Project Development, Rapid
Implementation of Power Plant Construction
(CONTINUED)

Actively Develop New Type Projects
with Breakthrough in Large Projects
(CONTINUED)

During the reporting period, the Group signed
new contracts, consisting of 3,505MW of
wind power resources, 4,000MW of PV power
resources, and a total of 4,020MW/8,040MWh
of energy storage pipeline projects. The
abundant resource reserve enables sufficient
project pipeline for the Group’s subsequent
construction and sustainable growth.

Strong Acceleration of The Pace of
Construction, Newly Installed Capacity Hit
a New Record High

During the Year, the scale of the Group’s
projects under construction hit a new high.
The total capacity of the Group's power
plants under construction of 1,982MW
(2021: 1,834MW). Among them, there are 8
expansion projects and 12 new projects.

During the reporting period, the Group
commissioned 10 new power plants into
commercial operation with a total installed
capacity of 1,111TMW. Among them, 9 were
wind power plants with a total attributable
installed capacity of 992MW, and 1 was a
PV power plant with an attributable installed
capacity of 70MW.

aHEREBERAR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE W
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Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(1) Breakthrough In Project Development, Rapid

Implementation of Power Plant Construction
(CONTINUED)

2.

Strong Acceleration of The Pace of
Construction, Newly Installed Capacity Hit
a New Record High (CONTINUED)

As of 31 December 2022, the Group invested
in grid-connected wind power and solar power
plants with an attributable installed capacity
of 3,588MW. Among them, the attributable
installed capacity is 3,137MW of wind power
plants and 451MW of PV power plants. As of
the end of the reporting period, the attributable
capacity of the Group’s subsidiary-owned power
plants accounted for 81.2% of the Group’s total
attributable installed capacity. The attributable
installed capacity of the Group’s owned subsidy-
free projects has reached 2,16 1MW, accounting
for 60.2% of the Group’s total attributable
installed capacity.

= XBEEGE)
(—) HEMRERRE  EHRRRE

ATTRIBUTABLE INSTALLED CAPACITY (MW)

i (E)
2 ROMREREE  HREE
BHAME (E)

H E2022F12A831H A&
EEFARENHBERER
ERANEMERERETE
3,588MW o E A - [3| T g A
HHEMAES137MW KR
BRERERETE45IMW -
HEARNREHR  AEBTS
FRAEHERDTEHLHEE
EREETEMN812% &
HHTEHEEEERAED E
2,161MW - i & B a5 JE 1
REH60.2% °

ERRERE (MW)
Power Plants invested by the Group Power Plants owned by the Group's Subsidiary
RESERENER A ERFARER

Change Change

2022 2021 Rate 2022 2021 Rate

Business Segments E5 0% ANE WNE 123 ANE WNE BiLE

Wind BE 3137 2,387 31.4% 2,469 1,763 40.1%

v Sk 451 381 184% 444 374 18.7%

Total ait 3,588 2,768 29.6% 2913 2137 36.3%
4,000.00
3,000.00
2,000.00
1,000.00
0.00

20214 20224 20214 20224
Power Plants invested by the Group Power Plants owned by the Group’s Subsidiary
SEFERENER ERF A B ERK
7 Wind BE B vk
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(2

Safe and Efficient Production and Operation,
Steady Growth in Power Plant Profits

Significant Growth in Attributable
Electricity Generation, Safe and Efficient
Production of Power Plants

During the Year, by consistently following
safety management policy of “Safety First,
Prevention Priority and Comprehensive
Management”, the Group continuously
improved the safety management system, and
established a regular mechanism for business
training of safety professionals and part-time
positions. It strengthened the quantitative
assessment on the safety responsibility
system to tighten process control. It created
a database on safety risk source identification
and information, improved the standard of
safety measures. It steadily carried out hidden
risk identification to deepen hidden risks
management. It emphasized on ecological
environment and quality supervision and
commenced safety education and training
through multiple means to effectively enhance
the Group’s safety level. The above measures
have further reinforced the Group’s safety
awareness and ensured the Group’s safe and
stable operation.

During the Year, the Group’s power plants
maintained safe and stable generation. During
the year, the Group’s power plants maintained
safe and stable production, with no accidents
of serious personal injury or above, and no
major equipment accidents or above, ensuring
stable and reliable power supply and the safety
of personnel and property.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERR DN
Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED) = XBEEE)
(2) Safe and Efficient Production and Operation, (Z) S EEEZZEN  EMUEERS
Steady Growth in Power Plant Profits RAGE)
(CONTINUED)
1. Significant Growth in Attributable 1 RBERESERAE BELE
Electricity Generation, Safe and Efficient EZZ2EM(E)

Production of Power Plants (CONTINUED)

In 2022, benefiting from newly added projects, 2022 - BEANFEVHIRE
the attributable power generation achieved HEMES  AEERRESE
a rapid growth and recorded an increase of BRERRY  REFREER
27.7% over the same period of last year. The 27.7% o ERERTFATRIER
attributable power generation of the Group’s EnEEEhEEREREERE
subsidiary-owned power plants accounted H)78.5% °

for 78.5% of the Group’s attributable power
generation.

ATTRIBUTABLE ELECTRICITY GENERATION (GWH)

EHEBEE (GWH)
Power Plants invested by the Group Power Plants owned by the Group's
SESERENER Subsidiary
2 ERTARER
Change Change
2022 2021 Rate 2022 2021 Rate
Business Segments EBBARES W% W1E L 4% W% W1E L J[#:
Wind BE 58937 49307 19.5% 44742 35416 26.3%
v ik 793 938 1652% 7611 B4 1716%
Total ait 6,073.0 52245 21.7% 52413 38240 31.1%
7,000.00
6,000.00
5,000.00 21.7% -
4,000.00 1%
3,000.00
2,000.00
1,000.00
0.00
20214F 20224 20214 2022%F
Power Plants invested by the Group Power Plants owned by the Group’s Subsidiary
SERARENER ERFARIER

7 wind &% B pv ik
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Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(2) Safe and Efficient Production and Operation,

Steady Growth in Power Plant Profits

(CONTINUED)

Significant Growth in Attributable
Electricity Generation, Safe and Efficient
Production of Power Plants (CONTINUED)

In 2022, thanks to the increase in the
proportion of high-quality grid parity projects,
as well as the Group’s active implementation
of technology improvement and fine
management, the operational quality of the
Group's power plants was further improved.
The average utilization hours of wind and
PV continued to rise. The weighted average
utilization hours of wind power plants owned
by the Group’s subsidiaries was 2,921 hours,
which was 31.5% higher than the China’s
average. The weighted average utilization
hour of PV power plants held by the Group’s
subsidiaries was 1,532 hours, which was
14.6% higher than the China’s average.

BEEENRR TN

— - EBOEE)

(D) £EEER2ER ERAERS
R’ (&)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE UTILIZATION HOURS (HOUR)

E R INRE P SR A B (B

Power Plants

owned by

the Group's

subsidiaries

SEERT

E ARER
Wind BE 2,921
PV AL 1532

Business Segments

200
WNE

Greater than

China's

Averagein  Average (%)
China  EE{HE
TETY  THREE
2,221 31.5%
1337 14.6%

B REBERNE  EML
EZ2EX(E)

20224 - BmNEE FEE
BhEL RS - U R EEEG
FHEHEBURER - MR B EE
B ASEEHELEEEANE
R RE - RRFEHFAN
REEERER - AEERRT
ARFEERERINEFSIF A
INEFER2,921 /N B - BIAREE
HKFEEH 31.5% o REBE
IRF R R B R ARERINETF
BF A NEE,532/ N6 0 B
TR ST 14.6% ©

2021
W1 E
Power Plants
owned by Greater than
the Group's China's
subsidiaries ~ Averagein  Average (%)

SEERTD China  ZEfHE
ARE TETS  POMRE
2697 2,46 20.1%
1420 1,163 2.1%

e REBERAR

25



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERR DN
Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED) = EBEEE)
(2) Safe and Efficient Production and Operation, (Z) S EEEZZEN  EMUEERS
Steady Growth in Power Plant Profits RAGE)
(CONTINUED)
1. Significant Growth in Attributable 1 RBERESERAE BELE
Electricity Generation, Safe and Efficient EXZ2EM(E)

Production of Power Plants (CONTINUED)

In 2022, the power curtailment rate of 2022F 0 REBEIKENER
the Group's invested power plants saw a REFBRMAL - BE - AR
favourable trend, with a year-on-year decrease BEELL T - REEIRED
on wind power and PV power curtailment ERZEEREE2.8% * AL
rates. The consolidated power curtailment EFRETREOAETH -
rate of the Group’s invested power plants HPFRAFAERGEIRE
was 2.8%, representing a decrease of 0.4 E25% @ ML AFRA T
percentage points as compared with the same 0.3 E D& o

period last year. The consolidated power
curtailment rate of subsidiary-owned power
plants was 2.5%, representing a decrease of
0.3 percentage points as compared with the
same period of last year.

CURTAILMENT RATES (%)

REZ(%)
Power Plants invested by the Group Power Plants owned by the Group's
SESERENER Subsidiary
i BRFARER
2022 2021 Change 2022 2021 Change
Business Segments RHHA wnE mE 21tE wnE meE 44
Consolidated Power Curtailment Rate AR SR 28% 32% 04% 25% 28% 03%
Including: Wind v BE 26% 29% 0.3% 22% 21% 0.1%
PV y 38% 9.8% -6.0% 4.1% 10.9% -6.8%

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(2

Safe and Efficient Production and Operation,
Steady Growth in Power Plant Profits
(CONTINUED)

Significant Growth in Attributable
Electricity Generation, Safe and Efficient
Production of Power Plants (CONTINUED)

In 2022, the availability of the Group's power
plants continuously remained at a favourable
level.

AVAILABILITY OF POWER PLANTS (%)
EFANAER(%)

BEEENRR TN

— - EBOEE)

(D) £EEER2ER ERAERS
R’ (&)

Power Plants invested by the Group

B REBERNE  EML
EZ2EX(E)

20224 NEBEERAIF A
RIFEHIFEATKFE -

Power Plants owned by the Group's

EESERENER Subsidiary
Hh ERFARER
2022 2021 Change 2022 2021 Change
Business Segments Eo S WNE WE E-4(A- WNE WE E-4(A-
Wind BE 98.50% 98.28% 0.22% 98.40% 98.63% -0.23%
Py EIR 99.90% 99.95% -0.05% 99.89% 99.94% -0.05%
Steady Growth in Power Plant Revenue 2. EBRURARFBELER

and Profit

Benefited from commercial operation of high-
quality grid-parity projects, improved asset
quality of existing power plants and the rising
installed capacity, the Group achieved year-
on-year growth in revenue and net profit from
power generation.

In 2022, the Group’s subsidiary-owned
power plants achieved a revenue of RMB
2,114,106,000, an increase of 20.9% over
the same period of last year. It accounted for
78.9% of the Group’s total revenue.

e REBERAR

2022 3

BENSEENFERER
ARERBERZN - AKE
EMBARENBERRLLIE
£

202 AEEERFA
AIERMEAERBAARK
2,114,106 F 0 ®E—FE
EHAIS R 20.9% * I EEURA
#)78.9% °

27



28

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(2) Safe and Efficient Production and Operation,
Steady Growth in Power Plant Profits
(CONTINUED)

Z - EBOEE)

(D) £EEER2ER ERAERS
R’ (&)

BRUARFIBELER ()

Steady Growth in Power Plant Revenue

and Profit (CONTINUED)

In 2022, the Group's subsidiary-owned
power plants achieved a total net profit of
RMB817,876,000 from power generation,
representing an increase of 7.0% over last
year. The Group’s shared net profits from
power generation business of its associates
and joint ventures was RMB170,119,000.

REVENUE AND NET PROFIT FROM POWER PLANTS (RMB'000)

EMBARENE(ARY : T)

Revenue from Subsidiary-owned Power Plants BRFATERBA
Including: Wind AR

W Al
Net Profit from Subsidiary-owned Power Plants BRIATEHFFS
Including: Wind Hp:EE

W AN
Net Profit from Jointly-owned Power Plants EHEERTFAY
Including: Wing He: BE

W AR

20224 - REEZERF AR
BEREEREEFFHARE
817,876 T 7t - M E—HFER
g R7.0%  SEDZHE
NRAIREEBFEEE G FH
AR 170,119 F 7T °

222
0E
2,114,106
1,769,300
344,797
817,876
702,675
115,201
170,119
165,532
4,587

2021 (Restated) Change
W1 FELR 2%
1,748,842 20.9%
1,553,401 13.9%
195,441 76.4%
764,280 1.0%
684,240 2.7%
80,040 43.9%
153,093 11.1%

148 456 11.5%
4,637 -1.1%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(2) Safe and Efficient Production and Operation,
Steady Growth in Power Plant Profits (CONTINUED)

3. LCOE Continued to Fall, Achieved
Breakthrough in Green Certificates
Revenue

As China‘s renewable energy enter the era of
grid parity, the average sale price of electricity
generated from existing and new projects
is declining. However, thanks to technology
innovation, the levelized cost of electricity for
new projects remains very competitive and
enables us to achieve favourable return. During
2022, with the impacts of the operation
commencement of more grid parity projects,
the increase of electricity trading and ancillary
service cost sharing, the weighted average sale
price of the electricity generated by the Group's
invested power plants fell slightly. However, the
Group’s consolidated levelized cost of electricity
(LCOE) continued to decline, with the LCOE
decreased by 10.4% compared with last year.

Meanwhile, with more newly added grid-parity
projects and the disposal of power plants with
renewable energy subsidies, the Group has
continuously reduced its reliance on renewable
energy subsidies.
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EEENWRTD
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(2

Safe and Efficient Production and Operation,

Steady Growth in Power Plant Profits
(CONTINUED)

3.

LCOE Continued to Fall, Achieved
Breakthrough in Green Certificates
Revenue (CONTINUED)

C EMORE(E)

(D) £EEER2ER ERAERS
R’ (&)

3

EEREXIFHETFE - Al
HHEW ()

WEIGHTED AVERAGE SALE PRICE OF THE ELECTRICITY GENERATED (RMB/KWH)

(INCLUDING VAT)

ERNEFY LHEE (T TRE) (FEER)

Power Plants invested by the Group

Power Plants owned by the Group's

SERERENER Subsidiary
29 ERTLARER
2022 2021 Change 2022 2021 Change
Business Segments E2 ANE W1E (A ANE W1E (A
Wind e 0.4390 0.5005 -0.0615 0.3904 05124 -0.1220
v R 05122 0.8020 -0.2898 0.4895 0.7806 -0.2911
In addition, the sale of green certificates AN - KRRE C RBER SEEE
and green electricity made a positive impact WABERZE - REE - K
on the Group’s revenue. During 2022, the S E N5 E A7 B - HED

Group strengthened the whole-process
management of the registration and sale of
green certificates. The Group issued 1.519
million green certificates for grid-parity
projects, representing an increase of 64%
year-on-year. Green certificates bulk sales
contract has signed. As of 31 December 2022,
a revenue of RMB25,494,000 was obtained
by selling green certificates, a leading position
in the market. During 2022, the volume of
green electricity transacted was approximately
295GWh, equivalent to an average increase
of RMBO0.05/kWh compared to the reference
tariff of thermal power. In the future, the
Group will continue to maintain existing
customers, and vigorously expand new sectors
and new customers, so as to maintain the
steady growth of green certificates and green
electricity businesses.

2RBEE  AREHAKX
EEREEMMEEI5198
oK - ﬁtbiﬂ&l% - I EFH
AR EHEHESRER] - &
12022¢12H31 A R&
TERK T BIE B 4k E $5525,494
T - EITERBIFIF o K
FE - FEBEEHZER52.95
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(3)

(O]

Actively Expanded Financing Channels,
Financing Cost Significantly Reduced

During the reporting period, the Group has been
granted comprehensive credit facilities by several
banks, with an increasing proportion from bank
financing. During the year, the financing interest
rate remained low, while the weighted average cost
decreased by 0.4 percentage point as compared with
last year. Financing channels were further expanded,
while the financing cost of new projects decreased
remarkably to effectively improve asset efficiency.

Continued Optimization of the Asset Quality

The Group continued to conduct the dynamic
analysis of the economic benefits of existing power
plants to strengthen the monitoring and analysis of
the indicators such as cash flow and debt. It carried
out targeted asset optimization to continuously
improve asset quality and capital structure. It
continuously reduced the reliance on renewable
energy subsidies, improved cash flow, and enhanced
the shareholder return, to ensure the steady
development of the Group.

During the reporting period, the Group actively
optimized its assets, disposing of 189MW
attributable installed capacity of power plants,
result in a decrease of the renewable energy subsidy
receivables and contract assets by RMB 306 million.
It effectively reduced the Group’s reliance on
renewable energy subsidies, improved its cash flow
and asset structure.
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Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(5)

Sustainable Growth Consolidated the Leading
Position of Intelligent O&M

During the reporting period, the Group’s intelligent
O&M sector achieved a revenue of RMB279,092,000
to the Group (2021: RMB244,834,000), representing
a year-on-year increase of 14.0%.

The intelligent O&M sector is the significant
arrangement for the existing assets of the renewable
energy industry. With more than 16 years of
experience in the full lifecycle asset management
of the Group’s own power stations, It developed
unique technical and management advantages
and gradually established a leading position in the
industry. It consistently provided “house-keeper”
operation and O&M management services for
a variety of renewable energy assets from the
perspective of project owners. It keeps innovating
in practice and actively develop future-oriented
intelligent operation and maintenance technologies.
As of the end of 2022, the O&M sector further
increased its delivery capabilities. It delivered
services covering most provinces across the country,
consolidate the advantages consisting of people and
networks, enables service resources sharing due to
the scale of business. In the future, leveraging on
the advantages of the Group, the O&M sector will
establish trading service capabilities in the electricity
market, and provide customers with personalized
service products, quickly adapt to market changes,
provide customers with personalized service
products that are more adaptable to the new market
environment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(6)

Further Progress in Power Design, Leasing and
Other Service Businesses

During the reporting period, the Group’s design
sector endeavored to develop its business and
expand its scale, leading to a significant increase
of 75% in revenue. It carried out a number of
EPC projects including distributed wind power,
distributed PV power and energy storage projects.
In terms of technology, the “Wuhe Century
Concord Yinmahu Wind Farm” project has been
recommended by Beijing Engineering Exploration
and Design Association to participate in the China
Engineering and Consulting Association Awards as
the representative of Beijing Outstanding Project.
The “The standard iron tower of Yilan Dongsheng
Wind Farm adds a T-shaped cross-arm to reduce the
total cost of the line” project won the Third Prize for
2022 Outstanding QC Group Results Award granted
by China Electric Power Planning and Engineering
Association.

During the reporting period, focus on distributed PV
and wind power projects and behind-meter energy
storage business, the Group’s leasing sector carried
out financial leasing. It actively expanded businesses
as well as strictly controlled risks by integrating
industry and financing in investment decision
making to effectively control risks. The total assets,
net assets, revenue and net profit of the leasing
operation saw growth during the year.

During the reporting period, the Group has gradually
carried out business adjustments to its electricity
sales companies. It improved their qualification and
expanded business teams, as well as enhanced its
professional service capability by strengthening
exchanges and actively studying the trading policies
and transactions of pilot provinces. Meanwhile,
in compliance with the latest policies of various
provinces in China, the Group has actively engaged
in market-oriented transactions and related new
business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In addition to financial performance, the Group believes

that high standards of corporate social responsibility are

of great significance in building a positive relationship

between the enterprise and the society, motivating its

employee, achieving sustainable development and return

for the Group.

1.

Environmental Policies and Performances

The Group specializes in the wind and PV power
generation and related businesses, and emphasis on
the investment and management in environmental
protection, soil and water conservation and
biodiversity protection. The Group has always been
implementing the national energy conservation
and emission reduction policies to earnestly fulfil its
corporate social responsibility in invested countries.
The Group always performs its environmental
responsibilities in accordance with the environmental
regulations and industry practices of locations where
it operates. It strives to maintain sustainable and
healthy development for the environment as well
as for humans and commits to our responsibilities
for improving the energy structure, mitigating air
pollution, and reducing greenhouse gas emissions
and haze. The Group also insists on practicing green
office concept to reduce emissions and discharges
from its own office operation activities, improve
efficiency in the use of resources and energy.

The Group strictly complies with the environmental
laws and regulations in invested countries. It actively
took the responsibility to conserve energy and
reduce emissions. During the Year, there was no
violation of environmental laws, regulations, and
policies in invested countries. The Group actively
fulfilled its social responsibility. While focusing on
the development of renewable energy business, the
Group was also committed to community welfare in
order to reciprocate the society by various means.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEAWR DM

- RERE  SRARMEEE(E)

lll. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

1.  Environmental Policies and Performances (—) RIRBORERE (&)

(CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group achieved the reduction RNEE  AEERENRAERARK
of carbon dioxide, sulphur dioxide, and nitrogen EEMEEEREREMAL -
oxides emissions and the saving of standard coal and Al = = o 5 A =
water conservation from the electricity generated b genk - WER A T R KA A
by the Group’s invested wind and PV power plants, 7K o JE RN EYRBE AP R RS 2
as compared with those by conventional thermal MR REREBEN - M FRIE
power plants. The reduction in pollutants positively T RSB SR

contributed to the reduction in air pollution,
greenhouse gas emissions and haze.

EMISSION REDUCTION FROM POWER PLANTS
BRI B

Accumulated

2022 Amount
Emissions Reduction Indicators AR 2022 £ -
CO, (Kilotons) co, (Fmg) 7,092 47,543
SO, (tons) SO, (&) 1,679 27,757
NO, (tons) NO, (Wg) 1,751 25,509
Standard Coal Saving (Kilotons) ENAZ R (FR) 2,751 17,673
Water Saving (Kilotons) ERZ9 K (1) 10,864 100,374

BEHEERE@MBRAT 35
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

2. Compliance

During the year, the Group strictly complied with the
relevant standards, laws and regulations in business,
management and labour regulations.

3.  Customers and Suppliers Relationship

During the year, the Group maintained good
relationships with its customers and suppliers
without major disputes.

During the year, sales of the Group’s top five
customers accounted for 58.8% of the Group’s total
sales during the reporting period, including 15.3%
from State Grid Hubei Electric Power Company, the
largest customer.

During the year, purchases from the Group’s top five
suppliers accounted for 45.0% of the Group’s total
procurement during the reporting period, including
18.6% from the largest supplier, Zhejiang Yunda
Wind Power Company Limited, which supplied wind
turbine for wind power projects invested by the
Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group has been awarded “Outstanding Employer
Award” for the third consecutive year by liepin.com (f
HE249). The Group always upholds to the core values
of “people-oriented, value creation and pursuit of
excellence”. The Group safeguards the legitimate rights
and interests of its employees, cares about the career
development of its employees and their health and safety,
strive to achieve the shared growth of its employees and
the Group. 202 training sessions were organized in the
year 2022. The Group enabled the innovations of training
mechanism, trained employees in various aspects to
improve their skills.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HUMAN RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Group continued to promote
management digitalization and centralized management,
deepen regional management, optimize the organizational
structure and personnel allocation; improve working
efficiency, highlight key points to reduce unnecessary
work, strengthen the exploration of employee’s potential,
and match talents to suitable positions through internal
transfer and external hiring. During the year, the Group
has continuously promote the system of five-career-
pathway, providing broader career development and
promotion pathways. It has continuously carried out
the recruitment qualification standard that implements
personnel job evaluation and certification. The Group also
refined the talent management mechanism which includes
job rotation, transfer and occupational trainings, improved
the training system to comprehensively develop talents,
well managed the talent pipeline to unleash the full
potential of its employees. At the same time, the Group
has continuously improved the standardization of its
systems and processes as well as its system management
mechanism, exercising strict risk control, continuously
optimizing the workflow, refining and streamlining,
continuously improving the efficiency to support the rapid
and efficient development of the Group.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had 2,574 full-time
employees (31 December 2021: 1,907), including 217 staff
at the Group headquarters, 450 in project development
and management, 1,747 in power plant operation and
maintenance, 47 in energy loT R&D, and 113 in design,
leasing and other businesses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held cash and
bank balances of approximately RMB4,049,279,000
(31 December 2021: RMB4,151,437,000); the
Group’s net assets amounted to RMB8,094,892,000
(31 December 2021: RMB7,562,887,000 restated).
The balance of bank and other borrowings of the
Group was RMB13,321,143,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB10,939,507,000); the liability-to-asset ratio was
70.2% (31 December 2021: 68.6% (restated)).

Pledge of Assets

As of 31 December 2022, the buildings and equipment
of the Group were pledged to secure borrowings
balance of RMB10,488,820,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB9,702,631,000).

Contingent Liability

With effective from 27 June 2019, the subsidiaries of the
Group provided joint liability guarantees for the debts
of Daoxian Century Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd.*(:&
Z%4) ("Daoxian Century Concord”) and Daoxian
Jingtang Century Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd.* (&%
FIE) (“Daoxian Jingtang”) under the lease contracts. As
of 31 December 2022, the total principal debt’s balances
of Daoxian Century Concord and Daoxian Jingtang
which the Group provided joint liability guarantees were
RMB338,643,000.

Save as mentioned above, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022.

Commitments

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had contracted but
not yet incurred RMB2,380,563,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB2,068,344,000) of capital expenditure.

As of 31 December 2022, the total amount of equity
capital contracted but not yet paid to joint ventures and
associates was RMB44,500,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB103,540,000).
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VL.

VII.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RISK FACTORS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s main business is the investment and operation
of renewable energy power plants. The main risks faced
by the Group include international political risk, exchange
rate risk, policy risk, market risk, climate risk and power
curtailment risk, etc.

The Group will assess the possible adverse factors,
formulate various countermeasures to mitigate the risks,
closely follow the international situation and changes
in exchange rates, closely track the related policies and
evaluate their impacts, formulate scientific electricity
trading strategies, strengthen equipment operation
management, improve production and operation efficiency
and enhance the profitability of power generation.
The Group will continue to enhance its capabilities and
strengths of project development, implement a strategy
that integrating non-power generation investment and
project quota acquisition, utilize its flexibility advantages to
implement its development strategy. The Group will make
reasonable geographic distribution of power plants across
the country to minimize the overall risk of regional wind
and solar resource fluctuations and power curtailments on
the its power plants.

THE OUTLOOK

At present, the renewable energy generation is booming
and will gradually become the main power source, which
will bring profound changes to the power industry. In
the course of building a new power system that adapts
to carbon neutrality, more investment and service
opportunities will emerge. With years of experience in
the renewable energy industry, the Group will actively
grasp these opportunities, be brave to compete, actively
participate in building new power system, focus on power
generation as the main business, leverage our professional
advantages, and collaborate with the service business
sector for multi-wing development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

VII.

THE OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)

In 2023, the Group will focus on the following tasks:

Accelerate Project Development And
Construction To Achieve Rapid Growth In
Installed Capacity

The power generation is the major profit source
and profit growth driver of the Group. The Group
will scale up the investment of renewables focusing
on wind and solar power align with the national
policy and its available resource. It will proactively
plan the development of comprehensive wind and
solar bases, take various measures to obtain project
quotas. It will actively speed up the preparation
of project construction in advance to promote
project construction with scientific arrangement
and effective coordination, enhance the control of
project nodes and stringent cost to ensure the steady
growth of power generation business. With these
efforts, the Group aims to achieve rapid growth in
installed capacity.

Strive to Enhance Market-Based Revenue,
Further Exploit the Value Of Carbon Assets

Continuously reducing the LCOE is a long-term goal
pursued by the Group. The Group will continue
to center on the core concept of “lowest LCOE”
to create greater values and further enhance the
awareness of operational excellence. By closely keep
up the electricity market reform, the Group will
establish a professional trading management team,
explore scientific trading strategies in depth, and
rapidly build its trading capacity to ensure the steady
profit growth from power generation. In addition,
the Group will continue to broaden its channels of
green electricity and green certificates, vigorously
exploring new industries and new customers,
and striving to increase the revenue from green
certificates, green electricity and carbon trading.
Keeping up with the market, active planning, the
Group will take the initiative in forming its core
competitiveness.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VIl. THE OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)

Vigorously Develop the Service Business,
Reinforce the O&M sector’'s Competitiveness

The Group will vigorously develop the service
business of renewable energy. It will actively build
up its efficiency and high-quality of O&M business
sector, its ability of analysis and improve the assets
quality, and its ability to make profits from trading
on behalf of customers. The Group will seize market
opportunities, make full use of intelligent O&M and
optimize intelligent energy management products
to actively cultivate its core competitive advantages,
in order to continuously expand and strengthen
its operation and maintenance business. For the
distributed solar and wind power plants, the Group
will actively promote financial leasing and EPCM&L
integrated services. Meanwhile, it will further
upgrade the design qualification, improve design
and service quality, to facilitate the coordinated
development of design, financial leasing, intelligent
operation and maintenance and other service
businesses.

Establish an International Investment Platform,
Gradually Create A Global Market Presence

The Group has extensive experience in renewable
power plant development, design, construction,
operation and maintenance and other fields.
Incorporating these experiences, it will establish a
professional international business team and make
its presence in international markets by building
an international investment platform, keeping up
with the international situation and world economic
trends. It will identify and select target markets for
investment by thoroughly studying related policies.
It will also actively explore business opportunities
in overseas low-carbon industries and high-tech
sectors to fulfill the collaborations and synergies of
international and domestic businesses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

S ERE R
VIl. THE OUTLOOK (CONTINUED) + - -AIERE(E)

Continuously Optimize the Quality of Asset

The Group will constantly improve its abilities
in operation and risk control, will continuously
conduct dynamic analysis of power plants to
formulate reasonable optimization strategy. Through
continuous adjustment and optimization of asset
structure, its assets quality and cash flow will be
comprehensively improved to ensure that liability-
to-asset ratio of the Group remains at a reasonable
level.

Strengthen Safety Management Efforts
to Ensure The Safety of Generation and
Construction

The Group will enhance its safety management
capability by adhering to the principle of safety first,
exercising stringent control of safety management
and continuing to implement the closed-
loop management mechanism. The Group will
consistently keep focusing on risk management and
taking system construction as effective means. It will
insist on process control, insist on target and result
orientation, enhance the primary responsibilities
assumed by business entities and the fulfillment of
responsibilities at all levels. Six key tasks are specified,
including quantitative assessment of the safety
responsibility system, management of potential
safety risks, safety training and benchmarking,
standardized safety construction, ecological
environmental protection and quality monitoring,
and on-site team safety construction. The Group will
strengthen the implementation of targeted policies
and benchmarking to achieve the safety targets of
the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VIl. THE OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)

Enhance Management and Foster Corporate
Culture to Support Rapid Business Expansion

The Group will continuously enhance its
management by leveraging its strategy, adjusting
and optimizing its organization structure reasonably,
standardizing performance management, optimizing
and strictly executing incentive mechanisms, refining
internal policies, procedures, and workflows. With
these efforts, the Group aims to comprehensively
boost work productivity. The Group will optimize
its human resources management system based on
the principle of matching strategy, organization,
talent and incentives. The Group respects the
value of talents, seeks to develop their potentials
and optimizes the incentive mechanism, fostering
a human resources management system that
can support the strategy implementation and
organizational development of the Group. Through
the building of corporate culture, the Group’s
vision and mission that demonstrate the value
and code of conduct for the Group’s employee
are clearly presented. Through management
improvement and corporate culture building, the
Group aims to comprehensively facilitate its strategy
implementation and business development.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENREEBEEAESNEAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BTES

p.. 3

IVIr. Liu

Shunxing =

BIRE L L

Ms. Liu Jianhong, aged 54, joined the Group in 2007. She has become the
Vice Chairperson of the Company since January 2016. She is also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Liu holds a Bachelor’s degree and a
Master’s degree from the Law School of Renmin University of China and an
EMBA degree from China Europe International Business School. Ms. Liu has
worked for China Energy Conservation Investment Corporation.

Mr. Liu Shunxing, aged 61, joined the Group in 2007. He has become the
Chairman of the Company since June 2009. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor’s degree of Electricity
Generation from Tianjin University and a Master’s degree of Energy Source
Economy Management from the Management College of Harbin Institute
of Technology. Mr. Liu is an executive director of the China Energy Research
Society and has worked for energy companies such as the China Energy
Conservation Investment Corporation.

BIEFESE - 6158 © R2007 FIIAREE - FEH2009F6 AREKAERA
BIZERF  BNAREEZRHMNBRAIZES - AAERBRERNEHE
BEESEGVKMRETEAEEHERARSETEEEELTENT - 8
EEBTEERMESEHIES - BRPBEEREARSEROETR -

BRA KL - 545 72007 FIMAKEME - G 201651 Areakn VTR
AZEIERE  MAAERZRHBARZES - AL THARHAR Jianhong

REZSERBL BIBULMTHERIBRRRSRERAETIRE
R - R EEREIRE A RER

Mr. Gui Kai
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Mr. Gui Kai, aged 64, joined the Group in 2015. He has become the Chief
Executive Officer (“the CEO") of the Company since August 2020. He is also
a director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Gui holds a Bachelor’s
degree from the School of Mining Engineering of Anhui University of
Science & Technology and a Master’s degree from the Energy School of
China University of Mining and Technology. He has worked for China Energy
Investment Corporation.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREEEEABNEAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

BiTES (&)

Mr. Zhai Feng, aged 56, joined the Group in 2019. He has become
an Executive Director of the Company since January 2020. He holds a
Bachelor's degree in law from Fudan University and a Master's degree in
Business Administration from Peking University. He has worked for Shanghai
Shenhua Holdings Company Limited and Guangfa Bank.
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Mr. Niu

Wenhui

4

EYMEE

Mr. Niu Wenhui, aged 52, joined the Group in 2010. He is the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company and has become an Executive director of
the Company since January 2017. He is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Niu holds a Bachelor's degree of Financial Accounting
from Hangzhou Institute of Electronics Technology and a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from Beihang University. He has worked for China
Ruilian Industrial Group and Rainbow Group.
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Ms. Shang Jia, aged 59, joined the Group in 2011. She has become an
Executive director of the Company since April 2021. She is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Shang holds a Bachelor’s degree of
Industrial Economic & Management from Zhongnan University of Economics
and Law and has worked for Hunan Electricity Supervision Office of the
State Electricity Regulatory Commission.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FPITES

Mr. Wang Feng, aged 53, has been a non-executive director of the
Company since February 2019. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’s degree in Hohai
University and a Master’s degree in North China Electric Power University.
Mr. Wang is currently the vice general manager of Huadian New Energy
Corporation Limited.

FigEXE 535 B219F2ARARARARIZIFNTES - TRERHA
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

BYFHTES

Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry, aged 77, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2006. He holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the University of Strathclyde, Glasgow, in the United
Kingdom. He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yap is also an independent non-
executive director of Frontier Services Group Limited, which is listed on The
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and Brockman Mining Limited, which is listed
on The Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Australian Securities Exchange.
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Dr. Jesse Zhixi Fang, aged 76, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since January 2018. He holds a Bachelor’s
degree from Fudan University, a doctorate degree from the Universaity of
Nebraska-Lincoln and Postdoctoral Degree of University of lllinois. Dr. Fang
was a professor at Kansas State University and Intel Vice President (US)
and founded Intel Labs China, ILC as its first dean. Dr. Fang is currently a
consultant at Shanghai Processor Technology Innovation Center.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGEEEEABNEAESR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

BYFHTES(E)

Ms. Huang Jian, aged 54, has been an independent non-executive director
of the Company since December 2012. Ms. Huang holds a Bachelor's degree
and a Master’s degree from the Central University of Finance and Economics
of the PRC. She is also a certified public accountant in the PRC. Ms. Huang
was member of SME Board Pubic Offering Review Committee of the China
Securities Regulatory Commission and partner of ShineWing Certified Public
Accountants and is currently an independent non-executive director of
Hygon Information Technology Co., Ltd., which is listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange Science and Technology Innovation Board.
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Mr. Zhang Zhong, aged 54, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since June 2018. Mr. Zhang holds a Bachelor’s
degree and a Master of Laws degree from Renmin University of China
and is currently a partner of Zhong Lun Law Firm and an independent
non-executive director of Sinotruk (Hong Kong) Limited, which is listed on

The Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Ms. Li Yongli®
FKELZL
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Ms. Li Yongli, aged 59, has been an independent non-executive director of
the Company since May 2022. Ms. Li holds Bachelor’s degree and Master’s
degree in Electric Power System Automation from Tianjin University and PhD
degree in electrical engineering from University Liber De Bruxelles in Belgium
and is currently a professor and doctoral advisor of the School of Electrical
and Information Engineering in Tianjin University.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BEEEAR

Mr. Lu
Yichuan

Bl %E

Mr. Lu Yichuan, aged 44, joined the Group in 2019. He is the Chief
Technology Officer of the Company. Mr. Lu holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Electrical Engineering from Southeast University, a Master’s degree in
Electrical Engineering from RWTH Aachen University and a Ph. D in Electrical
Engineering from the University of Dortmund. Mr. Lu has worked for
Longyuan Power Group and the Energy Foundation.
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Mr. Wang Xigang, aged 43, joined the Group in 2009. He is the Vice
President of the Company. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics
from China Youth University of Political Studies and an MBA degree from
Peking University. He has worked for Aviation Industry Corporation of China.
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Mr. Wang Meihai, aged 50, joined the Group in 2019. He is the Vice
President of the Company. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Management from Harbin University of Technology. Mr. Wang has worked
for Datang Corporation.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGEEEEABNEAESR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

BEEEAR(E)

Mr. Gui Bo ]

R EE

Mr. Gui Bo, aged 45, joined the Group in 2018. He is the Vice President
of the Company. Mr. Gui holds a Bachelor’s degree in Mechanical Design
and Manufacturing from Qingdao University and a Master’s degree in Solid
Mechanics from University of Science and Technology Beijing. Mr. Gui has
worked for China Longyuan Power Group Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Zhou Xiaole, aged 42, joined the Group in 2007. He is the Vice
President of the Company. Mr. Zhou holds a Bachelor’s degree in Electronic
Information and Business Administration from Inner Mongolia University
of Technology and a Master's degree in Corporate Communications from
Marietta University in the United States of America. Mr. Zhou has worked

for Yili Group.
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Mr. Chen Shengjun, aged 49, joined the Group in 2022. He is the Vice
President of the Company. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor's degree in Precision
Instrumentation from Tsinghua University and a Master’s degree in Industrial
Engineering from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr.
Chen has worked for Jisheng Xingtai (Beijing) Technology Company Limited
and Ningbo CRRC New Energy Technology Company Limited.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit
their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 ( the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, BUSINESS REVIEW AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note
52 to the consolidated financial statements. Further discussion
and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business,
can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set
out on pages 10 to 43 of this annual report. This discussion
forms part of this report of the Directors. An analysis of the
Group’s income and contribution to operating profit for the
Year is set out in Notes 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 102. The
interim and final dividends for the Year are set out in Note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Company during the Year

are set out on pages 106 and 287 and in Note 51 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment

of the Group and of the Company are set out in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
repurchased a total of 384,130,000 ordinary shares of the
Company for an aggregate consideration of HK$250,947,000
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The repurchased
shares were subsequently cancelled by the Company and the
issued share capital of the Company was reduced thereon.
Details of the share repurchases during the Year are as follows:
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Purchase price per share

BREEE
Number of
share
repurchased
and cancelled Aggregate
Month BE R Highest Lowest amount
A& HERMDEE B=E RIEE M
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
March 2022 38,740,000 0.69 0.62 25,976,200
202243 A
October 2022 73,540,000 0.65 0.60 45,674,900
2022410 A
November 2022 191,390,000 0.69 0.60 124,717,700
202211 A
December 2022 80,460,000 0.70 0.66 54,578,200
202212
Total
et 384,130,000 250,947,000

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
purchased a total of 21,750,000 ordinary shares of the Company
through Tricor Trust (Hong Kong) Limited, the trustee engaged
by the Company for purpose of satisfying the share awards
under the Share Award Scheme adopted by the Board.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
December 2022 are set out on Note 51 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, and of the assets, liabilities and
equities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 292.

DIVIDEND

The board of Directors recommends to declare a final dividend
of HK$0.035 per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: HK$0.03), subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Based on the number of issued ordinary shares as of
the date of approving these consolidated financial statements,
the proposed final dividend amounted to HK$302,053,000.
These consolidated financial statements do not reflect this
amount as dividend payable as at 31 December 2022. It is
expected that the final dividend will be paid around the end
of June 2023. Further announcement will be made by the
Company for the date of closure of register of members.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Board has adopted a Scheme on 15 June 2015, which was
amended on 29 June 2017. The Company shall comply with the
new Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules that became effective on 1
January 2023 when granting the Awarded Shares.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to (i) recognize the contributions
of the Employees; (ii) provide additional incentives in order to
retain the Employees to continue to work for the Group; and (iii)
attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

Duration

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board, the Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten
(10) years commencing on the Adoption Date, i.e. the Scheme
will expire on 15 June 2025.

Administration

The Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the Board
(or a committee from time to time authorized by the Board
to manage the Scheme) and the Trustee in accordance with
the rules of the Scheme and the Trust Deed. The Board may,
from time to time, at its sole discretion determine the number
of Awarded Shares to be awarded to the Selected Employees.
The Board is entitled to impose any vesting conditions, as it
deems appropriate in its absolute discretion with respect to the
entitlement of the Selected Employees to the Awarded Shares.
Any grant of the Awarded Shares to the connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company must be approved
by the independent non-executive Directors (other than the
independent non-executive Director who is the Selected
Employee). The Board shall not instruct the Trustee to deal in any
shares in the market during the period when any Director is in
possession of unpublished inside information in relation to the
Company or when the dealings in the Company’s securities by
Directors are prohibited under any code or requirement of the
Listing Rules or any applicable laws.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Scheme Limit

The Board shall not make any further award which will result in
the nominal value of Shares awarded by the Board under the
Scheme exceeding five (5) per cent of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the Adoption Date (the “Scheme Limit").

The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to a
Selected Employee under the Scheme shall not exceed one (1)
per cent of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Adoption Date (the “Individual Limit").

Each of the Scheme Limit and the Individual Limit shall be
refreshed automatically on each anniversary date of the
Adoption Date during the duration of the Scheme, such that
(i) the Scheme Limit so refreshed shall not exceed five (5) per
cent of the issued share capital of the Company as at each
anniversary date of the Adoption Date: and (ii) the Individual
Limit so refreshed shall not exceed one (1) per cent of the issued
share capital of the Company as at each anniversary date of the
Adoption Date.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Scheme
are 155,011,748, out of which 62,250,000 Shares were held by
the Trustee which representing approximately 3.538% of the
issued Shares as at the date of this annual report.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Operation of the Scheme

The Board or a committee authorized by the Board to manage
the Scheme shall (i) issued as new Shares by the Company
to the Trustee held on trust for the Selected Person or (ii)
purchased by the Trustee on the market, in either case out of
cash paid by the Company by way of settlement to the Trustee
pursuant to the terms of the Scheme. The Company shall pay
the Trustee sufficient funds for any purchase including the cost
of the Awarded Shares and the relevant expenses. The number
of unvested Shares held by the Trustee of the Scheme were
85,100,000 as at 31 December 2022.

The Board or a committee authorized by the Board to manage
the Scheme shall inform the Trustee the names of the Selected
Employees, the number of shares awarded to them, the
vesting date, the vesting conditions (if any) and other relevant
information under the Scheme and the Trust Deed. Within
20 business days (on which the trading of Shares has not
been suspended) after the Trustee receives the cash for the
acquirement of new Shares or the purchase of the Awarded
Shares, the Trustee shall apply the same towards the purchase
of the Awarded Shares at the prevailing market price at its
discretion. The Awarded Shares so purchased will be kept by the
Trustee until the relevant vesting conditions are met and until
then the Awarded Shares will be transferred to the Selected
Employees accordingly.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Vesting and Lapse

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Scheme and the
fulfillment of all vesting conditions determined by the Board, the
relevant Awarded Shares and Related Income held by the Trustee
on behalf of any Selected Employee shall vest in such Selected
Employee on the vesting date and the Trustee shall cause the
awarded shares and related income to be transferred to such
selected employee.

In the event that prior to the Vesting Date the Selected Employee
ceases to be an Employee, any unvested Awarded Shares and
Related Income that the Selected Employee is entitled to shall
lapse in accordance with the terms of the Scheme, unless the
Board determines otherwise.

Where any Awarded Share does not vest in accordance with
the relevant provision and becomes Returned Share, the Board
may grant Award(s) of such Returned Shares to other Selected
Employees subject to such conditions or limitations as the Board
may decide.

Notwithstanding any other provisions provided in the Scheme,
if there occurs an event of change of control of the Company,
whether by way of offer, merger, scheme of arrangement
or otherwise, unless the Board determines otherwise, all the
unvested Awarded Shares shall immediately vest on the date
when such change of control event becomes or is declared
unconditional and such date shall be deemed to be the Vesting
Date.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Rights

The Selected Employees shall not have any interest or rights
(including the right to vote or receive dividends) in any Awarded
Shares or in the Related Income unless and until the Trustee has
vested the ownership of such Awarded Shares in the Selected
Employees.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any
Shares held under the Trust.

Termination

The Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of the 10th
anniversary date of the Adoption Date or such date of early
termination as determined by the Board provided that such
termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of the Selected
Employees.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Details of the movements in the number of Awarded Shares
during the Year are as follows:

Number of
category of
participant

LN ]

Executive Directors

HiEs

Liu Shunxing
(Chairman)

8RE (1£)

Liu Jianhong

(Vice Chairperson)
Bl

(B12F)
GuiKai

(CEO)
i3]

(R4
Niu Wenhui
48

ZhaiFeng
B
Shang Jia
fE
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Date of grant of
Awarded Shares

RRRH2
RiLE%

4 April 201913
201954 A48
18 October 202123
202145107188
4 April 201913
20194748
18 October 202123
2001 F105 188
2 April 201913
201984728
15 October 202123
20110158
2 April 201913
2019F4 A28
15 October 202123
2001 F10A158
15 October 202123
20015108158
2 April 201913
201984728
15 October 202123
201 F10A158

Number of
Awarded Shares
unvested as at

1 January 2022
RA2E1A1A8
882
RERGHE
9,000,000
8,000,000
7,500,000
6,000,000
4,000,000
4,000,000
4,000,000
4,000,000
4,000,000

2,000,000

4,000,000

Number of
Awarded Shares
granted during
the Year

KEEEREZ
RHRBER

IRt B (F)

Number of
Awarded Shares
vested during
the Year®

KEECERZ
RRRHEE

4,500,000

2,000,000

3,750,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

AEZERROBENESFHEOT

Number of Number of Number of
Awarded Shares ~ Awarded Shares  Awarded Shares
cancelled during lapsed during unvested as at

the Year the Year 31 December 2022
RnE128318
FEEEHHE  REEBRHZ REEZ

RRRHEA ERRHEA ERRHEA

= = 4,500,000

= = 6,000,000

= = 3,750,000

= = 4,500,000

= = 2,000,000

= = 3,000,000

= = 2,000,000

- - 3,000,000

- - 3,000,000

= = 1,000,000

= = 3,000,000
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERE
SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) MR 1D R B8 (5)
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
Number of Awarded Shares  Awarded Shares ~ Awarded Shares ~ Awarded Shares  Awarded Shares  Awarded Shares
category of Date of grant of unvested as at granted during vested during  cancelled during lapsed during unvested as at
participant Awarded Shares 1 January 2022 the Year the Year® the Year the Year 31 December 2022
R20251818 R0NE12ANA
RERHZ BBz REEERMz  AFECHEZ  AEEEEEz  REERAW AEEZ
SEAREIEN REAH RERHEE ot e REROHE RBRAHHE RBRHHE RERHEE
Non-executive Directors
FHTES
Wang Feng 15 October 202123 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 - -
T 201%10A 158
Independent
non-executive Directors
BUFHTES
Yap Fat SuanHenry 2 April 201913 900,000 — 450,000 — — 450,000
L3 01954428
15 October 20212.3 1,000,000 - 250,000 - - 750,000
201£10A 158
Jesse Zhixi Fang 2 April 201913 900,000 - 450,000 - - 450,000
JiPA: 201954728
15 October 202123 1,000,000 - 250,000 - - 750,000
20110158
Huang Jian 2 April 201913 900,000 - 450,000 - - 450,000
& 201954428
15 October 20212.3 1,000,000 - 250,000 - - 750,000
2021E10A15H
Zhang Zhong 2 April 201913 900,000 - 450,000 - - 450,000
i 201964728
15 October 202123 1,000,000 - 250,000 - - 750,000
201 F10A 158
Subtotal 65,600,000 = 23,550,000 1,500,000 - 40,550,000
ki
Other employees 2 Apri 201913 32,700,000 - 16,350,000 - - 16,350,000
EfbER 201954428
15 October 20212.3 37,600,000 - 9,400,000 — - 28,200,000
2001£10A 158
21 April 20223+ = 3,000,000°57 3,000,000¢ — — -
W00254RNA
Total 135,900,000 3,000,000 52,300,000 1,500,000 — 85,100,000
g3

aHEREBERAR

2022 F R
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1.

Vesting period

Percentage of the
Awarded Shares
to be vested

15 February 2020 25%
15 February 2021 25%
15 February 2022 25%
15 February 2023 25%

Vesting period

Percentage of the
Awarded Shares
to be vested

15 February 2022 25%
15 February 2023 25%
15 February 2024 25%
15 February 2025 25%

The grant price was nil.

The fair value of the Awarded Shares at the date of grant was
HK$0.71 per Share and vested on 10 May 2022.

The fair value of the Awarded Shares was determined based on
the published closing price of the Shares at the date of grant.
The Group has adopted the accounting standard in accordance
with HKFRS 2 — Share-based Payment and for the details
of accounting policy applied, please refer to Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements contained in this annual report.

The Awarded Shares granted during the year ended 31 December
2022 were made without any performance targets.

The closing price immediately before the date on which the
Awarded Shares were granted on 21 April 2022 was HK$0.74 per
Share.

The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately
before the dates on which the awards were vested in 2022 was
approximately HK$0.65 per Share.

The above grants were made prior to the amendments to Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules taking effect.

IR 7S BT &l (&)

Kiazt -

BTrEEZ

1. REH BEROEIL
20202 A15H 25%
202192 A15H 25%
202292 A15H 25%
202392 A15H 25%

BrEEZ

2. SEH REROBEIL
202242 A15H 25%
202342 A15H 25%
202492 A15H 25%
202542 A15H 25%

3. EBHEARZ-

4. BEROABEHBHZAAEBEAREREG
0.7137C » WE 202245 A10 8RB -

5. REIRGOZASEBETRERGO AR L BN
AHRURTEET - ASECRBEEEMBERE
ERIE 25 — UMD FTIRPZ ST E
Al - BRAFTEMSTBORFE - F2HAF®
Frakim e B R I5E3 ©

6. REZE2022F12 A31HILFE - BREKNIEE)
RN BEMERREZE -

7. BENR2022F4 821 BIREEERGD B HR
M TEAER0.74E T °

8.  EEN2022FHRENEREBBRIRG A INE
FHKRMELAFR0.658TT -

9.  LHMiEEHR EWRAE T EBSFTERRIE

H oo
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Shunxing
Ms. Liu Jianhong
Mr. Gui Kai

Mr. Niu Wenhui
Mr. Zhai Feng
Ms. Shang Jia

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Feng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry

Dr. Jesse Zhixi Fang

Ms. Huang Jian

Mr. Zhang Zhong

Ms. Li Yongli (appointed on 19 May 2022)

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Zhai Feng, Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry, Dr. Jesse Zhixi Fang and
Ms. Huang Jian shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

All the non-executive Directors are appointed for as specific term
and will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the Year and
the Company considered that they are independent.

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 44 to 49 of the annual report.

HEFEREEERAT
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DIRECTORS’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which requires the Company to give a period of notice of more
than one year, or to pay compensation or make other payments
equivalent to more than one year’s emolument.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business
to which the Company or any of its fellow subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors nor their respective associates had an
interest in a business, apart from the businesses of the Group,
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant to Rule 8.10
of the Listing Rules during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/ OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions
of each Director and chief executive in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the ”"Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the”Model
Code”) under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), or known to the
Company, were as follows:

EEZRBEN

MEESHARFFAREARRBRTEB
—FRAME N IFLAFNEE—FHE
ZEREREMN R ZRIFEL -

EENEHNZ RS

ARREEHERNARRXEEMNRRMBE A
BIFT T M A 7N 6 JE 4 SR R ol AR 6F T2 O A f] BRE P
DAFEAUAREXBH s BEAZEME
WP EESEEERE AR

EERHFRBPAER

FA- BESFARSEEZBEARRE L
AR 8. 10 RN B R HIZ S MEBAK
BR A RS F 2 E G (RERBEBERIN)
PRE S o

EERFETHRABRAEA QAR EMBE
DRZKRH - HERORESTHEE 2
#BRRKE

M2022F12H318 - FEZ= LT ETHAR
RARBSEFMBERR(EEEFS LD
BEOI([FH RG] EXVER) 2 &k -
EEER D REHTHE D RSN AR R)ARE
BHENMIERPIEIS2EFE 2B MR #
@ RAE - KERIEES REE G XV EBL
BRBMERSMBRAT (B EH LT
MAN(T ETRA D T EMARESTHETESFR
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/ OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(CONTINUED)

(i) Long positions in the shares of the Company (the

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

EERIRTBRAEBRARQ AR E[AEE
[REZBRD - HERORESTRE &
BRNKR(E)

() RAEQXFRG (RG] ZHEA :

Approximate percentage of the total issued share capital
EERTRABHZBAOB I (%)

“Shares"):

Name of the Directors Personal Family
Espe fBA EN
Liu Shunxing 37,500,000 =
2B R

Liu Jianhong 29,710,000 =
B

Gui Kai 15,600,000 -
i3l

Niu Wenhui 16,000,000 —
4XE

Zhai Feng 4,000,000 —
Shang Jia 8,000,000 —
e

Yap Fat Suan, Henry 3,000,000 =
359713

Jesse Zhixi Fang 2,800,000 —
pd

Huang Jian 2,800,000 —
Zhang Zhong 2,800,000 —
RA

Approximate

percentage of

the total issued

share capital

Corporate Total (HEBITRAMAEH
AR #st ZBRES
1,733,724,242! 1,771,224,242 19.73
150,000,000 179,710,000° 2.00
— 15,600,000 0.17

— 16,000,000 0.18

— 4,000,000 0.04

— 8,000,000 0.09

= 3,000,000 0.03

— 2,800,000 0.03

— 2,800,000 0.03

— 2,800,000 0.03

HEHEREEARAR
2022 4§
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/ OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(CONTINUED)

(i) Long positions in the shares of the Company (the
“Shares”): (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. 1,002,877,155 Shares are held by China Wind Power
Investment Limited (“CWPI") and 730,847,087 Shares are
held by Splendor Power Limited. CWPI is wholly-owned by
Permanent Growth Limited. Mr. Liu Shunxing held as to
46.77% of the issued shares of Permanent Growth Limited
and held as to 99% of the issued shares of Splendor Power
Limited. Mr. Liu Shunxing beneficially holds 37,500,000
Shares.

2. 150,000,000 Shares are held by a discretionary trust for
which Ms. Liu Jianhong is the founder and settlor and Ms.
Liu Jianhong beneficially holds 29,710,000 Shares.

EERIRTBRAEBRARQ AR E[AEE
DA ZBRD - MERORESPHEE &
BRNKR(E)

() RAEXFRG (KRG ZHR: (&)

MEE

1. China Wind Power Investment
Limited ([CWPI]) #§ £1,002,877,155
f% » Splendor Power Limited$ &
730,847,087 & - CWPI | Permanent
Growth Limited & & # & - 2 JI§ # %
£ #F B Permanent Growth Limited 2
46.77% 2 % 17 i {0 & Splendor Power
Limited 2 99% B2 & 17 i {7 - 21 IR 85
HEE#=F5A 37,500,000 AR (D

2. 150,000,000 /& & A =T E -
REA LT AZERETZEMARE
A o B4+ EF 25355 29,710,000
R o
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/ OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(CONTINUED)

(ii) Long positions in the underlying Shares:

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of
the directors and chief executives of the Company and/or
any of their respective associates had any interest or short
position in the shares , underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and/or any of its associated corporations
( within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO , or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO or the Model Code adopted by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and/or Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying shares and Debentures of the Company or any
Associated Corporation” above, at no time during the Year
was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or associated
corporations, a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
(including their respective spouse and children under the age of
18) to acquire benefits by the means of the acquisition of the
shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any of its associated corporations.

HEHEREEARAR
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EERIRTBRAEBRARQ AR E[AEE
DA ZBRD - MERORESPHEE &
BRNKR(E)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2022, save as disclosed under the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and/or Short Positions
in the Shares, Underlying shares and Debentures of the
Company or any Associated Corporation” above, the Company
had been notified of the following substantial shareholders’
interests, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share
capital under Section 336 of the SFO.

(i) Long positions in the Shares:

FERR

R2022F 128318 B EXIEEREETT
BABRAERB R MEE RG] 2G5 - B
RO RESFRHEB ZE=R KB ] —HFT
WEEIN - AARENE THEZ A (B
IRAR B 5 X B R0 55 336 5 A A R B 81T %
ANFR 5% B A E AR o

() RROzZEFE:

Approximate percentage
of the total issued

Number of the share capital

Name of shareholder Shares held HERTREAEHS >

IREREH RERHEE BHABESHE

(%)

CWPI 1,002,877,155' 11.17

Huadian Fuxin 880,000,000 9.80
EBRI

Splendor Power Limited 730,847,087 8.14

Notes: Biat -

1. The Shares are held by CWPI, which is wholly owned by
Permanent Growth Limited. Mr. Liu Shunxing held as to 46.77%
of the issued shares of Permanent Growth Limited.

2. The Shares are held by Splendor Power Limited. Mr. Liu Shunxing
held as to 99% of the issued shares of Splendor Power Limited.

1. % % I& 15 B CWPIHF & - CWPI i Permanent
Growth Limited 2 & # A - ZIIEHE L £ 5
Permanent Growth Limited 2 46.77 % & 3 17A%

{/\ °

2. #Z5R& {9 Splendor Power Limited #75 2B
5 9 4 %5 75 Splendor Power Limited 99% 2 E
BITRRD o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, there were
no other persons who had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company against all losses and liabilities & etc.
which they may incur or sustain by reason about the execution
of their duties, provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to any of the Directors. The Company has also arranged
appropriate Directors’ and liability insurance coverage for the
Directors and officers of the Group.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s largest 5 customers
accounted for 57.8% of the total sales for the Year, and the
largest customer included there in amounted to 15.3%.

Purchases from the Group’s 5 largest suppliers accounted for
59.5% of the total purchases for the Year, and the largest
supplier included therein amounted to 17.6%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital, had interests in the major suppliers
or customers noted above.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy for its employees is set up and
approved by the Remuneration Committee and the Board on
the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee and the Board, as authorised by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting, having regarded
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share award scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the share
award scheme are set out in the Report of the Directors on
pages 52 to 60 of the annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 70 to 92 of the annual
report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of all related party transactions during the Year is set
out in Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements. All the
related party transactions described in this note do not fall under
the definition of connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there was sufficient of public float of the
Company’s securities as required under the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

KPMG were appointed as auditors of the Company on 20
November 2020 upon the resignation of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
KPMG who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Shunxing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 February 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate
governance.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board
has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance practices and
is satisfied that the Company has complied with the code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”)
set out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Upon
enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company has also established and adopted internal
guidelines for securities transactions by relevant employees (the
“Employees Guidelines”) which are on no less exacting terms
than the Model Code. Specified employees who are likely to be
in possession of unpublished inside information related to the
Company and its securities must comply with the Employees
Guidelines.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy adopted by the Company in 2019 is
intended to be prudent and sustainable, and will be evaluated
from time to time. There is no assurance that dividends will be
paid in any particular amount for any particular period. Subject
to compliance with applicable rules and regulations, the Board
may, at its discretion, determine the declaration of payment of
dividend(s) to its shareholders in any amount, frequency in any
financial year depending on, among other things, the Company’s
operation and financial performance, liquidity condition, capital
requirements, future funding needs, contractual restrictions,
availability of reserves and prevailing economic climate.
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THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprised of twelve
Directors, including six executive Directors, one non-executive
Director and five independent non-executive Directors. On
19 May 2022, Ms. Li Yongli was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director. Biographical details of the Directors are
stated under the section “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management”.

The major shareholder of the Company, CWPI holds
1,002,877,155 shares of the Company. CWPI is held indirectly
by, amongst others, two executive Directors namely, Mr. Liu
Shunxing and Ms. Liu Jianhong.

Save as disclosed above, there are no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships between the Board
members.

For a Director to be considered independent, that director
should not have any direct or indirect material interest in the
Group. In determining the independence of Directors, the Board
follows the requirement set out in the Listing Rules. Each of
the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

All the non-executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors (“INEDs")) are appointed for a specific term
and will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting of the Company.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to, and
overseeing, the functioning of the Board to ensure that the
Board acts in the best interest for the Group. The Chairman is
responsible for approving the agenda for each Board meeting,
after taking into account the matters proposed by other
Directors. With the support of the executive Directors and
the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely
manner. The Chairman also actively encourages all Directors to
be fully engaged in the Board’s affairs and make contributions
to the Board’s functions. The Board has adopted good corporate
governance practices and procedures and has taken appropriate
steps to provide effective communication with shareholders.

The CEO is responsible for managing the business of the
Group, attending to the formulation and implementation of
group policies, and assuming full accountability for the Group’s
operations. Acting as the principal manager of the Group’s
business, the CEO develops a strategic operating plan that
reflects the long-term objectives and priorities established
by the Board, and is directly responsible for maintaining the
operational performance of the Group. Working with the senior
management and the Board, the CEO ensures that the funding
requirements of the business are met and closely monitors the
operating and financial results against the plans and budgets.
He also takes remedial actions when necessary and advises the
Board of any significant developments and issues of the Group.

Ongoing dialogues are maintained with all Directors to keep
them fully informed of all major business developments and
issues.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

The Board meets regularly, and at least 4 times a year. Between

meetings, senior management of the Group provides to

Directors the information on the activities and developments in

the business of the Group on a timely basis and when required,

additional Board meetings are held. In addition, Directors have

full access to the information of the Group and the independent

professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the

Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2022, a total of

19 board meetings and 3 general meetings (2022 AGM" and
2 "2022 SGMs") were held and the attendance of each Director

is set out below:
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B
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T
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. Ms. Li Yongli was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 19 May 2022.

2. 2022 SGMs were held on 15 August and 19 September 2022.

3. 2022 AGM was held on 24 June 2022.
Professional training for Directors

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
should always know their collective responsibilities as Directors
and of the businesses and activities of the Group. Each newly
appointed Director would receive an induction package covering
the Group’s businesses and the statutory and regulatory
obligations of a director of a listed company. The Group also
provides briefings and other training to develop and refresh the
Directors’ knowledge and skills, and updates all Directors on
the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
to enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all existing Directors
have received relevant trainings by reading relevant materials on
the topics relating to corporate governance and regulations and
have provided their training records, which is set out on page 73
of this report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board
has reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management.
The Board has also reviewed and ensured compliance of
the relevant legal and regulatory requirements. Besides, the
Company has set up four committees including the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee
and Environmental, Social and Governance Committee (“ESG
Committee”). Each committee has its specific terms of
reference with reference to the Code:
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Board Independence

The Board always maintains its independence. As at 31
December 2022, one was non-executive Director and five out of
our twelve Directors were independent non-executive Directors.

Board independence is regularly and consistently reviewed and
maintained, including through:

—  Strict compliance with our code of conduct, which aims to
avoid conflicts of interest;

—  Separate discussions amongst independent non-executive
Directors and Chairman, without the presence of other
executive Directors to provide independent views and
input;

—  Full disclosure in annual reports of cross-directorships
or other business relationships that may interfere with
Director’s independence;

— Independent professional advice, as and when required by
individual Directors; and

—  Review by Nomination Committee of potential conflicts of
interest and recommendation appropriate actions to take.

The Nominations Committee will review the implementation
of the Nomination Policy at least annually, including the
mechanisms for ensuring independent views and input are
available to the Board, and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board for the Board's review and
approval to ensure its effectiveness.

As at the date of this Report, the Board, through the
Nominations Committee, has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the abovementioned mechanisms to ensure that
independent views and input are available to the Board.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee carried out a
detailed review of the Directors’ independence and was satisfied
that each of the five independent non-executive Directors was
independent at the time of review.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Zhang Zhong with
Ms. Liu Jianhong and Dr. Jesse Zhixi Fang being the members.
The Remuneration Committee meets for the determination of
the remuneration packages of Directors and senior management
of the Group. In addition, the Remuneration Committee also
meets as and when required to consider remuneration related
matters such as making recommendations to the Board on the
Group's policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors
and senior management, review and approve matters relating to
share schemes.

Under its term of reference, the Remuneration Committee assists
the Board in achieving its objective of attracting, retaining and
motivating people of the highest caliber and experience needed
to shape and execute strategies across the Group’s operations.
The Committee also assists the Group in the administration of
the fair and transparent procedure for setting policies on the
remuneration of Directors and senior management of the Group.
The written terms of reference are posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Total remuneration of senior management other than Directors
for the year ended 31 December 2022 is as follow:
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee (CONTINUED)

The Company’'s objective of its remuneration policy is to
maintain fair and competitive packages based on business
requirements and industry practice. In order to determine the
level of remuneration including but not limit to, fees and salaries
paid, and award shares and share options granted to members
of the Board of Directors and the senior management, market
rates and factors such as each director’s workload, performance,
job complexity and the Group’s performance are taken into
account.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has held
3 meetings with all members present. The Committee has
reviewed the remuneration packages for Directors and senior
management of the Group.

Executive Directors’ remuneration packages may comprise fixed
and variable components linking to individual and the Group’s
performance. For independent non-executive Directors, they
may receive fixed fee and award shares/share options to be
set at an appropriate level to attract and retain first-class non-
executive talent by reference to the relevant time commitment
and the size and complexity of the Group and benchmarked
against a peer group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
share award scheme, approved and proposed to the Board for
approval the Awarded Shares granted to the Selected Persons.

In determining the number of the Awarded Shares, the
Remuneration Committee has mainly considered the following
factors:

(@)  the seniority and the importance of the work position,
taking into account the background of the Grantees;

(b)  the contribution of the Grantees;
(c)  the individual performance of the Grantees; and

(d) the Group’s overall business performance, objectives and
future development plan.

The Remuneration Committee believes that the future success
of the Group is closely tied to the commitment and efforts
of the Grantees, and the Awards were made to them in
recognition of their past contribution to the development
and business performance of the Group and as an incentive
for their continuing commitment and contribution towards
the sustainable growth of the Group. The Remuneration
Committee is of the view that the terms of the Awards are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its
Shareholders as a whole.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely

Mr. Liu Shunxing (Chairman), Ms. Huang Jian and Ms. Li Yongli.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has held 1 meeting

with all members present.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been

determined with reference to the Code and are posted on the

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee are as

follows:

(a)

to review the structure, size and diversity (including
without limitation, gender , age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills ,
knowledge and length of service) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships. In identifying suitable individuals, the
Nomination Committee shall consider individuals on merit
and against the objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board,

to assess the independence of INEDs with reference to the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules;

to review the Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and review
the measurable objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the Diversity Policy, and the progress on
achieving the objectives;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee (CONTINUED)

() to make recommendations to the Board on the

appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession

planning for directors, in particular the chairman and

the chief executive, taking into the Company’s corporate

strategy and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and

diversity needed in the future; and

(f)  the chairman or another member of the committee shall

attend the Company’s annual general meetings and be

prepared to respond to questions raised by shareholders

on the committee’s activities and responsibilities.

The Nomination Committee has been provided with sufficient

resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent

professional advice according to the Diversity Policy and its terms

of reference, if considered necessary.

The nomination policy stipulated the key nomination criteria

and procedures for identifying and nominating suitably qualified

candidates to join the Board. The selection criteria specified in

the nomination policy include:

1.  Selection Criteria

in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate,
the Nomination Committee will consider the factors
(as reference), including reputation, integrity,
accomplishment and relevant experience in relation
to the principal businesses of the Company from
time to time, commitment in respect of available
time and relevant interest, diversity in all its aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age (18 years
or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. These factors are for reference
only, and not meant to be exhaustive and decisive.
The Nomination Committee has the discretion to
nominate any person, as it considers appropriate;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee (CONTINUED)

1.  Selection Criteria (CONTINUED)

retiring Directors are eligible for nomination by the
Board to stand for re-election at a general meeting.
For those who have served as INEDs for a period
of nine consecutive years standing for re-election,
the Nomination Committee will consider the
independence of such Director for nomination by the
Board to stand for election at a general meeting and
state the reason in the circular to the Shareholders
for the re-election;

2. Nomination Procedures

the secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call
a meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidate(s) from Board members if
any, for consideration by the Nomination Committee
prior to its meeting. The Nomination Committee
may also put forward candidate(s) who are not
nominated by Board members;

for filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board’s consideration and approval. For proposing
candidate(s) to stand for election at a general
meeting, the Nomination Committee shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation;

for proposing candidates to stand for election at a
general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall
make nominations to the Board for its consideration
and recommendation;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee (CONTINUED)

2.  Nomination Procedures (CONTINUED)

a circular will be sent to the shareholders of
the Company to provide them with the name,
brief biography, proposed remuneration, (where
an independent non-executive director is to be
nominated) independency and other information
of the proposing candidate in accordance with
the requirements of the applicable laws, rules and
regulations including those of the Listing Rules;

a shareholder can serve a written notice to the
Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary of his or her intention to propose a certain
person for election as a director. This written notice,
together with (i) the information of the candidate as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules and such other information as may be
considered relevant to his or her proposed election;
and (ii) the written consent by that person to the
publication of his or her personal data provided
pursuant to immediately above, by the Company
in its corporation communication documents in
compliance with the Listing Rules or as may be
required by the Stock Exchange at the principal place
of business in Hong Kong of the Company for a
period of no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice of the meeting and ending no later
than 7 days prior to the date of the general meeting;
and

the Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at any general meeting.

In respect of the Diversity Policy (as defined below), the Board

is cognisant of the benefits of diversity and the Nomination

Committee monitors implementation of this policy as part of the

process of selecting and nominating candidates for appointment

to the Board. Candidates are considered against the broad and

diverse range of aspects specified in the nomination policy,

which among other aspects also include gender, ethnicity and

cultural background.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity
Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company considered diversity of board members
can be achieved through consideration of a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All board appointments are based on merit
and contribution, and candidates are considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. The Nomination Committee reviews the Diversity
Policy on a regular basis and discusses any revisions that may
be required, and recommends any such revisions to the Board
for consideration and approval. The Board considers that the
current board composition is from diverse and complementary
backgrounds and that it meets the criteria of the board diversity
policy. The valuable experience and expertise they bring to our
business are critical for the long-term growth of the Group. As
of the date of this report, the Board comprises eight male and
four female Directors. During the Year, the Board reviewed the
board diversity policy to ensure its continued effectiveness.

In order to maintain gender diversity, similar considerations will
be taken when recruiting and selecting senior management
and employees of different categories. During the Year, we
maintained a 83:17 ratio of men to women in the workplace.
For details, please refer to our “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” published by the Group.

Having reviewed the Diversity Policy, the nomination policy and
the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee is satisfied
that the requirements set out in the Diversity Policy had been
met.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Yap
Fat Suan, Henry and the other members of the Committee are
Mr. Zhang Zhong and Ms. Huang Jian. Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry
is a chartered accountant in England and Wales and is a fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with
the Code and are posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. Under its terms of reference, the Audit
Committee is required, amongst other things, to oversee the
relationship with the external auditors, to review the Group’s
interim and annual financial statements, to review the scope,
extent and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control system, and to review the Group’s financial and
accounting policies.

The Audit Committee has held 3 meetings during the Year with
all members present.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors.
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ESG COMMITTEE

The ESG Committee comprises three Directors and is chaired by
Ms. Liu Jianhong. The other members of the Committee are Mr.
Gui Kai and Ms. Li Yongli. During the Year, the ESG Committee
has held 1 meeting with all members present.

The duties of the ESG Committee shall include:

(@)  To give recommendations about the Group’s ESG strategies
and identify significant ESG risks and opportunities.

(b)  To approve and review ESG-related policies.

(c)  To monitor the effectiveness of ESG management.

(d)  To review the ESG report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

A summary of fees for audit and non-audit services is as
follows:
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Company has formulated risk management and internal
control policies covering the management of targets,
management of values and management of beliefs, and has
established a set of risk management and internal control
procedures encompassing the Company’s organisational,
institutional, procedural systems as well as information system,
in order to safeguard the Company’s assets and shareholders’
investment by means of ensuring that risk control and strategic
goals are compatible and within the manageable scope, ensuring
the proper maintenance of accounting records and reliability of
financial reporting, and ensuring the compliance with relevant
laws and regulations.

In addition, the Board believes that the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions as well as the ESG performance
and reporting functions have been performed by staff with the
appropriate qualifications and experience and that such staff
receives appropriate and sufficient training and development.
Based on the report of the Audit Committee, the Board also
believes that sufficient resources have been obtained for the
Company’s internal audit function and that its staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budgets etc., are
sufficient.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and the review of their
effectiveness, which is responsible and reports to the Board. The
committee is responsible for the design, implementation and
monitoring of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system, in order to ensure the continuous effectiveness of the
system.

The Company has formulated regulations and systems
relevant to risk management and internal control, including
the “Risk Management System”, “Internal Control and Work
Management Guidelines”, "Anti-corruption Management
System”, “Internal Audit Management System”, “Audit
Management Guidelines for Employment Termination” and
“Professional Ethics and Code of Conduct”, etc. The risk
management and internal monitoring system aims to ensure
the formulation and effective implementation of financial,
operational and regulatory monitoring and risk management
functions. The process and information systems guarantee the
effective execution of the risk management and internal control
systems. Through the establishment of the process system,
the Company will be able to carry out risk identification, risk
assessment, risk response, risk monitoring and risk improvement.
During the Year, the Company has continued to carry out risk
management and internal control. Knowledge dissemination
related to risk management and internal control has been
strengthened through internal platform, covering all employees
effectively. Content promotion and fraud information collection
upholds the fundamental principles of “Prevention Precedes
Punishment” and “Protect Those Who Report, Avoid Those Who

are Being Investigated”.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

The Board has conducted a review of and is satisfied with the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system of the Group throughout the year ended 31 December
2022.

The Company has established an independent audit function.
The dedicated general manager of the function is independent
of the daily operation of the Group. The Board and the Audit
Committee believe that the internal audit function of the
Company has the capacity to independently report to the Audit
Committee in respect of the matters including audit plan and
resources, executed audit procedures and material audit findings,
and is capable to conduct analysis and independent assessment
on the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The Board reviews the materiality of the relevant information and
assess any possible impact on the Group in order to determine
the appropriate course of actions and, if considered appropriate,
a Board meeting may be convened to consider and decide
whether or not the information constitutes inside information
and disclosure shall be made immediately. The Board may seek
independent professional advice, if and when appropriate, to
ensure that the Company can timely comply with the disclosure
requirements.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view and are
in compliance with the statutory requirements and applicable
financial reporting standards. As at 31 December 2022, the
Directors were not aware of any material misstatement or
uncertainties that might put doubt on the Group’s financial
position or continue as a going concern. The Board endeavours
to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of
the Group's performance, position and prospects in financial
reporting.

A statement by the auditor about the auditor’s responsibility is
set out on pages 93 to 101 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and that the activities of the
Board are carried out efficiently and effectively. The Company
Secretary assists the Chairman to prepare agendas and Board
papers for meetings and disseminates such documents to
the Directors and board committees in a timely manner. The
Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the Board
is fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments when making decisions. The
Company Secretary is also directly responsible for the Group’s
compliance with the continuing obligations of the Listing Rules
and Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases,
including publication and dissemination of Report and Financial
Statements and interim reports within the period laid down in
the Listing Rules, timely dissemination of announcements and
information relating to the Group to the market and ensuring
that proper notification is made when there are any dealings of
the Director in the securities of the Group.

The Company Secretary also advises the Directors on their
obligations for disclosure of interests in securities, connected
transactions and price-sensitive information and ensure that
the standards and disclosures required by the Listing Rules are
observed.

During the Year, Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason, the Company
Secretary of the Company, has undertaken no less than 15 hours
of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.
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SHAREHOLDERS

To enable shareholders and other stakeholders to exercise their
rights in an informed manner based on a good understanding of
the Group’s operations, businesses and financial information, the
Company adopted the shareholders communication policy which
aims to ensure that shareholders and other stakeholders at large
are provided with ready, equal, regular and timely access to
material information about the Group. The policy also sets out a
number of ways to ensure effective and efficient communication
with shareholders and other stakeholders is achieved, including
but not limited to our results announcements, responses to
shareholders’ enquiries, corporate communications (in both
English and Chinese, to facilitate shareholders’ understanding),
posting of relevant information on the Company Website,
shareholders’ meetings and investment market communications.
For shareholders to communicate their views on various
matters affecting the Company and the Company to solicit and
understand the views of shareholders and other stakeholders,
the Company adopts a number of mechanisms, including
encouraging shareholders to participate in general meetings
or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at the meetings for
and on their behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings
and making appropriate arrangements for the annual general
meetings to encourage and facilitate shareholders’ participation.
To facilitate communication between the Company, shareholders
and the investor community, investor and analyst briefings,
one-on-one meetings, roadshows and media interviews are
organised and are attended by our directors and designated
spokespersons. In addition, the Company Website published the
Company’s announcements, press releases and other corporate
communications. During the year 2022, the Board reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders
communication policy, including the multiple communication
channels for shareholders in place and the steps taken to handle
shareholders’ enquiries, and considered that the shareholders
communication policy has been properly implemented and
effective.
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SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

How shareholders can convene a special general meeting
(IISGMII)

Subject to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(the "Act”) and Bye-law 62 of the Bye-laws of the Company,
shareholders holding in aggregate not less than 10% of the
paid-up capital of the Company have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
request a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general
meeting

Any number of shareholders representing not less than 5%
of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the
requisition or not less than 100 shareholders of the Company
are entitled to send a written requisition for a proposal for
consideration at an annual general meeting of the Company
subject to compliance with the requirements and procedures as
set out in Section 79 of the Act.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Suite 3901, 39/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 28660281

Email: cs@cnegroup.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board is committed in providing clear and full performance
information of the Group to shareholders through the
publication of interim and annual reports. In addition to the
circulars, notices and financial reports sent to shareholders,
additional information of the Group is also available to
shareholders on the Group’s website.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting for which at least 21 days’ notice is given. The
Chairman and Directors are available to answer questions on the
Group’s business at the meeting. Subject to the Act and the bye-
laws of the Company, all shareholders shall have statutory rights
to call for special general meetings and put forward agenda
items for consideration in the general meetings. All resolutions
at the general meeting are decided by a poll which is conducted
by the Group’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its effort

to promote transparency and foster investor relationships.
Comments and suggestions are always welcomed.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional document
during the Year.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Concord New Energy Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Concord New Energy Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 102 to 291, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2022, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code") together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional
judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. The
matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (CONTINUED)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYABERE

RRESEEH(E)

investment in wind power plants

HEESRERSELBE A2 EEHERMMEZTE

Assessment of potential impairment of goodwill in relation to the group of cash generating units of

FLHRF A TFRAMN T 19 R EFHEHTZE3 -

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3.

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RMAEFST PO EEERETSEE

As at 31 December 2022, the goodwill allocated to the
group of cash generating units (“CGU") of investment in
wind power plants arising on this acquisition amounted
to RMB714 million.

M2022F 124310 EEERESRERESELET
HzEmBOAREN4BET -

The Group conducted an annual impairment assessment
on goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the
relevant group of CGUs to which the goodwill has been
allocated based on their fair value less costs to disposal
using discounted cash flow method.
EEBE@EHERRBERR I ENEREELETT
BB EBEREEKRNE 2 THRESRE - 6
BRTFRRERH -

The impairment assessment performed by the
management involves the exercise of significant
management judgement, particular in estimating future
sales volumes and future on-grid tariffs as well as in the
estimation of the discount rates applied.

HEBBNTORENRAS R EREEREXHE - 1
HEMFAREEE - AR EEEEITRRERER -

We identified goodwill impairment assessment on the
group of CGUs of investment in wind power plants
as a key audit matter because the carrying amount of
the goodwill is material to the consolidated financial
statements and also because management’s judgement
and assumptions involved as part of the impairment
assessment are inherently uncertain and could be subject
to potential management bias.
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REEIR -

Our audit procedures to address potential impairment of
goodwill in relation to the group of CGUs of investment
in wind power plants included the following:
REHEESRERTELEETEZ EERERMERF
ZEEABRE

o assessing management’s identification of CGUs and
the allocation of assets to each CGU with reference
to our understanding of the Group’s business and
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
2BERMEEEEEB 2 EHFMRTERENNE
R AEERBHREELAE T ZBRIMEED
fic ;

o comparing the actual results for the current year
with management’s forecast in the previous year
to assess the historical accuracy of management’s
forecasting process and if there is any indication of
management bias;
BBLEHAFEREEEE T FEETEREEA - ¥
REBEESNTENEBZATHERETRABIE
FEEAEREY - URERBERSHFERSR

o involving our internal valuation specialists to

evaluate the valuation methodology used in
determining the recoverable amount of the relevant
group of CGUs, and assess whether the discount
rates applied in the impairment assessment were
within the ranges adopted by other companies in
the same industry;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BE R E

KEY AUDIT MATTER (CONTINUED) ARETEE(EZ)

Assessment of potential impairment of goodwill in relation to the group of cash generating units of
investment in wind power plants

HEESRERSELBE A2 EEHERMMEZTE

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3.
B[ B RTF RN T 19 R &R

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BREITER RMAEFST PO EEERETSEE

o challenging management’s basis on the estimation
of the estimated future sales volumes of wind
power plants in operation by comparing with
the historical sales volumes and on-grid tariffs
and government’s policies on on-grid tariffs and
validating management’s reason of significant
deviations, if any;

BBLHEEE  FEEBZELENARBA L
WEEBHR  BEREEEMTELRSBSAKES
EZHRFER  BIAEREARHBEIEXREER
A (wnh)

o evaluating the assumptions of the estimated sales
volumes and on-grid tariffs of wind power plants
under construction by checking to the feasibility
reports and by considering the future development
plans from the local government, on a sample
basis, and government’s policies on on-grid tariffs;
FEREOER - BERE AT RREANE
BEBBRAA KRR E - FEERRES 0%
BEN LPEEEMEFPEAZMBR,;

o evaluating management’s sensitivity analysis of the
key assumptions adopted and considering if there
were any indicators of management bias; and

AHEEIEEBHRANERKRR 2BREDN - EM
AERAFETMNEEERATR |

o assessing the reasonableness of the disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
the impairment assessment of goodwill, including
the key assumptions and sensitivities, with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.

SLBBTGAERNZ 2R FHEGEE P BRRTE
BRENGEESIEN - BERRRRMERE
&5 o
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

e REEERAT
2022 3R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZBERE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

EENGRAVBRRAREZEET(E)

EREEAMBHRRE  EFRENEERE
ERERNETHELSE  BERBEESEL
ERMCEE  UERFEKESTEAR (BE
EZEREREESEAR LS ERLME
BRERITERERIL) ©

EHEBRHHEERTEEEENERE R
R B -

BRBMRETREVBRREABEZER

B2 BE  RESAMBREABEBESIE
FEHRAFFRERME RN ERHBRBBLREG
BERE LHABRERHMERNZBEDR
& o HAIRRRCBRARBEDIDEE 90 RAAR
EEREBERE®RE o BRIt BIIHR
ST AEEMAE - LA TRAREZA
B HEMEMATEERAREREE -

BERRBRBKRFZRE - BTERERE(E
BETEADETZE - X -EXRHERRM
TrERS RE TR o 38 ARIRAM AT LA F ARRE S8R AR
5l - MRS EFRHEMEBIEMLL KA 58
FERGAVBRREMERBYBRRAEH
ZREERTE - BIERE 2 sERRIRAL AT AR FE X ©
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

HEFEREEERAT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BE R E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BB ET RSN BHRREAEZEE
(%)

o FHERAMBEHRROREIHSN - BE
MAR - BEHE  ARGEEMBHRERE
BRERRIZMERE

o HESEANERIEFIPNVHEERE
BRR - BE 2 ETEE AR
BHREAERER - ZMIAREREETZ
A EEBAEIT - RPIRERT B R AR

2HEEE -
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R R BRI A RS 2 B E AR

B

BPERBRAZERRIENR  FHARMCDH
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BBE TR A MRS ERIIE LD
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FERRBUE MR AR TT B SGE A 2 Ph #0487
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chu Man Wai.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 February 2023

HEHEREEARAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”))
HZE2022F 12 A31 HIEFE (UAREST)

2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt AR¥For ARMFor
(Restated)
(FEuh)
Revenue WA 56 2,679,368 2,195,540
Cost of sales and services rendered BRAS A AN B $H & A AN 13 (1,084,395) (875,878)
Gross profit EF 1,594,973 1,319,662
Other income EAA 7 60,132 82,735
Other gains and losses, net AU Es N E1E - R 58 8 317,810 153,563
Impairment losses under expected ERREEX
credit loss model, net of reversal 9 1,181 27,550
Distribution and selling expenses HEZH (18,814) (12,708)
Administrative expenses ERER (426,476) (337,598)
Finance costs BF TSR AR 12 (546,316) (446,120)
Share of profit of joint ventures, net EEEE RN - F5E 151,115 134,246
Share of profit of associates, net FE(RESE R Alm A - JFEE 20,004 18,265
Profit before income tax MRS B AR R 13 1,153,609 939,595
Income tax expense FrSfiFA > 14 (227,840) (121,733)
Profit for the year AEERF 925,769 817,862
Profit for the year attributable to: BEERFHEBR
Equity shareholders of the Company ZAYNSI ) ES 871,817 787,534
Non-controlling interests FEIE SIS 53,952 30,328
925,769 817,862
Earnings per share SRER 15
Basic (RMB cents) HARN (AR S) 9.90 9.46
Diluted (RMB cents) #E(ARES) 9.86 9.39

The notes on pages 110 to 291 form part of these financial F1102291 B2 MFBRZEMEREK 6
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders 5o BERESRREA S ERFOFAER - 5
of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out TIAHIFE16 ©

in Note 16.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REBREREMEERKER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in RMB)
HZE2022F 12 A31 BIEFE (UAREZIT)

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT ARETFT
(Restated)
(Et)
Profit for the year REERF 925,769 817,862
Other comprehensive income: Hit2E WK ¢
Item that may be reclassified AJEE S IEZ B o THH
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of BEBERITEER
foreign operations (16,227) 9,594
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEEKE
for the year, net of tax HBRFLE (16,227) 9,594
Total comprehensive income AEEZHINREATE
for the year 909,542 827,456
Total comprehensive income EHKZBERE :
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company iN/NE] 329 858,076 796,487
Non-controlling interests FEFEHIMERE RS 51,466 30,969
909,542 827,456

The notes on pages 110 to 291 form part of these financial

statements.

HEHEREEARAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
IIV_\/E}/E\jﬁ%;IﬁiR%

At 31 December 2022 (Expressed in RMB)

2022412 A 31 B (UAREZTR)

2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt AR¥FT AREFT
(Restated)
(&)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIZE - W= R 17 14,876,597 11,849,709
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 559,208 530,534
Intangible assets B AE 19 788,224 817,455
Interests in associates KB E AR 2 20 776,034 510,030
Interests in joint ventures RE &P S 21 1,578,123 1,273,201
Financial assets at fair value WARBERNER
through profit or loss HEEFHTABRL
TEEE 22 13,716 76,631
Prepayments, deposits and other TENFIE - BE Rk
receivables E b EUGRIA 25 1,666,400 1,354,914
Finance lease receivables rEHEE R A 26 164,993 91,426
Loan receivables RIS R 27 45,240 49,663
Deferred tax assets EIETRIEE B 37(b) 39,486 37,738
20,508,021 16,591,301
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 28 59,196 27,679
Contract assets aREE 23 206,728 345,848
Trade and bills receivable JEUE S5B R FENERYE 24 1,369,622 1,795,948
Prepayments, deposits and other BRFIE - Bk
receivables H At EUFRIA 25 615,485 981,583
Finance lease receivables BhE & R UGRIE 26 32,599 17,171
Loan receivables JEWE TR 27 16,347 9,909
Amounts due from associates JrE S BS: = N B FRIE 20 85,835 84,758
Amounts due from joint ventures JEU A &b F¥ERIA 21 90,563 29,184
Financial assets at fair value UAREEFEAEE
through profit or loss FEET AER L
CREE 22 138,841 10,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRSEEEE 29 3,471,039 3,510,470
Restricted deposits ZREFH 29 578,240 640,967
______ 6,664,495 7,453,517
Total assets EERAHE 27,172,516 24,044,818
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Bank borrowings IRITEK 33 1,285,516 765,496
Other borrowings HAER 34 10,321,434 8,786,142
Senior notes BREEE 35 = 544,107
Lease liabilities HEAE 36 98,748 77,066
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEE R 37(b) 93,522 38,089
Deferred government grants iR A T 6 B 38 4,865 5,215
Payables for construction in progress, JH B s v R 5UA -
other payables and accruals HAh e HRIB R
FEZTE R 31 745,976 541,364
Financial guarantee contract liabilities B ERERAE 39 10,602 17,115
12,560,663 10,774,594

The notes on pages 110 to 291 form part of these financial F1102291 B 2 MW BRZEM B HRE —3

statements. )
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
N S E
At 31 December 2022 (Expressed in RMB)

R 20224912 A31 B (KALEZR)

2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR¥TFT AREFT
(Restated)
(&)
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payable B E SRS &mﬁ% 30 1,262,570 1,078,538
Payables for construction in progress, THE S 2 e IR
other payables and accruals H b HRIER
et &R 31 2,736,516 3,016,253
Contract liabilities aRAaE 32 59,325 139,301
Amounts due to associates JEHM%’A IE 20 2,540 —
Amounts due to joint ventures A **/JE% 21 156 155
Bank borrowings fﬁfﬂﬁm 33 979,411 526,106
Other borrowings HAbfER 34 734,782 861,763
Senior notes BEER 35 618,905 17,029
Lease liabilities HEBE 36 13,502 11,411
Financial guarantee contract liabilities PR ERERAE 39 7,535 7,319
Current income tax liabilities FETFR1S R 37(a) 101,719 49,462
6,516,961 5,707,337
Total liabilities =Rk 19,077,624 16,481,931
Net current assets REBEEZFE 147,534 1,746,180
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERRBAE 20,655,555 18,337,481
Net assets EERE 8,094,892 7,562,887
EQUITY =
Share capital &N 40 77,443 77,499
Reserves ] 7,754,304 7,336,427
Total equity attributable to DT RRESL
equity shareholders of the ERBE
Company 7,831,747 7,413,926
Non-controlling interests FEEHIEE R 263,145 148,961
Total equity RSB 8,094,892 7,562,887
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on RZZEZ=F-A-+)\HEEFGHERK
28 February 2023. EhE -

Liu Shunxing

BI)iE 2

Chairman and Executive Director

BEFETERHTEE

The notes on pages 110 to 291 form part of these financial

statements.
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BIAT

Vice Chairperson and Executive Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HREREZEEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in RMB)

HZE2022F 12 A31 AILFE (UARESTR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARFEE
Premium
arising on
acquisition
and disposal
of non- Non-
Share  Treasury Share Contributed ~controlling ~ Exchange Other  Retained controlling Total
capital shares  premium  surplus interests  reserves  reserves  eamings  Subtotal interests  equity
(Note 0(a)) (Note 40(b)) (Note 40(c)) (Note 40(d)) (Note 40(e))
KEREE
FEs
BHfEE Fisl
By ERR REMEE  HABR  CEE  EXRE  HMRE  REEA g BE  REEE
(W 40) (i 40) (Wi 40) (W o) (it 406e))

RMBO0O  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBYO0  RMB'O0  RMB'O0  RMBOGO  RMBY0O
ABBTE ARETR ARETL ARBTE ARRTZ ARETT ARBT: ARRTZ ARRTT ARRTE ARETZ

At 1 January 2022 RANE1518 77499 (46,760) 731627 2359003  (65761) 27677 110523 4220058 7413926 148,961 7,562,887
Profit for the year KERER = = = = = - — My e 5395 925769
Other comprehensive income Ef2ENE - - - - - (13m) - —(134) (486  (16227)
Total comprehensive income FEERENEEE

for the year — — - - - (134) —  M{T 858,076 51466 909,542
Repurchase of ordinary shaes LAk

(Note 401b) (W1et 40) - (@39 - - - - - - (39851) - (39
Cancellation of treasury shares (Note 40)) TR R Wiz 40) (549 39510 (38,91) = = = = = = = =
Orcinary share issued {EBERREH

a treasury share (Note 40(3) LEBR (T 400) 493 (493) = = = = = = = = =
Vesting of shares under share KRR 5

award scheme (Note 41) (H41) - 6812 151 - = — (258 = = = =
Share-based compensation HROBEEZ R

(Note 41 (Wa1) - - - - - - 15 - 85 - 851
2021 final dividends (Note 16) W EERE (2 16) - - - - - - - (B02) (30212 - (3021
Disposalof partal interest in REMBATIAME

subsidlries - - - - - - - - - 1,105 7,105
Contribution by non-controling FERLE

interests - - - - - - 10,739 - 10739 14952 160261
Acquisition of non-controling FlERLE

interests - - - - (10,79) - - - (1079) (66,197)  (76,987)
Dividends dedared to ERRETHERE

non-controlling interests b3y - - - - - - - - - @) @n
Balance at 31 December 2022 RURENANA TA83  (240382) 708438 2359003  (76551) 13936 128197 4861603 7831747 263,145 8,094,892

The notes on pages 110 to 291 form part of these financial F1102291 B 2B F M HRE —

AN

statements. 77 °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in RMB)

HZE2022F 12 A31 BILFE (UALEEZIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

LN
Premium
arising on
acquisition
and disposal
of non- Non-
Share  Treasury Share  Contributed ~ controlling ~ Exchange Other  Retained controlling Total
capital shares premium surplusinterests  reserves  resenves  eamings  Subtotal  interests equity
(Note 40@)  (Note 40(b)) (Note 40(c) (Note 40@) ~ (Note 40(e)
WEREE
FEs
ERfEE FEiHIE
k& ERR  ROEE AR CEE  EXBE  EtER  REEA It R BasE
(et o) (Wt4op) (2400) (zae) (Wzae)
RMBO00  RMB0O0  RMBO00  RMB'OOO  RMBOOO  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMBOOO  RMB000  RMB00  RMB'000
NEETRL NRETL ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETL AEETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2021 02151818 A (32201) 313780 2399063 (65770) 18724 112479 3641381 6419868 74634 6494502
Profitfor th year (Restated) KEERHEH) - - - - - - — TS TS 3038 817862
Other comprehensive income AfprEkE - - - - - 8953 - - 8953 641 9,594
Total comprehensive income FERRENRLE
for the year - - - - - 8953 — 8153 796487 30969 82746
Conversion to ordinary shares BnLak 5,087 - 4087 - - - - — 41594 — 4159
Repurchase of ordinary shares Llkei
(ote 4000) (Wit 400) - (18409) - - - - - - (18400) - (18406)
Vesting of shares under share KB 58
award scheme (Noe 41 (Hi41) T - - - (08 - - - -
Share-based compensation WRHEEEZ R
(Note 41) (it41) - - - - - - 8%l - 88l - 88
2020 fingl dividends W0EERE - - - - - - — (208857 (208857) - (0885)
Disposal of partal interest in REMBATTAME
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 42103 0103
Contribution by non-contraling RIS E
interests — - - - - - — — — 13717 1317
Acquisiton of non-controlling SRR
interests — - - - 9 — — — 9 (260) (251)
Dividends declared to SRRE THEsM
non-controling interests B — - - - - - — — — (1220 (12200
Balance at 31 December 2021 RANENANA
(Restated) (Ed) 71499 (d6760) 731627 2399063 (65761) 27677 110523 420098 7413926 148961 7562887

The notes on pages 110 to 291 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in RMB)
HZE2022F 12 A31 AILFE (UARESTR)

2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR¥FrT ARBTFT
(Restated)
(FEat)
Cash flows from operating RELETHZ
activities HeRE
Cash generated from operations KEEBFB S 42(a) 2,526,948 1,378,616
Income tax paid SANIIEST (126,898) (75,217)
Net cash generated from operating RETHMEEZ
activities REFHE 2,400,050 1,303,399
Cash flows from investing activities REREZTBH2RERE
Payments for property, plant and equipment  BEE W% - BiE K& E (4,254,027) (2,988,348)
Payments for right-of-use assets BEGEREEE (109,293) (154,701)
Capital injection to joint ventures and an AaEhER
associate /NS EE ) (300,000) (50,060)
Net cash inflow on disposal/liquidation BRE/EEHEAR
of subsidiaries PSR FHE 42(b) 711,532 995,798
Net proceeds from disposal/liquidation RE/BEABDLE
of joint ventures FTiS 38 $58 = 193,462
Net proceeds from disposal of associates BB E AR
FRSSIRF R — 5,000
Net proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEK
plant and equipment RBATISHIBFRE  42(0) 1,197 498
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries U BE B B A B S S FE — (20)
Proceeds from disposal of other financial PEHMSREE
assets PRSRIE 6,049,039 3,399,055
Payments for acquisition of other financial BEHMERMERE
assets XA FRIE (6,028,827) (3,387,548)
Dividends received from joint ventures and BEEERER
associates BEERRIZIRE 54,000 91,721
Proceeds from dividends received from WEIARFERE
disposed subsidiaries apE=RNGIliel 14,572 222,329
Receipts of government grants AT B 2 Wk — 10,407
Interest received BUFILE 27,435 16,115
Placement of restricted deposits FTIE SR 2T 5K (578,240) (640,967)
Withdrawal of restricted deposits ZREGFHRE 640,967 327,610
Net cash used in investing activities BETEBFMACES S (3,771,645) (1,959,649)

The notes on pages 110 to 291 form part of these financial FU0E291 BT BRZEMBHRE

statements. S e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in RMB)
HZE2022F 12 A31 BILFE (UARKESTR)

2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR¥TFT AREFT
(Restated)
(FEat)
Cash flows from financing activities REMETB2EHERE
Payment for repurchase of shares BB ARG 215K
of the Company 40(b) (239,451) (18,406)
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITIERPTISHUR 1,190,251 704,398
Repayment of bank borrowings BRIFITIER (253,837) (887,142)
Proceeds from other borrowings HAbERFTIS IR 3,084,481 4,554,383
Repayment of other borrowings BEBEMER (1,531,438) (779,665)
Deposits placed YHRES (49,656) (148,831)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHERR (12,037) (12,590)
Repayment of senior notes EBEELREE 35 — (761,153)
Repayment of outstanding BEEEAREND
convertible loan AN E R 37 (112,150) (31,879)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders SR EFA
of the Company NSl & (231,315) (208,857)
Dividends paid to non-controlling SATRUE T IR 1
interests H=IFEE A (23,209) (4,868)
Proceeds from disposal of HoHEWBAR
partial interests in subsidiaries WeHEFT 1S RUIA
without losing control 7,105 42,103
Payment for acquisitions of non-controlling U BE T BB A &)
interests of subsidiaries eI SRR (74,700) (251)
Contributions by non-controlling FEIEFIME R E
interests 160,261 6,383
Interest paid BERFE (637,001) (562,669)
Net cash generated from financing RMETERREEZ
activities Re®®E 1,277,304 . 1,890,956
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HeRELEHEER
cash equivalents (R4 ) S hnFEE (94,291) 1,234,706
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHOzRESRELE
beginning of the year E1EE 3,510,470 2,280,459
Effect of foreign exchange ERxE
rate changes 54,860 (4,695)
Cash and cash equivalents FRzESRELE
at the end of the year BEE 3,471,039 3,510,470
Analysis of balances of cash and BeRkBESLEEER
cash equivalents Rz DN
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTEE R 29 4,049,279 4,151,437
Restricted deposits XRRBEUFR 29 (578,240) (640,967)
3,471,039 3,510,470

The notes on pages 110 to 291 form part of these financial ~ £ 110%&291 8B Z M@ E M MRz — 20

statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Concord New Energy Group Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered office is
Suite 3901, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong. The address of principal place
of business is Rooms 204 to 205, China Wind Power
Building, No. 9, South Shou Ti Road, Haidian District,
Beijing, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together
the “"Group”) were involved in the following principal
activities of operating and investment in power plants,
provision of power plant operation and maintenance
services, provision of design, technical and consultation
services.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current accounting
period

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") to
these financial statements for the current accounting
period:

o Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

° Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets:
Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a
contract

° Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
combinations: Reference to the conceptual
framework

° Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
Cycle

The group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the
amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

The amendments prohibit an entity from
deducting the proceeds from selling items
produced before that asset is available for use
from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment. Instead, the sales proceeds and the
related costs should be included in profit and
loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after
1 January 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RARMEE

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2 FERAFITREET(EEMBRE
BB BUBHREER)) (&)

2.1 New and amendments to HKFRSs that are 21 FEEREEMNA(EEBMEREE
mandatorily effective for the current accounting BI)Z $i8RIERT (&)
period (CONTINUED)
Summary of effects arising from initial BEXEF(EBETER)FE 165 E
application of HKAS 16 EECHE
The table below summarizes the items affected in THRBM T RAEBEEZE2021F12
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial A3 BEEEAMNEBGELD
position for the year ended 31 December 2021 and FleMira MBRARME R
the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the 202112 A31 B2 121@ B K&
twelve months ended 30 December 2021, applicable BRiPXTBIIER - KXTE
to amendments to HKAS 16. Unaffected items are ZIBETBEEA -
not included.
As reported Adjustments Restated
ERRE A Bt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEEFT ARHETT AEETT
Impact on the consolidated FEPBMRRE
statement of financial position pd-%
Property, plant and equipment W - BE NG 11,840,303 9,406 11,849,709
Reserves M 7,327,369 9,058 7,336,427
Non-controlling interests FEFEHIE R 148,613 348 148,961
Impact on the consolidated SERRRZYE
statement of profit or loss
Revenue WA 2,183,048 12,492 2,195,540
Cost of sales and services rendered  ARFSAK A< &z
HEMK (872,792) (3,086) (875,878)
Gross profit EA 1,310,256 9,406 1,319,662
Profit before income tax BRPTS B RTE F 930,189 9,406 939,595
Profit for the period RER T 808,456 9,406 817,862

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current accounting
period (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets:
Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous, the cost of
fulfilling the contract includes both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

Previously, the Group included only incremental costs
when determining whether a contract was onerous.
In accordance with the transitional provisions, the
Group has applied the new accounting policy to
contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at 1 January 2022, and has concluded
that none of them is onerous.

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
combinations: Reference to the conceptual
framework

The amendments update the reference to the latest
version of Conceptual Framework issued in March
2018, and add an exception to the requirement for
an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current accounting
period (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
combinations: Reference to the conceptual
framework (CONTINUED)

The exception relates to liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would have been within the scope
of HKAS 37 or HKFRIC-Int 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business
combination. Under the exception, when applying
HKFRS 3 an entity should apply the more specific
criteria in HKAS 37 or HKFRIC-Int 21 respectively
(instead of the Conceptual Framework) to determine
whether a present obligation exists at the acquisition
date.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
Cycle

This package of annual improvements contains
amendments to three standards, namely HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9 and HKAS 41, and an amendment to an
illustrative example accompanying HKFRS 16.

The amendment to HKFRS 1 provides optional relief
for the measurement of cumulative translation
differences to those first-time adopters which take
advantage of the exemption in paragraph D16(a)
of HKFRS 1. Such entities are subsidiaries which
become first-time adopters later than their parents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current accounting
period (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
Cycle (CONTINUED)

The amendment to HKFRS 9 clarifies that only fees
paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf, are
included when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial
liability.

The amendment to illustrative example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16 removes from the fact
pattern a reimbursement relating to leasehold
improvements, as the example had not explained
clearly whether the reimbursement would meet the
definition of a lease incentive in HKFRS 16.

The amendment to HKAS 41 removes the
requirement to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring fair value, thereby aligning the fair value
measurement requirements in HKAS 41 with those
in HKFRS 13.

Except for the effect of HKAS 16, none of these
developments have had a material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2 EAFITERK
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ZADNKE BT IEHR

STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

BB R BRE
HERA) (&)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but 22 EEMEERERZHETRES
not yet effective A RAERMBEWEERD
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, BEAUBHRRELBEY  &8g
the HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended PRI AEREME THMNEET 2
standards, which are not yet effective for the year R E S ET A 1E 2022612
ended 31 December 2022 and which have not A31BIEFEERER - IFRIELR
been adopted in these financial statements. These AR RPEN - BEBEUT
developments include the following which may be AREEREEAM | -

relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts

(BEGFTERNDE 175 — Rz E A

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
“Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”

(BEGHERDFE N RIERT — HBEHXHNZS [ REEIFRE R EE 7

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Making materiality judgements:
Disclosure of accounting policies

EEBGERNE 15 — [HBHREXNZE5]) &
(CEBVFRELENEHRRE)E 2% — [1EHEZ M
AT - BAECR B HEE | EET

Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates
and errors: Definition of accounting estimates

(EBGERDERIER] — [ BFTBER - @thst 2 B M EER
BEH1GETHYES ]

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single transaction

CEBGETERDE125UEE] — [FiEH - BE—XZHELNEER
B (E1A 2 B E

Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(CEBGFTERNE NV RIET] — WERLEHEZIETEBE
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
(BRI RELERDE165EF] — ER LB HERE

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture

(BEMBHRELRDFE 10 RIKE LG ERDE 28 5REFT —

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after

LA T HRjEC 2 12 e 49

2t R

1 January 2023
20231 H18

1 January 2023
20231 H18

1 January 2023

20231 H1H8

1 January 2023

20231 H1H

1 January 2023
20231 H1H8

1 January 2024
20241 518

1 January 2024
2024%F 1 A1 H

To be decided

[REZHABENFISE SRR EEHELRA S RN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which collective
term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 2.1
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current accounting period reflected in these financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realizable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is
to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods,
the valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique equals
the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries. (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group’s interest in associates and a joint venture. Control
is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity shareholders of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the equity shareholders of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (CONTINUED)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation. Unrealised losses relating from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of the relevant reserves between the Group
and the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s
and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to equity shareholders of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries (CONTINUED)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date; and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Business combinations (CONTINUED)

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed as at the acquisition
date. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event
of liguidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-
generating units) is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit (or groups of cash-generating units).

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Goodwill (CONTINUED)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating
unit within a group of cash-generating units), the amount
of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the cash-generating
unit) disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit (or the group of cash-generating units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joints ventures
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(CONTINUED)

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate
or joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or
joint venture, unless it is classified as held for sale.

Changes in net assets of the associate or joint venture
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

ETEEHBER(E)
BEARANEELENZRE(E)

REEDL - RIFCHOBARAEFTE
BEnmHEEEEPZREEFEMH
AR P IZRAETT AR - WHERER
EITHE - UERAREEZEE QRN
BEbEZBaREMEEKETEZ
0%8 °

HedhEMERaTRERREME
EWRANZ FEEZE T TR - B L
MEFERAREE A 2 B EES)
ZIEIERSN - INRAEBARE R RHE
BEZIBERPAGZHEBBRERE
ZHENRRAEEEP 2 ER (BRIEE
MEE FBRAEBUZEHE ARG E
EZFEREzRPERD)  AREERR
IFFEREAE — PRS2 0% - 5
SMBRBEAEEE & ZRTERMETER
FRERBERRIHEEREETLI XN
EREITHER -

BERRXEELETZREBBKIRE
ERRMERRINEERE 2 HRERBE
SAETRE - BIRBERARRAELE
hZIRER - WERABBANEEERR
BEZAFREERABEZANERBFHE
FHEDREZ BN ERSEE (HEER
AREZRESEA) - MRAEE L
BRAIBREER BRI A BEFETH
B2 MBEBBREKA - MAEEHHE
‘IR - Rl 2 S EERISZIA
BEZEHLAIET AR -

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
2022 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(CONTINUED)

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint venture
are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
or joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual
and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group)
and its sale is highly probable. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant
subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell, except for financial assets within
the scope of HKFRS 9, which continue to be measured
in accordance with the accounting policies as set out
in respective sections. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (CONTINUED)

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

] the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (CONTINUED)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis, except for the allocation of variable
consideration.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined
at contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell a promised good or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the
amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods
or services to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly with
the value of the Group’s performance completed to date
(service contracts in which the Group bills a fixed amount
for the time of service provided), the Group recognise
revenue in the amount to which the Group has the right
to invoice.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (CONTINUED)

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the
Group estimates the amount of consideration to which it
will be entitled using either (a) the expected value method
or (b) the most likely amount, depending on which
method better predicts the amount of consideration to
which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent that
it is highly probable that such an inclusion will not result
in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating
its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period
and the changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or
the Group with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer. In those
circumstances, the contract contains a significant financing
component. A significant financing component may exist
regardless of whether the promise of financing is explicitly
stated in the contract or implied by the payment terms
agreed to by the parties to the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (CONTINUED)

Existence of significant financing component
(CONTINUED)

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the transaction price for any significant financing
component.

For contracts where the Group transferred the associated
goods or services before payments from customers in
which the Group adjusts for the promised amount of
consideration for significant financing components, the
Group applies a discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. The Group recognises
interest revenue during the period between the payment
from customers and the transfer of the associated goods
or services.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to
provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group
is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to
be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service
by another party. In this case, the Group does not control
the specified good or service provided by another party
before that good or service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified
goods or services to be provided by the other party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
prices.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics
are accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group
reasonably expects that the effects on the consolidated
financial statements would not differ materially from
individual leases within the portfolio.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic
basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 3 FEEHHBEE)
Leases (CONTINUED) HnE &)
The Group as a lessee (CONTINUED) KEFELRBA (Z)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (CONTINUED)

Right-of-use assets (CONTINUED)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is
accounted for separately from the right-of-use assets
in accordance with the accounting policy applicable
to investments in debt securities carried at amortised
cost. Any difference between the initial fair value and
the nominal value of the deposits is accounted for as
additional lease payments made and is included in the cost
of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RARMEE

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 3
Leases (CONTINUED)
The Group as a lessee (CONTINUED)
Lease liabilities (CONTINUED)
The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (CONTINUED)

Lease liabilities (CONTINUED)

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in
which cases the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and lease
term using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification. The only exceptions are rent concessions
that occurred as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and met the conditions set out in paragraph
46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group has
taken advantage of the practical expedient not to assess
whether the rent concessions are lease modifications,
and recognised the change in consideration as negative
variable lease payments in profit or loss in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 3  EEGTBX(£&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date
at amounts equal to net investments in the leases,
measured using the interest rate implicit in the respective
leases. Initial direct costs (other than those incurred by
manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included in the initial
measurement of the net investments in the leases. Interest
revenue is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor (CONTINUED)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.

Sale and leaseback transactions
The Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 15 to assess

whether sale and leaseback transaction constitutes a sale
by the Group.

FTESTHE(E)
HE (&)
FEBEBLHBA (E)

B IR 5570 4118 1Y 77 #E

&2 AR RN EHAR - A
o5 L B B A SRR A 155048
ARTHHESBEEERIFEEHS -
R B 2859 AR 03 2L B 4 B 2

pasli

REMEIREE

EXNARERSRESRBE( BBV
HELRDEIRETRE - XIRAAE
EETRAE - TIERKH R AEE
Z ARG SETEANZ BIMAE K -

HEEH

AEEE AN B RBEEREER
BT - LI RRREAR(E
AR E 3 AR B E
B — 5 -

EXMERLS
AEBEA(EEVBRELERDE 1557
P

ZHRE  FHAEERBELORZREBRALE
B2 HE -

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
2022 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor (CONTINUED)

Sale and leaseback transactions (CONTINUED)

The Group as a seller-lessee

For a transfer that does not satisfy the requirements as a
sale, the Group as a seller-lessee accounts for the transfer
proceeds as financial liabilities within the scope of HKFRS 9.

The Group as a buyer-lessor

For a transfer of asset that does not satisfy the
requirements of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale of
asset, the Group as a buyer-lessor does not recognises the
transferred asset and recognises a financial asset equal to
the transfer proceeds within the scope HKFRS 9.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Renminbi) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of “Exchange reserve” (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualified assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Government grants (CONTINUED)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated
by the PRC government. The Group’s PRC companies are
required to contribute certain percentage of their payroll
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the required contributions
under the schemes.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 3 FESHBEK(E)
Short-term employee benefits (CONTINUED) EHEESERN (&)

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments of the Group, namely the share award
scheme.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity
(other reserves). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
other reserves.

Under the share award scheme, when the awarded shares
are vested the related cost of the vested shares is released
from the other reserves to eliminate the related amount
of treasury shares held for the share award scheme. Any
difference between the cost of the vested shares and the
related amount of treasury shares is transferred to share
premium.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, and
interests in associates and joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the
relevant tax authority will accept the uncertain tax
treatment used, or proposed to be use by individual group
entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable, the
current and deferred taxes are determined consistently
with the tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not
probable that the relevant taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of each uncertainty
is reflected by using either the most likely amount or the
expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings for
use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (CONTINUED)

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Cost include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

[tems may be produced while bringing an item of property,
plant and equipment to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. The proceeds from selling any
such items and the related costs are recognised in profit or
loss.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets (other than construction in progress) less their
residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (CONTINUED)

Buildings under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation
of right-of-use assets provided during the construction
period is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at
cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of
buildings commences when they are available for use (i.e.
when they are in the location and condition necessary for
them to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by the management).

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amounts of tangible and intangible
assets are estimated individually, when it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an asset individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). A portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset (for example, head office building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if the
allocation can be done on a reasonable and consistent
basis, or to the smallest group of cash-generating units if
otherwise.

.

FERERBERE)
BEE (&)

BEEUCEREEREHEEZBE
Vi3

RIE TR - ARERTHEERBFH
BRZBLRELEEZREEE - B
EABPSRBTRZEEELRERSE -
BB ERRIR - ARG EEZR
WEEHE - NEEREER(INE) 2
[ o

BREEMENEEZ JRESEEBMG
A AR REESENEEZT SRS
B ARESEREEMBRIREL
AU EIEER o

Mo AEERREERRKRARREE
A BE B A RE T ARTAR © W FERE BT
R RAE-HyREESABRIR - &
RABEENEKEENREELSET  HH
e ERE L E BRI & IE — D i ¥ 2 &/
ReELETMER -

—BEENFARESELERABERR
RERARBELERBENS £l
EREER  BIARRRSRETRAE
PIHREERARATREIRE - R E AT
MM ERHEEENEREEENEEREN
Rk - MREERIBEENRERAER
REE LBINEMEENRERADTRE
EREERSRAN SN EEBRRETE NS
Y (BNREELET) - ARREBEEN—
BEE (Pl - REAR) AT A D R4 —
BEEBHREELET ok AERE
M—HRER EETT - DRGSR
—HKBIRSEHE -

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
2022 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Intangible assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (CONTINUED)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined using
the specific identification of their individual costs. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, a separate asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The amount
recognised for the reimbursement is limited to the carrying
amount of the provision.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost of fulfilling the
contract. The cost of fulfilling the contract includes both
the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15
since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest revenue and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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e MBRRME

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in far value of an equity investment
in OCI if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (CONTINUED)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a

financial asset that are required to be measured at the

amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing

so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting

mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest revenue

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest revenue
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
revenue is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk
on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest revenue is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (CONTINUED)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the “other gains and losses” line
item.

Impairment of financial assets, contract assets and lease
receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including cash and cash equivalents, restricted deposits,
trade receivables, loan receivables and amounts due from
joint ventures and associates, other receivables), and
finance lease receivables, contract assets and financial
guarantee contracts which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets, contract assets and lease
receivables (CONTINUED)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables (including trade-related amounts due from
joint ventures and associates), finance lease receivables
and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed
collectively or individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RARMEE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets, contract assets and lease
receivables (CONTINUED)

() Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets, contract assets and lease
receivables (CONTINUED)

() Significant increase in credit risk (CONTINUED)

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of initial
recognition for the purposes of assessing the
financial instrument for impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk since initial recognition for financial
guarantee contracts, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

(i)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RARMEE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets, contract assets and lease
receivables (CONTINUED)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower,;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

o it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets, contract assets and lease
receivables (CONTINUED)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets, contract assets and lease
receivables (CONTINUED)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (CONTINUED)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows
used for determining the ECL is consistent with the
cash flows used in measuring the lease receivable in
accordance with HKFRS 16.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the expected losses is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a
credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the
Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor
or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which
the effective interest rate cannot be determined,
the Group will apply a discount rate that reflects
the current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks that are specific to the cash
flows but only if, and to the extent that, the risks
are taken into account by adjusting the discount
rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being
discounted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets, contract assets and lease
receivables (CONTINUED)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (CONTINUED)

Interest revenue is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest revenue is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances
are recognised at the higher of the amount of the
loss allowance determined in accordance with
HKFRS 9; and the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, cumulative amount of income
recognised over the guarantee period.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, contract assets, other receivables, and
amounts due from joint ventures and associates
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank and other borrowings,
senior notes, trade and bills payable, accruals and other
payables, amounts due to joint ventures and associates,
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(CONTINUED)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities
are measured initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

. the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.

Convertible loan contain debt and derivative components

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Group’s own equity
instruments is a conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and
derivative components are recognised at fair value.
In subsequent periods, the debt component of the
convertible loan is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The derivative component
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(CONTINUED)

Convertible loan contain debt and derivative components
(CONTINUED)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
loan are allocated to the debt and derivative components
in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction
costs relating to the derivative component are charged
to profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to
the debt component are included in the carrying amount
of the debt portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible loan using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the group;

(i) has significant influence over the group; or

(iiiy  is a member of the key management personnel
of the group or the group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (CONTINUED)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)~ One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In preparation of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of
the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition on tariff subsidy on sales of
electricity

Tariff subsidy represents subsidy received and/or receivable
from the relevant authorities in respect of the Group’s
power generation business. Tariff subsidy is recognised
as revenue at its fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the additional tariff will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions, if any.

According to the tariff notice released by the National
Development and Reform Commission of the PRC (the
“Tariff Notice”), for power plants which obtained on-
grid approval and commence in generating electricity will
be eligible for on-grid tariff subsidy, which is determined
by deducting the basic electricity price from the total
electricity price set out in respective electricity purchase
agreement.

Pursuant to the Tariff Notice, a set of standardized
procedures for the settlement of the tariff subsidy has
come into force since 2013. The approvals for the
registration in the Renewable Energy Tariff Subsidy List
(T4 R EMAGIAR B E) (the “List”) on a project-
by-project basis are required before the allocation of
funds to the state grid companies, which then would
make settlement to the Group. In 2020, the government
authorities jointly issued several new notices to crystalize
the registration and verification process to apply tariff
subsidy for wind and solar power plants, which simplify
system management of the List and optimize subsidy
settlement process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition on tariff subsidy on sales of
electricity (CONTINUED)

In making their judgement, the directors of the Company,
taking into account the legal opinion as advised by the
Group’s legal advisor, considered that all of the Group’s
power plants (including power plants held by the Group’s
joint ventures and associates) of which tariff subsidy
is recognised as revenue but yet to register in the List
currently in operation had been qualified for and had met
relevant requirements and conditions for the entitlement
of the tariff subsidy when the electricity was delivered on
grid.

The directors of the Company are confident that all of the
Group’s operating power plants (including power plants
operated by the Group’s joint ventures and associates)
are able to be registered in the List in due course and it's
highly probable that the accrued revenue on tariff subsidy
will be received but only subject to timing of allocation of
funds from the PRC government.

As disclosed in Note 23, as at 31 December 2022, the tariff
adjustment amounts of RMB Nil (2021: RMB62,696,000)
was recognised in contract assets by the power plants
which have not been included in the List.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets within the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONTINUED)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs") to which goodwill has been
allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or fair
value less costs of disposal. The calculation of recoverable
amount requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected
or change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash, a material impairment
loss may arise.

As set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, the annual impairment review performed
by the management involves assumptions, including
estimated sales volumes and on-grid tariff of each
wind farm, and discount rate, amongst others, that are
subjective in nature and the Company is required to use
judgement in applying such information. Depending on
the complexity of deriving reasonable estimates of the
recoverable amount of the CGU, the Group may perform
such assessment utilising internal resources or the Group
may engage external advisors to counsel the Group in
making this assessment.

An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss whenever the carrying amount
of a CGU or groups of CGUs exceeds its recoverable
amount.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of goodwill
was RMB787,716,000 (2021: RMB816,850,000). No
impairments (2021: No impairments) was recognised
during the current year. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in Note 19.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Business segments

The management has determined the operating
segments based on the internal reports reviewed and
used by executive directors of the Company, who
are the chief operating decision markers (“CODM"),
for strategic decision making.

The CODM consider the business from a product
and service perspective. The Group is organised into
certain business units according to the nature of the
products sold or services provided. The CODM review
operating results and financial information of each
business unit separately. Accordingly, each business
unit (including joint ventures and associates) is
identified as an operating segment. These operating
segments with similar economic characteristics and
similar nature of products sold or services provided
have been aggregated into the following reporting
segments.

o Power generation segment — operation
of wind and solar power plants through
subsidiaries, generating electric power for sale
to external power grid companies, investing
in power plants through joint ventures and
associates;

o Intelligent operation and maintenance segment
— provision of operation and maintenance,
asset management, overhaul and commissioning
service for wind and solar power plants;

o “Others” segment — provision of design,
technical and consultancy services, undertaking
electrical engineering and construction of
power plant projects (the “engineering,
procurement and construction business”),
provision of finance lease services and energy
internet services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(a)

Business segments (CONTINUED)

The CODM assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of adjusted earnings
before interest and income tax. This measurement
basis excludes the effects of non-recurring income
and expenditure from the operating segments.

Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
the third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in Note 3. Segment profit represents the
profit earned by each segment without allocation of
central administration costs, directors’ remuneration,
certain other income, interest revenue and finance
costs, after inter-segment elimination.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, all assets
and liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than assets and liabilities attributable to head
office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBERRME
5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 DEERGE)
(a) Business segments (CONTINUED) (a) ¥BoEE)
Segment revenues and results, and segment DERARFEE ROEEEHES
assets and liabilities &
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, TRPIRAEBEZSFE 2K
results, assets and liabilities by reportable operating A FEE - -BERBE-
segment.
Intelligent
Power operation and Segment
generation maintenance Others total  Elimination Total
BEEK  mzE g AB&R it @i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFE ARETn  AREFT ARETn AREFT ARET#R
For the year ended BENNE12A318
31 December 2022 LEE
Segment revenue AEBA
Sales to external customers*  EFHIEF ¢ 2,114,106 279,092 286,170 2,679,368 — 2,679,368
Inter-segment revenues EEDERBA — 113,456 481,844 505,300 (595,300) =
2,114,106 392,548 768,014 3,274,668 (595,300) 2,679,368
Segment results PERE 1,287,115 37,359 12,512 1,336,986 — 1,336,986
Unallocated other gainsand R P 2Bz EtRER
losses, net B8 58 318,991
Unallocated income A A ON 16,727
Unallocated expenses U (214)
Interest revenue MEBKRA 27435
Finance costs IR (546,316)
Profit before income tax BEER AT 1,153,609
Income tax expense FrEREY (227,840)
Profit for the year REEET 925,769

At 31 December 2022 R202E12831R

Segment assets NREE 24,493,235 433417 1,997,149 26,923,801 — 26,923,801
Unallocated assets IRl BE 28,715
Total assets EEER 27,172,516
Segment liabiities HERE (17569,471)  (243,644)  (877,550) (18,690,665) — (18,690,665
Unallocated liabilities ol (386,959)
Total liabilities BERE (19,077,624)
g Revenue from power generation comprised revenue * BEHEFRADBIZRERE %
generated from wind power plants and solar power B R AL EER - £S5
plants of RMB1,769,309,000 and RMB344,797,000 ABAR1,769,309,000 TR AR
respectively. % 344,797,000 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5

(a) Business segments (CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and results, and segment

e M RRMEE

DTEER(E)

(@) XBIE|(E)

TERARFE ROBEEHRER

assets and liabilities (CONTINUED) E(E)
Intelligent
Power  operation and
generation  maintenance Others  Segment total  Elimination Total
YBEh  RRE4 b SEEG ] it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

NEETFT  AREFT AREfT  AREFT  AREFT  AREfT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(Ei) (Eit) (Ei)
For the year ended 220215128318

31 December 2021 LLEE
Segment revenue AERA
Sales to external customers®  EFHIES *

(as restated) (&) 1,748,842 244,834 20184 2,195,540 — 2195540
Inter-segment revenues EESERBA — 63,919 934,237 998,156 (998,156) —

1,748 842 308,753 1,136,101 3,193,696 (998,156) 2,195,540
Segment results (as restated) 7 E%%& (i) 1,109,177 26,690 5003 1,140,870 — 1,140,870
Unallocated other gainsand A2 B 7 UL o

losses, net B 58 181,113
Unallocated income RFRE WA 56,145
Unallocated expenses ISl (8528)
Interest revenue FIEIMA 16,115
Finance costs BRI (446,120)
Profit before income tax BRETERATER]

(as restated) (Ej) 939,595
Income tax expense FEHAY (11,733)
Profit for the year TEERF (i)

(as restated) 817,862
At 31 December 2021 R20215E12A31H
Segment assets (as restated) ~ HEEEE (Ei) 21,284,614 320,156 2,236,737 23,841,507 — 23841507
Unallocated assets OB EE 203,311
Total assets EEEH 24,044,818
Segment liabilities PEEE (14909,021) (127,663 (1,060,252)  (16,096,936) —  (16,096,936)
Unallocated liabilities Tohizat (384,995)
Total liabilities BEEE (16,481,931)
* Revenue from power generation comprised revenue * BEEBBADRIRE AR S B

generated from wind power plants and solar
power plants of RMB1,553,401,000 (restated) and
RMB195,441,000 (restated) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBERRME
5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 2EERGE)
(a) Business segments (CONTINUED) (a) ¥BoEE)
Other segment information Bt 7 HEH
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZE2022F12A31HILLFE
Intelligent
Power operation and
generation maintenance Others  Unallocated Total
BEXY W g2Ef Bt FFARE @3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ABETE ARETL AREFn ARETT ARETZ
Amounts included in the measure BEREERY
of segment profit or loss or segment ~ HHEEESIEI £ -
assets:
Additions to non-current assets FnBEELEN(BENE
(incluing property, plant and equipment B + RERFEHELE)
and right-of-use assets) 4,940,066 59,016 76,232 - 5,075,314
Depreciation of property, plant and n% BEREBIAE
equipment 536,671 6,292 8,458 — 551,421
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ EMEREE 2 AE L ER
and depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ EEEZHTE 36,322 - 4,380 - 40,702
Share-based compensation MR BEE (15 26,880 4 2,168 - 29,519

Interests in joint ventures and associates  IMABRERBEDF ZER 2,001,790 - 352,367 — 2,354,157
Share of profit of joint ventures and ElhaetEREERAEL
assaciates, net &l FE 170,119 — 1,000 = 171,119

Amounts reqularly provided to the CODM €412 B4 & 4% e -

but not included in the measure HUFHA S

of segment profit or loss: JEZRE
Loss on disposal of property, plant, MENE - BERREL

and equipment = 334 255 674 - 1,263
Reversal of impairment loss on WA ERETERE

amounts due from joint ventures &M - - (2,181) - (2,181)
Impairment loss on other EfbEMFIER(E

receivables - — 1,000 — 1,000
Interest revenue MSHA (5123) (38) (22,274) = (27,435)
Finance costs A 537,132 1,366 7818 - 546,316
Income tax expense ichilia 214,205 5,395 8,150 = 227,840
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR
5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 2EERGE)
(a) Business segments (CONTINUED) (a) ¥BoEE)
Other segment information (CONTINUED) B EEHR (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZ2021F12831HILEE
Intelligent
Power  operation and
generation  maintenance Others  Unallocated Total
B BoEh Ef Ui &

RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMB'000
ARBTL  AERTL ARRTL ARBTT  ABETR

(Restated) (Restated)
(Eit) (Eit)
Amounts included in the measure BERAEER
of seqment profit or loss or seqment  FEEESEZEE -
asselts:
Additions to non-current assets FnBEAELEN(RENE
(including property, plant and equipment B - RERFERELE)
and right-of-use assets) (as restated) (&) 6,094,149 11,857 5,511 — 6111517
Depreciation of property, plant and % BERERIAE
equipment (as restated) (Eit) 431,589 8,120 11383 - 451,052
Amortisation of other intangble assets ~ EftEREE 7 EERERE
and depreciation of right-of-use assets ~~ BEZ & 33,073 — 4,586 — 37,659
Share-based compensation DR EREZ {3 7,937 118 826 - 8,881
Interests in joint ventures and associates  INAS M ERBENF ZER 1,731,864 — 51,367 — 1,783,231
Share of profit/loss) of joint ventures and  [E(EA S E REERTIEY
associates, net kil (B8) 58 153,003 — (582) — 152,511
Amounts reqularly provided to the CODM  FZRI T Z4T £ % & 18
but not included in the measure BVFGHA G
of segment profit or loss: GEIRE
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant, (&N - BERZELZ
and equipment Bia/ () 379 203 (189) — 393
Reversal of impairment loss on trade EWE ST ERE
receivables &M — — (5,485) — (5,485)
Reversal of impairment loss on other ~ EfENGUERE
receivables ZE[ (9,95) - (12,109) - (22,065)
Interest revenue HEMA (2,087) (80) (13.948) - (16,115)
Finance costs BB 437339 N9 8,562 — 446,120
Income tax expense FEREY 90,041 2,352 29,340 — 121733
HEFEREBBRAR 177
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mENBHRRMTE
5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 2EERGE)
(b) Geographical segments (b) #HEDE
The Group’s operations are mainly located in the REBEFELEEMANFEARK
PRC and the remaining operations are located in the B ([HREL]) - B fhAs &l A5
United States of America and Hong Kong. Bl & A BB & o
Information about the Group’s revenue from REEINBE P 2 WARBEINBE
external customers is presented based on the PR BT R - AEE
location of the customers. Information about the ZIEMBEEEN (BRIELEFEHRE
Group’s non-current assets (excluding deferred tax ERemEEIN) BIFEEPEIMIE
assets and financial assets) is presented based on the N EERLTH® -
geographical location of the assets.
Revenue Non-current assets
['ON FRBEE
Year ended 31 December At 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE R12A31R
2022 2021 2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(Fi) (Fit)
The PRC I 2,651,650 2,172,494 19,735,082 15,716,291
Others Efoih = 27,718 23,046 229,980 334,477
2,679,368 2195540 19,965,062 16,050,768
(c) Information about major customers (0 FEEXEFEM

178

S‘;ﬁ;\ : T

Three (2021: Three) external customers individually
contribute more than 10% of the total revenue
of the Group. The revenue of these customers is
summarized below:

=2 (2021 F : ZZ)IEBEFEH D
BfE RS E UL A 10% ° HEZUWA
ZEPBMmT

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRB¥TF T AR ETFr

(Restated)

(&)

Customer A ZEA 410,675 369,337
Customer B =FB 400,897 *
Customer C BFEC 325,512 254,378
Customer D ZFD * 392,610

Revenue from customers above are attributable to
power generation segment.

* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over
10% of the total revenue of the Group.

EiE P 2 WA ER B % E XA

o

o
&

* HEZ MABERABBERZI
A 10% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EHRRME
6 REVENUE 6 N
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: REEZWASHTOT
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#ETFT ARBTFT
(Restated)
(Ext)
Revenue from contracts with customers EREF SR WAER
Sales of electricity: L ONE
Basic electricity price BEFEEIA 1,687,148 1,221,300
Renewable energy subsidy EEEES= N
(note (i) (KL () 401,464 527,542
Green energy certificates (note (ii)) EREBULA (H32 (i) 25,494 —
Engineering, procurement and A HERETIRA
construction 248,135 201,734
Power plant operation and maintenance ERETRERRBKA
services 259,369 196,531
Provision of technical and consultancy AR R ARSI A
services 14,108 16,447
Provision of design services R REBA 13,406 10,284
Provision of agency service on sale REHERZRBUA
of equipment 2,466 7,115
Other revenue HA A 1,036 511
2,652,626 2,181,464
Finance lease income EEHEWA 26,742 14,076
Total revenue WA B 5T 2,679,368 2,195,540

HEFEREEERAT
2022 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

6

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Note: (i)

(i)

Renewable energy subsidy is provided by the relevant
PRC government authorities to the wind and solar
power plants operating in the PRC, subject to the
fulfilment of certain conditions. As further explained
in Note 4, approval for the registration in the List is
required before the allocation of renewable energy
subsidy by the relevant PRC government authorities.

According to the Work Plan for Pilot Green Power
Trading approved by National Development
and Reform Commission and National Energy
Administration, wind power and solar power
generations thar are not included in the List can
apply to obtain green certificates from National
Renewable Energy Information Management Center
to participate in green energy trading through
power exchange centers. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group sells green energy
certificates to other green energy participants
and recognised relevant revenue with amount of
RMB25,494,000.

6

WA (&)

e

0]

(i)

A A B R A A WA 2 BB
PSR P ERALERTE K
B2 BN R KRG BRRIZ ML ©
AN R4 FE AL - FE AR B AR B K
WBW o S A FF A RE R AL 2

VERBAMEEL TR
mo

BEERERNNEEZES &
RERBETFAKELENRS
RHETERR) RIWABED
B NEEMALGEEERRIBE
NERSGHLRFEGSERATBE
BERENERPLNEBEE -
LHEGEENIRS - HEHZE 2022
FNRANBEMFEERN ~AEE
MEMGEENIRHLEENRE
HEEE THIAMBBEKRAR
25,494,000 TE A RS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ek mRmEE
6  REVENUE (CONTINUED) 6 WAE)
An analysis of timing of revenue recognition for revenue ERE P& R ARBAEREE ST
from contracts with customers is as follows: LU
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTFr
(Restated)
(&)
Point in time: RESFERER .
Sales of electricity EBWA 2,114,106 1,748,842
Provision of technical and consultancy R MG ARSI A
services 14,108 16,447
Provision of design services RERET RIS WA 13,406 10,284
Provision of agency service on sale St E R IEARIS U
of equipment 2,466 7,115
Other revenue E At A 1,036 511
2,145,122 1,783,199
Over time: REERR
Power plant operation and maintenance BERGETT R A E RIS
services 259,369 196,531
Engineering, procurement BET - BRI RBETHA
and construction 248,135 201,734
507,504 398,265
Revenue from contracts with customers HEREFERZWATER 2,652,626 2,181,464
e REEERAT 181
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

6 REVENUE (CONTINUED) 6 WAE)

NTRBAERDSERETRESE Y

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue with the

amounts disclosed in the segment information. iR -
2022 2021
Segment Segment
revenue Elimination Consolidated revenue  Elimination  Consolidated
AERA B AHMA SERA B ARRA
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ABETFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFL
(Restated) (Restated)  (Restated)
(&) (&) (Eit)
Revenue from contracts with ~ EREFARKARET :
customers:
Sales of electricity EMA 2,114,106 — 2114106 1,748,842 — 1748842
Engineering, procurement Rt FEREIRA
and construction 515,220 (267,085) 248,135 841,489 (639,755) 201,734
Power plant operation and BB T RIEEREMA
maintenance services 343,806 (84,437) 259,369 260,450 (63,919) 196,531
Provision of design services  JREERATRBAA 58,872 (45,466) 13,406 56,319 (46,035) 10,284
Provision of technical and TR MR
consultancy services 174,112 (160,004) 14,108 173,919 (157,472) 16,447
Provision of agency service  REBHERERBRA
on sale of equipment 35,046 (32,580) 2,466 90,110 (82,995) 7,115
Other revenue Hl A 1,036 - 1,036 511 — 511
Revenue from contracts with ~ EREPARKA
customers 3,242,198 (589,572) 2,652,626 3,171,640 (990,176) 2,181,464
Finance lease income MERERA 32,470 (5.728) 26,142 22,056 (7,980) 14,076
Total revenue W 3,274,668 (595,300) 2,679,368 3,193,696 (998,156) 2,195,540
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE (CONTINUED)
Performance obligations for contracts with customers

The Group’s revenue is mainly generated from the sale
of electricity, the provision of power plant operation
and maintenance services, provision of agency service
on sale of equipment, the provision of design, technical
and consultancy services, engineering, procurement and
construction business and finance lease income.

Revenue relating to the operation and maintenance
services is recognised over time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group as the Group performs. Revenue
relating to engineering, procurement and construction is
recognised over time as the relevant contracts relate to
assets under the control of the customers and therefore
the Group’s construction activities create or enhance assets
under the customers’ control. Revenue for these services is
recognised based on input method which recognizes the
Group's performance on the basis of the time incurred by
the Group, and in the opinion of the directors, this input
method provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of
services.

Revenue from the sale of electricity comprises of basic
electricity price, renewable energy subsidy and green
energy certificates. Revenue including the basic electricity
price and renewable energy subsidy is recognised when
control of the electricity has been transferred, being at
the point when electricity is generated and transmitted
to the customer. Revenue of green energy certificates is
recognised when control of the green certificates has been
transferred to the customer. Revenue from the provision of
agency service on sale of equipment is recognised when
the equipment have been delivered to the customer’s
specific location. Revenue from the provision of design,
technical and consultancy services are recognised when
the services has been provided, being when the customer
acknowledges receipt of the Group’s drawing designs and
reports.

The renewable energy subsidy related to power plants not
yet registered in the List are classified as contract assets.
Such contract assets are transferred to trade receivables
upon the completion of the registration in the List. More
details are set out in Note 23.

HEHEEREBERAR
2022 3§

e M RRMEE

WA ()
REFZIERZEITRSE

AEBBATEZREEERA - REER
B MRS f“ﬁﬁjﬁﬁﬁﬂlﬁ‘% ‘12
R - R R ARTY - &EH - RBER
ETARBERERA -

A 0 4 4 AR 75 2 AE B M A R R 0 B B
R ARFPEXMERANEEREH 2
PARRTS E RIS A - SR - IR RIET
MHRER A EREZ R A 2 R R - |
RIERARETFEN T2 EEER B
ISR 2 i TR B AIE S IRTT T B P
TZEBE - BLERBWAZHEREREA
% WRASBEEERERGRER - 5t
EER A ZRARRET AE 2R
BB 2B -

EERABIEELREE - (JHELRMHEL
Mg EERES - REEABEMITHA
BERM AR MM AT E i H s 2 05
WA EEEWERATLHER - B
FEFENTHREBRATPE - 68
IREBEEMUA L TER - REHE 2 RIER
BRAZ ERREN R HEXRI B EMNE
BMIER o BRATARISUIA ~ 5T R AR
BRAZ EREEREFERKRE AEE
ey Bt E R REE - R EIRMIERE
BRFS - WHERUA o

o

HRHARENBEZ L B EMIEE &

ERERERMAREASREE - k&R
BETENBETKETEEARKE S
I o BEEBRMEE23 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R RMEE
7 OTHER INCOME 7 HfuA
An analysis of the Group’s other income is as follows: B AZ T
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEB¥TFTT AREFT
Interest revenue F B A 27,435 16,115
Government Grants: SRR
— Tax refunds (note (j)) — MBRE (W7 () 16,098 12,360
— Others (including amortisation — HAth (B IEMFE 38 IR
of deferred income in Note 38) W e 5H) 4,412 11,357
Guarantee income (note (ii) FEARWA (BTEE (1) 7,108 7,658
Rental income el A 2,034 7,629
Claim compensation FREFE — 25,842
Others HAtb 3,045 1,774
60,132 82,735
Notes: Kt -
(i The amounts mainly represent refunds of value-added tax () ZSEXTEERPERGEREIGZ2IE
and other taxes received from the PRC tax authorities. ER R E TR FRE -
(i)  The amounts mainly represent guarantee fees earned for (i) ZEETEREMBLEARRHSRIE
providing financial guarantees to two associates (Note 39). PRIRELZ R (M5 39) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

e M RRMEE

8 HitthzmRER  FE

An analysis of other gains and losses, net is as follows: i REEFE 2T
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

Gain on disposal/liquidation of subsidiaries,

net (Note 42(b))
Loss on disposal/liquidation
of joint ventures and associates, net
Change in fair value of financial assets
at FVTPL

Exchange gain/(loss), net

Fair value losses on derivative component
of convertible loan

Gain on redemption of convertible loan

Impairment loss recognised for
construction in progress (Note 17)

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment (Note 42(c))

Donation

Others

e REEERAT
2022 3R

AREFT ARETT

HE TEEHBLR s

SFEE (M7t 42(b) 255,589 259,766
& TEEEEDEMBE

NRIZEE - 55 — (27,254)
BRARBENEEHE

FABRCEREES

AREBEEE 82,736 78,154
bE H e, (E&518) - FRE 26,482 (1,348)
AMBREFRITERD 2

AABEEEBEE — (172,636)
FE L AT AR B SR 2 s — 28,524
R TIRERAREIRR

(Hiat 17) (39,139) —
HEME - BERXE

BB (Mt 42(c) (1,263) (393)
B (2,024) (3,530)
Hith (4,571) (7,720)

317,810 153,563
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

9 IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED CREDIT 9 {RARBE#ERX
LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARKETT

Impairment loss recognised/(reversed) BRER, (R LA T A ER
in respect of: RIEEK -
— Trade and bills receivable (Note 24) — EWE SFEE
(Bt 24) — (5,485)
— Prepayments, deposits and — FERTRR - FEEA
other receivables (Note 25) H A e MR (H5E 25) 1,000 (22,065)
— Amounts due from joint ventures — AEEEYGIR
(Note 21) (Brat21) (2,181) _
(1,181) (27,550)
Details of impairment assessment of financial assets for R2022F 12 A31HIEFEESRMEEY
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note BAERHEFHIE R 48(0) °
48(c).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRERME

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 10 EEFIFEX(BESEEMS)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARKETT

Wages, salaries and bonuses I Heh#Ese 521,849 389,112

Pension costs-defined contribution plans RARSKA — EREER
(note (i) =& ) 52,658 45,209
Share-based compensation (Note 41) LARRAD BEEZ SR (7t 41) 29,519 8,881
604,026 443,202

Less: Employee benefit expense capitalised & - EAMEEEREHIFI

(note (ii)) (B1&E (i) (170,872) (109,336)
433,154 333,866
Notes: Biat -
(i) As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no significant (i) R2022F 12 A31 8 AEEETAR
forfeited contributions available to reduce its contributions MRARFERARSTEHIZERS
to the pension scheme in future years (2021: Nil). Wi SR (2021 4F « 48%) o
(i)  Employee benefit expense has been capitalised as (i) M2022%F128318 EERAMAZE
construction in progress under property, plant and BREEAYE  BERZE N 2ER
equipment as at 31 December 2022. Tig -
Five highest paid individuals EEREHFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest AEERFAR LFhERRFATEE
in the Group for the current and prior year are all directors RESE  EeRMAMZE ZoHF o
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in
Note 11.
e REEERAT 187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBmRMET
11 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 11 EBRITBAEREMH
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration for the year, AKFEEFERITHRAETE - RIEMERZ
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the LTRAIREBAREH - #HEWT -
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2022: BZE2022F12A31ALFE :
Employer's
contribution to
Share-based  a retirement
payment benefit
Name Fees Salary (note (i)) scheme Total
B
Rxf  BAEER
] e g (WE))  BIR At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETR AREFZ
Executive directors: HIES:
Liu Shunxing (Chairman) BRR (#/) - 6,456 2,665 16 9,137
Liu Jianhong (Vice Chairperson) ANy - 4,702 2,032 233 6,967
Gui Kai (Chief Executive Officer) (R #3) - 3,981 1,656 - 5,637
Niu Wenhui g - 4,012 1,656 155 5,823
Zhai Feng B - 3,129 1,545 156 4,830
Shang Jia (note (i) WM ) - 3,306 1,600 = 4,906
Non-executive director: FYTES
Wang Feng Tié - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors; BIFHTES:
Yap Fat Suan, Henry 351 211 - 411 = 622
Jesse Zhixi Fang yipd: 211 - 411 - 622
Huang Jian BE 211 - 411 - 622
Zhang Zhong R 211 - 411 - 622
Li Yongli (note (iv) KB () 133 - - - 133
Total 2 977 25,586 12,798 560 39,921
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A KRR MIEE
11 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 11 EERTHEARETH (2)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2021: BZ2021F12831ALLEE :
Employers
contribution to

Share-based  a retirement

payment benefit

Name Fees Salary (note (i) scheme Total
i
Riaxfs  BHEE

4 ik ¥ WHY)  BIEX At

RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMB'OO0  RMBOO0  RMB'000
NERTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT AREFT

Executive directors: HrEE!
Liu Shunxing (Chairman) 3IER (1) - 5,986 1,966 15 7,967
Liu Jianhong (Vice Chairperson) YR (578 — 438 1,545 145 6,032
Gui Kai (Chief Executive Officer) B (7747 - 3,608 617 - 4225
Niu Wenhui 38 - 3329 617 145 4,091
Zhai Feng 2 - 2,684 201 142 3,027
Shang Jia (note (i) B ) - 2,698 409 - 3,107
Shang Li (note (i) W (ML i) - 300 104 35 439
Non-executive director: FHTES !
Wang Feng Tié - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: BUFYTES:
Yap Fat Suan, Henry B 179 - 144 - 33
Jesse Zhixi Fang A 179 — 144 — 323
Huang Jian BE 179 - 144 - 323
Zhang Zhong R 179 - 144 - 33
Total f 716 20,947 6,035 482 30,180
HAMERERERAT 189
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

1"

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) These represent amortisation of the fair value of shares
award under the Scheme (Note 41) measured at the grant
date and charged to the profit or loss during the reporting
period.

(ii) Ms. Shang Jia has been appointed as an executive director
with effect from 7 April 2021.

(i)~ Mr. Shang Li resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 19 March 2021.

(iv)  Ms. Li Yongli has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director with effect from 19 May 2022.

Save as those emoluments presented above, no other fees
or emoluments were paid, have been or will be paid to
the independent non-executive directors in respect of the
current year (2021: nil).

The executive directors’ remuneration shown above was
for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services as directors of the Company. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

During the current and prior years, no emoluments were
paid to the directors of the Company as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.

ESRTRARTM (&)

it

)y BUEEREBZEETOROAAER
BB (GE4)  ERTHMAE - Uk
WEHANRRAER -

(i)  HELZLER2021F487 BEEERQT]
WITES -

(i) HELEAER2021E3IR19HEEARRD
AIAITES ©

(iv) ZFoKERLEWN202295 87 BEEEARA
AN IR TESE -

B EXFRSIRR 2 B2 5 - ANFE B
S S B R KE N TEILIFH
TEH(20214F - &) o

PITERE 2B AR EEARRFMA
SEEBZRGHM - LIFRTESZ
B SEEAANRRES ZRGHM - L
B FTER Z B REERART
B2 RIGHM

RERLRFE - RRRRAXARES
ST R DA SR I AR SR
B2 A VE R RE R (E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EHRRMEE

12 FINANCE COSTS 12 BF#ERRAS
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FT ABR¥TIT

Interest expenses on: FEZW -
— Bank borrowings — RITER 69,951 45,062
— Other borrowings — HEMER 533,401 414,173
— Senior notes (Note 35) — BEEE (Wi 35) 66,454 68,608
— Convertible loan — AR E R — 36,950
— Lease liabilities —HHEaE 5,223 4,685
675,029 569,478
Less: Interest capitalised (Note) Ji RBERAE (H15E) (128,713) (123,358)
546,316 446,120
Note: Kt -
During the year ended 31 December 2022, borrowing costs have HE202F12A31B8 LFE W RIEH
been capitalised at various applicable rates ranging from 3.45% ZEEZERKARENRBERBFE3A45% E
to 11.76% (2021: 3.9% to 11.76%) per annum for qualified 11.76% (20214 : 3.9% = 11.76% ) & | K5t
assets classified as construction in progress under property, plant BWEMMEFAYE BMERSE T 2EEL
and equipment. 12 o
e REEERAT 191

2022 F3§



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBERRME
13 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 13 BRFTISBLATEF
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging the KRS T AR M 2 40k T 51 &8 -
following:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFIT
(Restated)
(FEqt)
Cost of sales and services rendered included: $4&2& T RRGK AN BFE -
Direct operating costs for BEREE 2 HEEITRA
power generation 697,920 529,371
Cost of power plant operation and BRGETT MM E RIS A
maintenance services 168,140 136,953
Cost of provision of design services AT RIS A AR 7,896 5,100
Cost of provision of technical and Bty K s SRR A AR
consultancy services 10,431 16,824
Cost of provision of agency service on sale 3R # I E R IR ARFE AL A
of equipment — 6,546
Cost of engineering, procurement and REE - BRI RIE TR
construction services 198,920 178,571
Cost of finance lease BEEHER AR 829 685
Cost of other revenue H g AR AR 259 1,828
1,084,395 875,878
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BELRBIINE
equipment 554,986 452,625
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZITE 45,021 39,449
Amortisation of other intangible assets HAb & Es 97 97
Total depreciation and amortisation FrEREHERE 600,104 492,171
Less: Amount capitalised as construction JB FEAMIE - BB R
in progress under property, plant TRIBZENMLEHE
and equipment (7,981) (3,460)
Total depreciation and amortisation FTABEZITE R ERTE
charged to profit or loss 592,123 488,711
Amounts included in cost of sales and ST ASRHEARTS K S E R AN 2 RE
services rendered (564,954) (455,439)
Amounts included in administrative expenses &t A &2 & &% 27,169 33,272
Auditor’s remuneration ZHAN N & 3,870 3,500
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14 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Taxation in the consolidated statements of profit or (a)
loss represents:

e M RRMEE

14 FBFHEx

RAEmRTHEN

2022 2021

Current tax EHIE
— PRC corporate income tax — PR MG
— PRC withholding tax — FREIFEIRE

Under/(Over)-provision in prior years: BEFED,(Z):HER S ¢

PRC corporate income tax R ¥ FTER
Deferred tax (Note 37) EIERIB (M2 37)

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been
made as the Group did not generate any assessable
profits arising from Hong Kong during the year
(2021: nil)

PRC corporate income tax is provided for at the
rate of 25% (2021: 25%) for the year of the profits
for the PRC statutory financial reporting purpose,
adjusted for those items which are not assessable
or deductible for the PRC corporate income tax
purpose.

Taxation arising from other jurisdictions is calculated
at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, no
provisions for income tax have been made in other
jurisdictions as the Group had no assessable profit
generated from other jurisdictions (2021: nil).

aHEREBERAR

2022 3§

RMB000 RMB'000
AR® TR AEEFT

79,422 69,498
95,720 26,661
4,013 (1,029)
48,685 26,603
227,840 121,733

AEERAFERETBRELE
FRBLRET - HORHE BB
1R (20214 : ) -

BARBEEEMEHREMS - FED
EMEMEBAFE R Z25%
(2021 4F : 25%) 2 T REHEE M -
WREFBMEMSHEAT  ®E
JRHNBI ST AT 0 2 T8 B {E L P o

WEM AR EMEE ZHBRERN
R RN AR 2 RITHEHE - NF
EEZE20224F12 A31 BIEAEEE
REHMEER 2 EREF - B
REEEMRNEEER 2FHE (2021
FME)o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

14

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statements of profit or
loss represents: (CONTINUED)

The law of the PRC on corporate income tax
provides that qualified dividend income between
two “resident corporates” that have a direct
investment relationship is exempted from income
tax. Otherwise, such dividends will be subject to
5% to 10% withholding tax under the tax treaty or
the domestic law. The Group is currently subject to
withholding tax at 5% to 10%.

Deferred tax liabilities, in respect of the PRC
withholding tax that would be payable on the
distribution of these profits, have not been
recognised as the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that such profits will
not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

14 FIBFHBAX(E)

(a)

ReERkRhMEH  (#)

BIEPEARLFIBECEMERE
RE BREREABETMEIER
] 2E#ETREREFZRE S
AT ARF o BRI IRIBFUGEE
HEAERE - BE LR ERIN5%
E10%FT1SH o N B H ATEEE
RI05% £ 10% ISR ZRT °

AR RIESIHE QR 2 RBIK
B BOHEAER AR Z ARRRA
i

o
o
il
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ek mRmEE
14 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 14 FiSHBAX(E)
(b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting by HERBERFEMNHBERZHESE
profits at applicable tax rates: a2z ER AR
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTFr
(Restated)
(&)
Profit before income tax BRFT{S AT A 1,153,609 939,595
Tax calculated at domestic income B HE IR E A E 25%
tax rate of 25% (2021: 25%) (20214 : 25%)
(note (i)) (Ha (1) 5 288,402 234,899
Effect of different tax rates of certain B FHIBARTRMRE 2 ¥ 2
subsidiaries (note (ii) (K952 (i) (22,484) 1,195
Tax effect of share of results DEBMENTIRAERE
of associates and joint ventures BaziEyE (42,812) (37,951)
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEEMUA 2 B (20,998) (20,515)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ~AJ 1% & BV F k& 1,128 1,419
Under/(Over)-provision in prior years ~ BAFE D (%)t E 4,013 (1,029)
Effects of tax holiday on assessable ~ RHREFMAZMEAR
profits of subsidiaries established JERTUR N R E 2
in the PRC (note (i) WIAZ B (W5t (i) (133,336) (138,489)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERT S E1E 2 FHIAF £ 41,094 58,893
Utilisation of previously unrecognised 1 fiB{E AR 2 FHIEE B K&
tax losses and unrecognised TRMER
temporary differences (7.604) (20,392)
Tax effect of temporary differences RERLREER 2 HIETE
not recognised 24,717 17,042
Recognition of withholding tax RNEF MR 2 TBITIE
in current year 95,720 26,661
227,840 121,733
B RERARA R 195
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

14

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
profits at applicable tax rates: (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) The domestic tax rate (which is PRC corporate
income tax rate) in the jurisdiction where the
operation of the Group is substantially based is used.

(i) Certain subsidiaries resided in western China or
engaged in high-technology industry are entitled
to preferential income tax rate of 9% and 15%,
respectively (2021: 9% and 15% respectively). The
tax rate of subsidiaries resided in Hong Kong SAR is
16.5%.

(i) Certain subsidiaries of the Group established in
the PRC are entitled to preferential tax treatments
including three years exemption followed by
three years of a 50% tax reduction. The first year
exemption started from 2017 to 2022 (2021: 2016
t0 2021).

14 FIBFHBAX(E)

(b)

RERREFTENRIARN X BEst
EAZ SRR ()

() AEEERELTERMEEER
B2 B (BB AEMEHE) -

iy HFrBRTEESMMRIEES
HRMEE£ZHBRADRZES
9% MM 15% Z BEFTEF K (2021
F 9% M15%) - BABERRME
NAMNTIEE16.5% °

iy AEEMPNFERBETHERR
ZERBESR  BE=F25H
RABER = FRR S —EBE
RFEE —FH2017E2022F
F14 (20214F : 201620214 ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic earnings per share

e M RRMEE

15 BRER

(a)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing

the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB871,817,000 (2021:
RMB787,534,000 (restated)) by the weighted
average number of 8,805,114,000 (2021:
8,325,227,000) ordinary shares in issue during the
year, after adjusting the effect of shares repurchased

and held under the Company’s share award scheme.

The calculation of the weighted average number of

ordinary shares is as follows:

EXEREF

EAGRAFRZBBARITRR
ExmBRkseg® XRARKHB
HEaEEBERBEEIREZ
TR BARTREENRF
A R #871,817,0007T (20214 :
A R #787,534,000 T ( E it 1% ))
Bx LASF N B 39T X AR 2 N 15
B #:8,805,114,000 % (2021 4 :
8,325,227,000 B stEBHE »

I TR BT R

2022 2021
‘000 ‘000
Fh FhE
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 1A1EE#TZEER 8,985,329 8,366,855
Effect of shares converted AR 2 2 — 87,455
Effect of treasury shares (Note 40) EFR 22 (K 40) (180,215) (129,083)
Weighted average number of BITHR D 2 IR FIT 2R
shares in issue 8,805,114 8,325,227

Tﬁl’] a%ﬁabﬁ’ilﬁf‘ﬁﬁj

2022 3§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RARMEE

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

15 SRERNE)

(b)

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares from the share award

(b)

BESRAEF

BESRANREHBDETLE
B2 Dt P B E R AR 5 MR fn 28
BREMAM S EE L BNE -

scheme.
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#ETFT AREFT
(Restated)
(&)
Earnings: F
Earnings for the purpose of basic ERGRERN 2 &
earnings per share 871,817 787,534
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEB T LB
shares: 2
Share award scheme 17 BB =T & — —
Earnings for the purpose of diluted BE G AT 2 H T
earnings per share 871,817 787,534
2022 2021
‘000 ‘000
T FA
Number of shares: RO :
Weighted average number of BEARGRERNZ
ordinary shares for the purpose @Ak 2 INEFI 8
of basic earnings per share 8,805,114 8,325,227
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEETLTBRN 2
shares: %
Share award scheme &7 tEED AT & 37,477 64,732
Weighted average number of BEEREN
ordinary shares for the purpose B INRE T B
of diluted earnings per share 8,842,591 8,389,959

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EHRRME
16 DIVIDEND 16 RKE
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFR ARWEFr
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of RAFERNEAREE B
the Company recognised as BERREDEZ
distribution during the year:
2021 Final — HK$0.03 2021 5K — BR0.038T
(2020: HK$0.03) per share (2020 : BF%0.03787T) 230,272 208,857

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022
of HK$0.035 per ordinary share has been proposed by the
directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the
shareholders at the forthcoming general meeting (2021:
final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2021 of HK$0.03 per ordinary share has been proposed
by the directors of the Company and approved by the
shareholders at the general meeting held on 24 June
2022).

e REEERAT
2022 3R

RAREHEE NARESEIREHLE
2022F 12 A3 BIEFECREREGE
A% 0.035 8T - WARRNRENKRITZ
IR EFRE FHE (2021 F - RRRE
E0REHI2021F12A31BIEFEE
2R EFRR0.03BIT  WELRRE
M2022F6 A24 BRI RRAFKRE
HHEE) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RARMEE

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17 Y% BERRE

Plant, Office
Leasehold machineryand ~ furniture Motor ~ Construction
Buildings improvements  equipment  and fixtures vehicles in progress Total
il K&
B®  NERE  HRIRE  WOGE RE  RRIRE a5
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  AREFR  AREFL  AREFE  ARETZ
Cost: A
Asat 1 January 2022 N1 418 503,142 2762 9915369 82439 64801 2,698,091 13,291,604
Additions hE 509 32,366 9,806 6223 15,980 4869910 4,934,794
Transfer from construction n progress ~ EETEEA 283,469 — 3888560 1,302 - (417333) -
Reclassifications EpLd (289,993) - 289,993 - - - -
Disposals (ote 42(c) HEfE0) (120 (52) (1492 (1259) (6,077) - (26,335)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 426) ~ REMBARHE 46) (68,262) - (1,40090) (1879) (52)  (68738)  (1,540362)
As at 31 December 2022 RN2ENA31A 48725 60,076 12,695,294 75491 74183 335932 16,659,701
Less; accumulated depreciation: - ZitiFE:
Asat 1 January 2022 W0REIA1R 96,602 27762 1207953 67,201 40210 - 1839728
Charge for the year FEENE 28,669 - 50513 14,528 6,654 — 554986
Redlassfications Eid (12,151) = 12,151 = = = =
Disposals (Note 42(c)) ez (49) (52) (7,065) (11,650) (5,059) - (23,879)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Vote 42() ~ REMBLF M 42) (6,863) - (1065 (672) (397) - (2899
As at 31 December 2022 20225127318 106,208 710 1497109 69,407 41,408 - 1msR
Less: accumulated impairment loss % 23t EEHELHE
Asat 1 January 2022 N2 A18 u - - - - AVE] 2,167
Impaiment loss charged for theyear  AF3HRZBEE W)

(note (d) - - - - - 39,139 39,139
Disposal of subsidaries (Note 426) ~ EEMBAR W42/ (44) - - - - = (44)
As at 31 December 2022 #2002%125318 - - - - - 41,262 41,262

Net carrying value: RERE:
As at 31 December 2022 2025127318 517 32366 11,198,185 6,084 775 3284670 14,876,597

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRMEE

17 9% - BERRE(E)

(CONTINUED)
Plant, Office
Leaseold  machinery and furniture Motor  Construction
Buldings improvements  equipment  and fixtures vehicles — inprogress Total
Br MEMERE  BERRE  BRGE g EIR a%
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
AREFT  NBETT  ARETT  ARETT AREFT AREFL AREFL
Cost: HA:
Asat 1 January 2021 RONEIRIA 685,966 21863 7678910 70,639 SLTAT 2013087 10528272
Additions (restated) HE(El) - - 16,591 1725 18990 5879064 5931897
Disposals i - - (539) (3,65 (43n) - (8567)
Transfer from construction in progress ~ ZRTEEA - — 4806970 - - (4806970) -
Disposal of subsidiaries RENBLA (182,824) (101)  (2.586,624) (1,794) (1,565) (387,000 (3,159,998
As at 31 December 2021 (restated) RONENANB(ED 503,142 21762 9,915,369 82439 64801 2,698,091 13,291,604
Less: accumulated depreciation: 4 BiHH7E :
As at 1 January 2021 RANE1R1A 9,718 27,363 940,768 65,695 35935 — 11689719
Charge for the year (retated) RERERH (B 29,267 — 408978 6,002 8378 — 565
Disposals ik - - (570) (3261) (3700 - (7531)
Disposal of subsidiaries RENELR (31,383) (101 (141203 (1,239 (403) —  (174345)
As at 31 December 2021 (restated) B0 E1ANE(ER) 9,602 2762 1207953 67,201 40210 — 1439728
Less: accumulated impairment loss % - ZitEEHERRE
As at 1 January 2021 RANE1R1A 4 - 21,260 - - 2123 B4
Disposal of subsidiaries TRARE - - (21,260) - - - (21,260)
As at 31 December 2021 RANENAINA 4 - - - - 2123 2,167
Net carrying value: REFE:
As at 31 December 2021 (restated) RANENANA(ED) 406,49 — 8707416 15,238 2,591 269598 11,849,709

HEHEREEARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a)

For the above items of property, plant and
equipment, except for construction in progress,
depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 to 25 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of

useful lives of

5 years and
lease terms
Plant, machinery and equipment 20 years
Office furniture and fixtures 3to 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
depreciation of RMB3,565,000 (2021:
RMB1,573,000) has been capitalised as construction
in progress under property, plant and equipment.

As at 31 December 2022, certain buildings
and power plant equipment with an aggregate
net carrying value of RMB237,432,000 (2021:
RMB308,268,000), RMB8,575,305,000 (2021:
RMB8,533,727,000), respectively, have been pledged
to banks and certain financial institutions to secure
banking facilities and other borrowings granted to
the Group (Note 33 and Note 34).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group reassessed the recoverable amounts of
certain construction in progress in power generation
segment due to the change of project development
and construction plans, and as a result an
impairment loss of RMB39,139,000 was provided
and recognised in “Other gains and losses, net”.
The estimates of recoverable amount were based on
the fair values less costs of disposal, using market
comparison approach by reference to recent sales
price of similar assets. The fair value on which the
recoverable amount is based on is categorised as
level 3 measurement.

17 9% - BERRE(E)

(a)

AEME  BENEE BERT
BIN - WERBAAERAFHEE
AR ESED B EARIREER
Ul

Bg¥ 20E 254

HEMEEE A A

FR5FR

ez 8REE

R~ HEERAN 20%F
ﬁX

PRRIE 3ESEF

E 54F

HE2022F12831HIEFE ¥
¥ BEERRBETNZERIEZ
BERbITE 25 A AR 3,565,000
JL(20214F © AR¥1,573,0007T) °

MR2022F 128318 A&
RITREMSREEERREM
ERBEEENBFZREAR
KR A EERBFED R
A R #237,432,0007C (20214 :
A R #308,268,0007T )~ AR
8,575,305,000 7T (2021 £ : AR
8,533,727,000 7T ) (B 5F 33 & Mff 5%
34) o

REE2022F 128318 ILFE
RIAE MM T EMmER
AEESHAR T HREERERETL
REAKREISRE - R T REERK
AR #39,139,0007T » W ATH
fibiBzs - JFME] o ATREI S EA AT
ERAABERERERA 2%
BUEERMNIHEEERREATS
LLEUE - AT E S BEATRIBR A
BEESEAIPHE -

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
2022 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A KRR MIEE
18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18 EHREEE
Power plant Leasehold
equipment lands Total
EWRE HELH b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETIT AR¥TIT

As at 1 January 2022 202261 A1 H
Net carrying amount BREDFE 84,360 446,174 530,534

As at 31 December 2022 R2022F12A31H

Net carrying amount REVFE 68,938 490,270 559,208
For the year ended BZE2021F12A31H

31 December 2021 IEFE
Depreciation charge REFEZ T

for the year 14,151 25,298 39,449
For the year ended HZE2022F12A31H

31 December 2022 EFE
Depreciation charge REFEZ I

for the year 15,422 29,599 45,021
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases RenEXkPEEHESERE

comprise the following:

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AEREFT

Within operating cash flows TR BN TR T 273 371

Within investing cash flows B EEIRRH 109,293 154,701

Within financing cash flows HEEFHIRRF 18,507 15,637

Total cash flow for leases (note(ii)) HERSREEE (W) 128,073 170,709

Notes: st -

()  During the year ended 31 December 2022, additions ()  E1E2022F12A31BHIEFE - FAE
to right-of-use assets were RMB140,520,000 (2021: &= A R #140,520,000 7T (2021
RMB179,620,000). F: AR¥179,620,0007T) °

(i)~ These amounts include payments of capital and interest iy BELLHEREHEEENELANFEE
element of lease liabilities, payments for leases of low- ENH - BKEEEEHENRUREE
value-assets and payments of lease payments on or before i A ZATMAER R (BEEEL
lease commencement date (including leasehold land). h) o BB ERR AR - REIEME
These amounts could be presented in operating, investing WERHHR o

or financing cash flows.

e REEERAT 203
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19

mENBHRRMTE
18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 18 EREEE(#E)
For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the BZE2022F KX2021F 12 A31HIEFE -
Group leases various machineries and leasehold lands for AEEEES THARER T HIEREL
its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed EzR -HEGRZETHREMER
term of 2 years to 49 years, and do not contain extension M+ - BEHRKILEEE - §Ha
or termination options. Lease terms are negotiated on A R E K EBTRE - RETR 2R
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different R AGM o S0 e 70 & HARBR K s A R4
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and HERRE  AEBEEAARZEERET
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the ERFITHIR o
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.
Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities are HEBBEZHEHARS BN T
set out in Notes 36 and 48. 36 %248
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 |EEE
Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
mE HuErEE k]
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTF T ARETFIT AEETIT
Net carrying value as M2021F1A18BZ
at 1 January 2021 REVFE 873,557 702 874,259
Amortisation s — (97) (97)
Disposal of joint ventures BRESEEMEE QT
and associates (14,101) — (14,101)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBARET
(Note 42(b)) (st 42(b)) (42,606) — (42,606)
Net carrying value as R2021%F12A3182
at 31 December 2021 RESE 816,850 605 817,455
Amortisation ey = (97) (97)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREARET
(Note 42(b)) (st 42(b)) (29,134) — (29,134)
Net carrying value as 7202212 A3182
at 31 December 2022 AREHE 787,716 508 788,224

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Goodwiill

Goodwill mainly arose from the acquisition of China Wind
Power Holdings Limited (“China Wind Power”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively “China Wind Power Group”),
which was completed on 1 August 2007. China Wind
Power Group was engaged in investment in wind power
plants, engineering, procurement, construction and power
plant operations and maintenance.

Upon application of HKFRS 8, Operating Segment in 2009,
the relevant goodwill was reallocated to the respective
groups of CGUs, which represent the lowest level within
the Group at which the relevant goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes, and not larger than
an operating segment. The reallocation was based on the
relative value of the relevant groups of CGUs.

The carrying amounts of goodwill are allocated to the

e M RRMEE

19 |EEEEE)

]

T

HERHARUEREREZERERAQ A
(THPEERE]) REWBQR(5ERE
BESE]) MEE - WEMN2007F8H
1K - PERAEEENEEEEMRE
&R R ETARERET MM
& o

R2009FEACKE B MRS ER)DES
S — KEDEE - HEREREN DK
EHEACELEVRE REeELET
HERKREAEEANGATANEEZE D
AR EEITEE - B TRREREE
DR HEER - BN ORENERRS
EHEMRAZAEEE -

HEZREEBERIEZES MINEZ

groups of CGUs as follows: WeEEBETEHED
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBFT ARETFT
Investment in wind power plants R EEREE 713,813 742,947

Engineering, procurement and construction &%t + BREE K i T

("EPC Business”) (TEPC] 75) 75,800 75,800
Power plant operations and maintenance ~ BRUETT N 4E# 60,687 60,687
850,300 879,434
Less: Impairment J - ORE (62,584) (62,584)
787,716 816,850

HEFEREEERAT
2022 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 19 |EEBE(Z)

Goodwill (CONTINUED)

The Group has assessed the recoverable amount of
goodwill and determined that the goodwill has not been
further impaired, apart from the impairment provided
for the EPC Business CGUs in the prior year as explained
below.

Investment in wind power plants CGUs

The recoverable amount is determined based on fair value
less costs of disposal calculations. These calculations use
cash flow projections based on the financial forecast
covering the forecast period and pre-tax discount rate of
17.04% for operating projects and 19.71% for under-
construction projects (2021: 14.53% for operating projects
and 14.93% for under-construction projects). Cash flows
beyond the forecast period are extrapolated at zero%
(2021: zero %) growth rate. The cash flows and discount
rate reflect assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the relevant CGUs. Key assumptions
include estimated sales volumes and on-grid tariffs
from the Group’s existing and forthcoming projects and
discount rate. The management determined these key
assumptions based on past performance and expectations
on market development.

The following analysis demonstrates the sensitivity at
the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in discount rate and power generation volume,
with all other variables held constant, under which no
further impairment is required.

If discount rate applied increased/decreased 1% (2021:
1%) and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's recoverable amount of the CGUs as at 31
December 2022 would have decreased/increased
by RMB1,486,354,000/RMB1,660,293,000 (2021:
RMB1,440,944,000/RMB1,623,574,000).

]

T

(&)

AEECFEREZARRESRE BRI
BREZEPCEBRSELBETENEFE
RZBES  BEZAELEELE TR
1A -

RERBIREBELELET

AR ESERAABERDEKATEH
ELFEER T AN TR AR
BIERMBETRESR  HELHEB KA
17.04% W ATHTIRE - HERBHKA
19.71% MFLRTITIR = (2021 F « KAl A
14.53% 1 14.93%) - HBBTEA AR 238
SHRENT % (20214 + T) MR KR
B -BeRERMRERETME2EE
AR S EL B T#ITHERAZ
B - MRERREEAEERE RAKIE
BistEEA LRESE EERITEX -
EEEENBALHRREMISEE ZTEH
T IS LE AR R AR o

UTFAHER - A RGEERETE
ZERT  BEHRUFBENRERA
SRR 2 U - TR — S -

BRSRFEF 2 FTIR I, 1% (2021 4F -
1%) BB M ERIFTTE - AEER
2022F 12 ANBZREEAE LA
Bl & ZA SR 18 hn A R 1,486,354,000
7T /1,660,293,0007T (20214 = A R ¥
1,440,944,000 7T,/ 1,623,574,000 7T.) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Goodwill (CONTINUED)

Investment in wind power plants CGUs (CONTINUED)

If power generation volume increased/decreased by 5%
(2021: 5%) and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's recoverable amount of the CGUs as at
31 December 2022 would have increased/decreased
by RMB2,469,037,000/RMB2,475,707,000 (2021:
RMB2,490,247,000/RMB2,495,030,000).

EPC Business CGUs

The recoverable amount is determined based on a value
in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering the forecast period approved
by senior management. The pre-tax discount rate applied
to the cash flow projections was 15% (2021: 15.0%) and
cash flows beyond the five-year period were extrapolated
using a growth rate of zero% (2021: zero %). Key
assumptions include estimated revenue growth rate and
discount rate. The management determined these key
assumptions based on past performance and expectation
on market development.

In 2017, the directors of the Company determine that
the scale of the EPC Business will be reduced in the
foreseeable future and the Group will principally focus
on the provision of design and consultancy services.
Accordingly, an impairment loss of RMB62,584,000 was
recognised in the 2017.

HEHEEREBERAR
2022 3§
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19 |EEEEE)

]

T

(&)
RERBEHREMAELELET (F)

MREBEEENM WAL 5% (20214 :
5%) BT B SRITTE - AEER
2022F 12 A3 BB eEEETAINE
SRR AR 2,469,037,000
gt/ 2,475,707,0007C (2021 AR
2,490,247,000 7T,/ 2,495,030,000 7T ) °

Rt - FERBIREELET

AR eEERNRERETDAFE L 2
REEmET - MZRLREFRATIER
mRREEEBHECHMBEE -BeRE
FERIERA 2 BEATHT IR & 15% (2021 4F -
15.0%) - BB AFEH s BeRERE
BREBEEMRQ021F : T) - BER
FEEMFTMAERERITEREX - BEE
RIEBERENTSERAPETZEH
RRER o

R2017F » ARG EEERAEAER
ZIGRERET KB R TR 2 RIER
WL AEBEKEEENRIEHRZF R
AR o HIt 2017 FERRARE
62,584,000 7T 2 (B EE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

19

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Goodwill (CONTINUED)

Power plant operations and maintenance CGUs

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering the forecast period
approved by senior management. The pre-tax discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections was 15% (2021:
15.0%) and cash flows beyond the five-year period
were extrapolated, using a growth rate of zero% (2021:
zero%). Key assumptions include estimated service
revenue, expected profit margin and discount rate.
The management determined these key assumptions
based on past performance and expectations on market
development.

In view of the directors of the Company, any reasonably
possible change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount is based would not cause the CGUs’
carrying amounts to exceed their respective recoverable
amounts.

19 |EEEEE)

BE(E)

EHELREERTELET

ReEES Ao emERRERETRE
Rt H 2 FEREEMESE @ MZEER
EBANERSREEEM A ZMHTE
HoBEeRERAERBAITREIS%
(20214F : 15.0%) * AFHZRBERE
AR T REEEMAR(2021F : T) o
RRBRRBIE TR UA - TEEFE &
PIRE - EREENBEEELTSER
TEEAERIET T X SRR MHE -

ARBEZRREABEN AR 25 2 7
RERAGREELEZAEEHTISEERT
ELBET REEEBRHERREESE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND BALANCES 20

WITH ASSOCIATES

e M RRMEE

REE DT 2 s R RRIRRE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AEEFT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Cost of investment in associates A /NI R 3= §5 %N 715,050 415,050
Share of post-acquisition results and other  FE(GUEBEEE N
comprehensive income, net of dividends Hh 2 EEs
received MBS 60,984 94,980
Share of net assets of associates (note (i) DEBERNTZFEE
(B7aE () 776,034 510,030
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from associates (note (ii)) JFE U Bt 8 N B FIB (BT AE (i) 10,110 12,849
Other receivables from associates (note (i)  FEUKEE A &) E b ZTE
(K1t (i) 48,073 40,743
Finance lease receivables BERERUBGK 29,959 33,473
88,142 87,065
Less: Allowance for amounts due J R R R FORE R
from associates 2,307 2,307
85,835 84,758
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to associates AR NCIE S| (2,540) —

e REEERAT
2022 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

20

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND BALANCES

Notes:

0

20 REBE QTSR ERRIARE

WITH ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) (&
Mt -
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, particulars of the () 20229 }%2021F 12 A31H » xEHE
principal associates are as follows: NRIZFBEOT -
Place of establishment
and operations and Proportion of ownership interest and Principal
Name of associates kind of legal entity voting rights held by the Group activities
R AL % 3 it 2
i NG KrEuERES AEEFRRIRERELLH TEEK
2022 2021
Fuxin Taihe Wind Power The PRC, limited company 30% 30% Wind power plant
Co., Ltd. (“Fuxin Taihe") investment and
operation
E%ﬁ%?ﬁtﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂ FE - BRAA [BE IR E FIEST
([&H%A )
Changtu Liaoneng Xiexin The PRC, Sino- foreign equity 25% 25% Wind power plant
Wind Power Co., Ltd. joint venture investment and
EEERHBERNEE FE - RINEEDRE operation
BRAR EERRIRE RIEBTT
Jilin Province Zhanyu Wind The PRC, limited company 17.15% 17.15% Wind power plant
Power Assets Management (note) (note) investment and
Co., Ltd. ) (HiaE) (Kist) operation
EMEERREEELEEE P BRAF] EEMRE FIET
BRAT
Chaoyang Century Concord ~ The PRC, limited company 30% 30% Wind power plant
Wanjia Wind Power investment and
Co., Ltd. operation
HB1HA BREANEE HE - ARAT AR E BT
BRAQF]
Daoxian Century Concord The PRC, limited company 25% 25% Wind power plant
Wind Power Co., Ltd. investment and
operation
BEBERNESERLAF  PE - BRAIF B E IR E MIEST
Daoxian Jingtang Century The PRC, limited company 25% 25% Wind power plant
Concord Wind Power investment and
Co., Ltd. operation
BHRHAEHERNESE FE - BRATA [EE IR E FIEST
BRAE
Harbin Maitu Precision The PRC, limited company 16.67% N/A Medical research
Technology Co., Ltd and experimental
development
e FR VMK B A S R AT Rl BIRAF] BEAEREREER
ABRAT]
Harbin Beike Health The PRC, limited company 20% N/A Medical research
Technology Co., Ltd and experimental
development
R L RHE R T BRAR BEMRELERIEERE
BRAF
Note: Bat

Even though the Group holds less than 20% of the voting
rights of this investee, the Group demonstrates significant
influences over this investee by holding a seat on the
board of directors for a board with 10 members and the
10 members each represent respective shareholders of this
investee, and the Group is the second highest percentage
in total shareholding of the investee while the largest
shareholder hold 18.55% equity interest in this investee.

BEAREEFARIRE ARRERIRN
20% - ANEEREBIA T NBURE
RERRZEATEN  BEFE10
FRERIE—RA - B RRER L
BREAN  AREFARKRERRBRIHR
EF_ ANk MERSHERASLR
18.55% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND BALANCES
WITH ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(i) Amounts due from associates represent trade receivables
and are unsecured, interest-free and repayable based on
terms of the relevant contracts.

The ageing analysis of the above trade receivables net of
allowance for credit losses, based on the invoice date, is as

20

e M RRMEE

REE DT 2 s R RRIRRE
(&)

Mat (%)
(i) FEMEE AR RUE 5 R A
* - R BAIRRIBBME RAEZ N RIE

ERBHERMZ Bl B E 5 IR
ERERBBRIIBRZRROITNT

follows:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKETFT ARBTFiT
Within 3 months 3EAR 7,803 10,542
7,803 10,542

(i) Other receivables from associates are unsecured, interest-
free, non-trade in nature and repayable on demand.

Summarized financial information of associates

Set out below is the summarized unaudited financial
information for Fuxin Taihe, a principal associate of the
Group in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
prepared under HKFRSs which is accounted for using the
equity method.

HEHEREEARAR
2022 4§

(i) EA RS R R FUR R EERER
28 IFE S NEREEERY -

EABE QAR zMBERM

TRIRERM GRS LRGSR - A%
WEREZBERNRENTA (ARAE
ERBALRARAER L ERHENRT])
ZAREETT I AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R RMEE
20 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND BALANCES 20 RE(EARIZHERRIRAIAERE
WITH ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) (#&)
Summarized financial information of associates BEABE QT 2B ERBMR (2
(CONTINUED)
Fuxin Taihe BE¥ES
Summarized statement of
financial position B A AR R A At 2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AEEFT
Current assets MENEE 284,860 255,161
Non-current assets ERBEE 404,987 449,353
Current liabilities mEAE (56,906) (53,488)
Non-current liabilities MBI AME (218,500) (161,300)
Net assets EEFE 414,441 489,726
Summarized statement of profit or loss #HEEHER
and other comprehensive income Hth 2 T W R gt 2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARMFor
Revenue A 103,631 105,268
Depreciation and amortisation HrEE A0 (36,958) (37,767)
Finance costs BFTER AR (9,865) (11,246)
Other expenses HEmAY (10,872) (12,333)
Profit before income tax B PTIS RS AT & 45,936 43,922
Income tax expense i (11,221) (12,052)
Profit and other comprehensive income IR s R Aty
for the year PHEWEERE 34,715 31,870
Dividend received from the associate ARFU R = A B
during the year 30,000 3,000
Share of profit and other comprehensive REE EML N &
income by the Group Hih2EW DR 10,415 9,561
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRERME

20 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND BALANCES 20 REZE QAR ZERRARKIEEREE

WITH ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) (#&)
Summarized financial information of associates BAREE QAT M BERM (&
(CONTINUED)
Fuxin Taihe (CONTINUED) EFRE(E)
Reconciliation of the above summarized financial LB IS B AN B AR A B TS Rk R iR
information to the carrying amount of the interest in 2B E AR ERREEE CHRNT ¢
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT
Net assets of Fuxin Taihe as BEHFEEMN12A318=
at 31 December EEZEE 414,441 489,726
The Group’s shareholding in Fuxin Taihe REERRERRE 2 ER 30% 30%
The Group’s share of net assets TEEELEEFREZ
of Fuxin Taihe FEE 124,332 146,918
Unrealised profits, net REREHN - PR 1,069 (2,084)

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest AEBREHFRESER

in Fuxin Taihe ZIRHEEE 125,401 144,834
Set out below is, in aggregate, the carrying amounts of the Tt AR EERAERSEAR B ER
Group’s interests in all individually immaterial associates FERMENRZ ERREEEART

that are accounted for using the equity method.

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT

Aggregate carrying amount of REEEIHEEE AT
the Group’s interests in these associates ez 2 BRAEE 650,633 365,196
The Group’s share of profit and other JEIEARNEE 2 NEE
comprehensive income for the year i ) e Bt 2 AR R 4R 5R 9,589 8,704
e REEERAT 213
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE
21 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES

WITH JOINT VENTURES

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position are as follows:

21

REE LR R RERFKIRHRE

EHEAMBAHRARER BN ¢

2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARMBTFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Cost of investment in joint ventures BEPERENAR 1,331,663 1,177,856
Share of post-acquisition results and other  FE(GUEBREE N
comprehensive income, net of dividends Efth 2 AW
received HBREWAR R 246,460 95,345
Share of net assets of joint ventures ElIEEEEEE
(note (7)) SFE (ML) 1,578,123 1,273,201
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from joint ventures (note (i)  FEULE 4> EEFIE (H152 (i) 90,563 31,365
90,563 31,365
Less: P
— Allowance for amounts due from — YA & ERIR
joint ventures (note (i) EBREHE (B aE ) — 2,181
90,563 29,184
Current liabilities REAE
Amounts due to joint ventures [ERTE & RENRIE (156) (155)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES 21

WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, particulars of the

e M RRMEE

REE LR R RERFIRHRE
(&

MEE

(i) R2022F K2021F 12 A31H B4

principal joint ventures are as follows: EREFBNOT
Place of
establishment and Proportion of Proportion of
operations and kind ownership interest voting right held by Principal
Name of joint ventures  of legal entity held by the Group the Group activities
AR %
BELELR RiERERE AEERH 2 EELA AEEBERTELS  FEER
2022 2021 2022 2021
Jilin CWP-Milestone Wind ~ The PRC, limited Company 49% 49% 50% 50% Wind power plant investment
Power Co., Ltd. and operation
EHRERBERN HE - BRAF REBRE RET
BEERDF
Erlianhaote Changfeng The PRC, limited Company 49% 49% 50% 50% Wind power plant investment
Century Concord Wind and operation
Power Exploiture Co., Ltd.
“EEEREGARERE B BRAR RERIRE RET
BRAF
Jilin Taihe Wind Power The PRC, limited Company 49% 49% 50% 50% Wind power plant investment
Co., Ltd. and operation
EMFREENEEBRDE FE BRAR BERRE RET
Tongliao Taihe Wind The PRC, limited Company 49% 49% 50% 50% Wind power plant investment

Power Co., Ltd.
BERGBNEEERAT FE  BRAA

HEHEREEARAR
2022 4§

and operation
REBIRE RET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

21

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES
WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

0

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, particulars of the
principal joint ventures are as follows: (continued)

Place of
establishment and

Proportion of

21

REE LR R RERFKIRHRE

(&)

Mat (%)

() A2022FER2021FE12A318 - XES

%ﬁ%ﬁ‘%mﬂt : (,‘g’)

Proportion of

operations and kind ownership interest voting right held by Principal
Name of joint ventures  of legal entity held by the Group the Group activities
AR %
BELELR RiERERE AEERH 2 EELA AEEBERTELS  FEER
2022 2021 2022 2021
Mengdong Century Concord  The PRC, limited Company 32.16% 32.16% 50% 50% Wind power plant investment
New Energy Co., Ltd. and operation
SRBAFERARRE B FRAA REBRE RET
Gansu Guazhou Century The PRC, limited Company 51.45% 51.45% 50% 50% Wind power plant investment
Concord Wind Power and operation
Co., Ltd. REBIRE RET
HBIMNBERNEE hE - ARAA
BARAF
Suzhou Century Concord The PRC, limited Company 49% 49% 50% 50% Wind power plant investment
Wind Power Co., Ltd. and operation
EMBRRENEEERAR HE - BRAF REBIRE RET
Xiaoxian Century Concord  The PRC, limited Company 49% 49% 50% 50% Wind power plant investment
Wind Power Co., Ltd. and operation
BEHERNEEERAR RE - ARAA BERRE RET
Jianghua Yao Autonomous  The PRC, limited Company 59.3% 59.3% 50% 50% Wind power plant investment

County Century Concord

Wind Power Co., Ltd.
TEERBREHRS

BEHEEERDE

T BRAT

and operation
BEBIRE RET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES
WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

21

Notes: (continued)

0

e M RRMEE

REE LR R RERFIRHRE

(/Zét\g

nE

Mat (%)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, particulars of the ()  M2022%F X2021F 128318 £ E
principal joint ventures are as follows: (continued) BEPEFBHOT - (&
Place of
establishment and Proportion of Proportion of
operations and kind ownership interest voting right held by Principal
Name of joint ventures  of legal entity held by the Group the Group activities
MR RS ¥R
RELXER REREEER AEERFEZEELSA AEESERERLA  EEER
2022 2021 2022 2021
Jingmen Century Concord  The PRC, limited Company 59.3% 59.3% 50% 50% Wind power plant investment
Wind Power Co., Ltd. and operation
FFGeRNEEERART B BRAF REBIRE RET
Hebi Century Junlong Wind  The PRC, limited Company 59.3% 59.3% 50% 50% Wind power plant investment
Power Co., Ltd. and operation
BEGSAERNEE HE - BRAR REBRE RET
BRRAE
Yantai Yihao New Energy The PRC, limited Company 49% 49% 50% 50% Wind power plant investment
Development Co., Ltd. and operation
EaEsHRRE HE - BRAR REBIRE RET
BRRAE
Yantai Jinghui Consulting The PRC, limited Company 49% N/A 50% N/A Wind power plant investment

Co., Ltd. (Yantai Jinghui)*
EBaRERABRAR

TE - BRAT

* During the year ended 31 December 2022, the

Group acquired the 41.5% non-controlling interests
of Yantai Jinghui from 5 individual persons, one
of them is the director of the Company, and then
disposed of 51% interests in Yantai Jinghui to a
third party. After the above transactions, the Group
lost control of Yantai Jinghui with remaining 49%
equity interests in Yantai Jinghui and the 51% equity
interests in Yantai Jinghui was held by the third
party which is independent to the Group. Under the
joint venture agreement, at least two-thirds of the
voting rights are required for decision on directing
the relevant activities of Yulong, the directors are
of the opinion that the Group’s interest in Yulong is
accounted for as a joint venture (see Note 42(b)).

HEMEEFEEERAA

2022 F3§

and operation
BERRE RET

* HE—ZT-—-F+-A=+—H
LHFER - AEERE S A EAUE
JE S IBHEA1.5% FEIE HIERER -
HfF—AABARBIEE - Hik
REEBESBRBANS1%Ex
EFE=A- LR 5% &£F
KETHEABENIZHE &
BIEBEHA90% WEE  EEE
P& T84 51 % AR B 18 7 i AR S
ME=H#F8 - BEEEHTE
ISR EEEBEL AT
BEBEL=DZ MK BE -
EERABAEEERENESE
WAEAELE(RBMEL20b)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RARMEE

21 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES
WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(i) Amounts due from joint ventures included trade receivables
from joint ventures amounted RMB4,894,000 (2021:
RMB11,124,000), which were netted of impairment loss
of RMB nil (2021: RMB2,181,000), are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable according to the terms of the relevant
contracts. The remaining balances of RMB&85,669,000
(2021: RMB18,060,000) are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The movements in the impairment loss on trade receivables

21

REE LR R RERFKIRHRE
(&

Mat (%)

iy ERAELEREBEREAELEZER
E SR EHRRER A A 4,894,000
R#(20214F: AR 11,124,000
7T BESEAAREZT (20214
AREE2,181,0007T) © %S A EE
R« REWRABERBEITERER - Ftk
SE AR 85,669,0005T(20214F: A
R 18,060,0007T) AEERER - %
B NMEIRERIEE -

AEER2CERKE S RERERSK

from joint ventures during the year are as follows: SFERMOT :
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)
BEFEANES BEFERNTEE
FREX ERBEK
(BEFERRE) (BEERRE)
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT AREFT
At 1 January ®1A1H 2,181 2,181
Impairment loss reversed during the year, net AR EIELER - F4E (2,181) —
At 31 December ®12A31H — 2,181

An aging analysis of the above trade receivables from joint
ventures, net of allowance for credit losses based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

ERBZAH - bl EWE B ERRNG
ERRARFEIREIITNAT

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTFT ARKFT

Within 3 months 3EAR 4,349 4,223
3 to 6 months 3Z6MEA 545 —
6 to 12 months 6= 1218A — —
Over 1 year 16 — 6,901
4,894 11,124
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRMEE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES 21 REELE DR REIRTIAHRE
WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) (&)
Summarized financial information of joint ventures EENEHEEEME
The Group’s joint ventures are involved in wind power AEBEZEECEATRBIBEAETERER
plant investments and operations and related activities NEBEHRE  BELRIEEEE - §HE
in the PRC, and each joint venture involved in wind R HEESECEAFRURR KRB o
power plant investments and operations has similar risks Bl AAREFTRABEELEER
and returns. Accordingly, the directors of the Company (BBMBHMELA DB 129 Kb F 5842
have considered that it is appropriate to aggregate the W BBEETENBREAESHER L2
disclosures in accordance with HKFRS 12 Disclosure of RELETEELHBENZHEER °
Interests in Other Entities and present the summarized
financial information of the Group’s joint ventures engage
in the same principal activities on an aggregate basis.
Summarized aggregate financial information of the TEERERECRNIBE EGEREL
Group’s joint ventures engaged in wind power plant FERPERINT ¢
investments and operations is as follows:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#EFT AREFT
Current assets MENEE 2,181,002 2,385,374
Non-current assets BN E E 5,728,662 5,782,836
Current liabilities mERIE (1,556,693) (1,795,582)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (2,988,063) (3,403,015)
Net assets EEFE 3,364,908 2,969,613
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the rEERaGzeEeS T
following:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTFT
Cash and cash equivalents BeMhReSEEER 487,887 201,846
Current financial liabilities (excluding RBeRAaE (TeEENS
trade payables and other payables) BIERFNEMERT) (808,576) (783,637)
Non-current financial liabilities EMBERAE (2,987,809) (3,403,015)

HEFEREEERAT
2022 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

21 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND BALANCES 21 REENLEZEZRIRFIELEE

WITH JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) (&)
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT ARBTFr
Revenue ON 1,243,365 1,277,882
Depreciation and amortisation Hres gy (435,104) (449,452)
Interest expense MEXZ (170,287) (200,749)
Other expenses Ry (218,059) (232,150)
Profit before income tax R S350 A& A 419,915 395,531
Income tax expense s (76,277) (80,724)
Net profit and other comprehensive RERFm N R E A2
income for the year Uk sasa 343,638 314,807
Dividend received from these joint RERWBGEREDL
ventures during the year — 79,351

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22 LIAABENSHEESEIAEE>
PROFIT OR LOSS SREE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARRETT

Unlisted equity securities, at fair value INAREBEFEZARET
(note) B S (Mat) 66,782 76,631
Listed equity securities, at fair value AAREBEFEC LT
ERES 85,565 —
RMB wealth management products AREIEIER 210 10,000
152,557 86,631
Analysed for reporting purpose as: BEHROTWT ¢
Current assets mEEE 138,841 10,000
Non-current assets EMEBEE 13,716 76,631
152,557 86,631
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

Note:
The unlisted equity securities represent investment in equity

securities issued by private entities established and operate in the
PRC and the United States.

23 CONTRACT ASSETS

e M RRMEE

22 DUAREBESEEHSBHIABRREZ
ERMEEE)

MEE

FrmERESEETERRERIRERZ
REDRAETZREEFRE

23 BEEBE

2022 2021

Tariff adjustment amounts (note) JE BB
Retention receivables Bire
Contract assets arising from BIERZEER

performance under construction contracts ~ MEAME

Impairment loss on contract assets SREERE
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BEHANA
vy

Current assets

MBEE

HEHEREEARAR
2022 4§

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARKETT

SKIE(Hraz) — 62,696
186,939 254,758

RS

REE 19,789 28,394

206,728 345,848

206,728 345,848
T

206,728 345,848

206,728 345,848
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

23

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Note:

Tariff adjustment amounts represented government subsidies on
renewable energy for ground projects to be received from the
state grid companies based on the existing government policies.

As mentioned in Note 4, pursuant to the Tariff Notice, a set of
standardized procedures for the settlement of the tariff subsidy
has come into force since 2013 and according to several new
notices issued in 2020, approvals for the registration in the List
on a project-by-project basis are required before the allocation
of funds to the state grid companies, which then would make
settlement to the Group.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
recognition of accrued revenue on tariff subsidy is proper based
on their judgement and taking into account the opinion from
the Group’s legal advisor, that all of the Group’s power plants of
which tariff subsidy is recognised as revenue but yet to register in
the List had been qualified for, and had met, all the requirements
and conditions as required according to the requirements and
conditions for the registration in the List. The directors of the
Company are confident that all of the Group’s operating power
plants (including power plants operated by the Group’s joint
ventures and associates) are able to be registered in the List
in due course and the tariff subsidy is fully funded by the PRC
government but subject to timing of allocation of funds from the
PRC government.

As at 31 December 2022, none of the tariff adjustment amounts
was recognised in contract assets as all power plants of the Group
have been registered in the List (2021: RMB62,696,000).

Tariff adjustment amounts classified under contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the Group’s respective
power plants are registered in the List pursuant to the prevailing
national government policies on renewable energy.

In respect of the revenue from the sale of electricity by power
plants not yet registered in the List, the directors of the
Company have evaluated the terms and conditions of, and the
counterparties to, the contracts which may impact revenue
recognition. The related receivables are mainly from the PRC state
grid companies, which would normally be settled within two year
based on past experience.

23

BREE(E)
Byet -

EERERAERBRITRTBCR - BHER
BHLRWRZ A BERETIRE 2 BT
f e

Mt sE AR - RIBEEBRA  EEHPEE
2ERZERFHE2013FEKE - RIE2020F
BHEOAIERN  BEREESHELERE
WARIZA SHERE —EBIELELE
ABERREEMNESHENEE 2B BH
BEREBMAN A EANEEETEE -

ARFEERR  FAEEZELERBEARDH
WBEER BN almREEETLMEZ
P B R GMN Bt EEBAKELR
BERER AR L EFHEEREE M
REARBEEN - ARRESHE AEEE
MELER(BFEAEEAEGELENBE DA
B EEE R RFEENTR B SERL I
B ZRIBEEXEWARNBERLE - 8
EEWHPHBERBUTAE  SE/HPANEE
YE - MBFERTEBT2ES N RERH%Z
BE e

HE2022F12A318 AR AEBRELE
BB EEEFERN - AR AR EERES
R AAREE (2021 : AR62,696,000
JT) °

REBFRTTBALLRESE - $AEHEH
B ABETE AR EBREREY
mARAES BERKESHAT -

BRARMNBEEZERELEZEBKRA - AR
AEFCHEA R ERATRER 2 AR 210
3R R - RSB TF - HEARURERK
BEREMAR - AERBATERBTE2F
rhaKkE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRERME

24 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE 24 EWEZERRRE
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FT ABR¥TIT

Trade receivables, at amortised cost (note (i) FEUNE SFIE » iikss

AR (B33 () 552,868 444,791
Tariff adjustment receivables, at amortised ~ FEMEEFREFIE - ##ER
cost (note (ii)) B (B2 (i) 811,282 1,270,491
Bills receivable, at FVTPL (note (iij) JEWER AR BEE
AR (A7 (i) 8,564 85,164
1,372,714 1,800,446
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEWE S ERFORME (H772 (1)
(note (i) (3,092) (4,498)
1,369,622 1,795,948
The Group does not hold any collaterals over trade and REEWARFHETAEKRESEREEE
bills receivable as security. AR 2 IR EELR -
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for M2022F 12 A31BEWKE ZRFRE
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 48. S EFIE RIEE48
Notes: Kt -
(i) Trade receivables (i) FEWE SRR
The Group’s trade receivables include receivables from AEERKESERBIESSE - RHEE
the sale of electricity, provision of construction and other TREMRE 2 BYHKIE - AEBTE
services. The Group’s credit terms granted to customers FZNFEEHRAE30KXE 180K - HR
ranging from 30 to 180 days. For certain construction HomwIIEE @ RNEETEP 2 REHE
projects, the Group generally grants project final REBRAAAEBRERFEIERAF
acceptance period and retention period to its customers HEZHBUWzBRIE2F o

ranging from 1 to 2 years from the date of acceptance
according to the contracts signed between the Group and
its customers.

BEFEERE@MBRAT 223
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RARMEE

24 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)
(i) Trade receivable (continued)

The movements in the impairment loss on trade receivables
during the year are as follows:

24

EWE SRR RRE (&)
Wizt - ()
() FERESER)

W E IR IR B R E B DT T

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)

BEFEANESR BEFERNTEE

FREX ERBEK

(BEFERRE) (BEERRE)

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFTT AREFT

At 1 January ®1A1H 4,498 9,983
Impairment reversed during the year, net REREEE - FHE — (5,485)
Written-off during the year RANFRZEH (1,406) —
At 31 December M12A31H 3,092 4,498

As at 31 December 2022, the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables, net of allowance for credit losses, presented

R2022%12 8318 EBWE SEZRM
K= ABIER TR IRERDIT(LLEEH

based on invoice date, is as follows: BRI -
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFTT ARKTFT
Within 3 months 3EAR 342,775 321,425
3 to 6 months 3ZE61{EA 49,612 83,135
6 to 12 months 6% 1218A 54,356 18,084
110 2 years 18224 86,759 5,877
Over 2 years 2 16,274 11,772
549,776 440,293

Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings (Note 33) are
pledged by the cash receipts from the sale of electricity by
certain of the Group’s power plants.

MORBEEEERMEREER L ER
ERAEEET 2 RITER(HFE33) &
RIEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Tariff adjustment receivables

An ageing analysis of the tariff adjustment receivables,
net of allowance for credit losses, based on the revenue
recognition date, is as follows:

24

e M RRMEE

EWE SRR RRE (&)
Wizt - ()
() FEREEEERE

M EEFBFAMRIEREER 2K
BT CARATER BB R 1A

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFTT ARETFIT

Within 3 months 3EARA 106,622 155,023
3 to 6 months 3%Z6fEA 82,315 174,391
6 to 12 months 6£121@A 196,455 246,371
Over 1 year 150 E 425,890 694,706
811,282 1,270,491

Tariff adjustment receivables from the sale of electricity
mainly represent receivables from the state grid companies.
The collection of the tariff adjustment receivables is subject
to settlement by state grid companies upon finalisation
of the allocation of funds by relevant PRC government
authorities to the state grid companies.

Bills receivable

As 31 December 2022, the Group endorsed certain
bills receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China
(the “Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order to settle
the trade payables for these suppliers with amount of
RMB784,006,000 (2021: RMB1,275,615,000). The Bills
have a maturity of one to six months at the end of the
reporting period. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards relating to the Bills. Accordingly, it has
derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Bills and the
associated liabilities.

All of bills receivable of the Group are with a maturity
period of less than one year.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group’s bills receivable
are recognised as financial assets at FVTPL as the bills
receivable are held for sale.

HEMEEFEEERAA

2022 F3§

ENHERREEHARRIZ REKE
REMPRRFOA - AR BERTHE
TREBEREF LR ZHESRR
REMRAINEEAEEEDIER -

(i) BHRRE

H1F2022F 128318 » KAEFEEE0
S B K BERTT A A 2 FEUR SRR ([ 2
BDGREEREANEESIRHZENES
FIEA AR 784,006,000 7T (2021
F: AR®1,275,615,000 JT) ° ELLH%
RASREIRE —EXNEARNEE - &
RAIEERE  ALECEEEBZS
RE 2 EBEREN - Bt - AAF]
WARBERNERE 2 2 5Bk <% M E
HEE -

AEERBIMARBZZMAH IR —
o

RECEBHBRELRIEIF 2R
EBAREBRATREEEREER
TEZE AREREEBEDBERANL
BEEAEZHANED L SREE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RARMEE

25 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

25 FMNRE - REREAEBRIR

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AR TFT
Prepayments for purchase of property, TENYE - B R EERE
plant and equipment RIE 217,995 216,437
Other prepayments HAb T ARK 148,355 131,826
Deposits for other borrowings (Note 34) Hibtg iz e (K7t 34) 240,343 190,687
Other deposits Hitiz e 146,903 122,129
Receivables from disposal of subsidiaries EENB A EKGRIE 150,687 199,476
Receivables from former subsidiaries JFE YR BB A Bl F0E 101,633 435,561
Receivables on disposal of a convertible FEW R BRI IR G55 I8
bond 37,192 37,192
Other receivables E b e U zRIE 38,910 25,102
Deductible VAT (note i) AUk BB E R (ATati) 1,195,520 968,972
Premium receivables for financial guarantee BAFSIE(RA R 2 FEUZIB
contracts 18,137 24,434
2,295,675 2,351,816
Less: loss allowance (note i) B RE 2R (KA i) (13,790) (15,319)
2,281,885 2,336,497
Less: Non-current portion JB - IERENERD
Prepayments for purchase of property, TEfRIYZE - B EAE
plant and equipment HIERUE 217,995 216,437
Deposits for other borrowings Hbfasike 240,343 190,687
Other deposits and prepayments HAbiz e R FKIA 100,445 70,205
Premium receivables for financial MBERE R 2 EYREIE
guarantee contracts 10,602 17,115
Other receivables E b GRIA 34,180 12,668
Deductible VAT (note i) FIEIE(E R (72 i) 1,068,435 853,402
1,672,000 1,360,514
Less: loss allowance (note i) B RE 2R (HTEE i) (5,600) (5,600)
Non-current portion classified under FREBPBODEE
non-current assets FREBEE 1,666,400 1,354,914
Current portion classified under REHL D EERBEE
current assets 615,485 981,583

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Note:

(i) Deductible VAT mainly represents the input VAT relating to
acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

(i) The movements of the impairment loss are as follows:

e M RRMEE

25 FBANFRE RERHEMERRIEGE)

MEE

() FHEHMMERTIEREEEENE
R B5 Mt AR E IR ANE TR ©

(i) OREBEOESHERLT

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)

BEFEHNES BEFEHNTEL

= E=PS (EEEEES

(BEERARE) (BEERRE

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFTT ARETFT

At 1 January ®1A1H 15,319 41,952
Impairment recognised/(reversed) during NEWER,/ (BE)MEEE  F58

the year, net 1,000 (22,065)

Written-off 3K (2,529) (4,568)

At 31 December R12A31H8 13,790 15,319

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables for the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 48.

26 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

2022512 A 31 B EMEYGR 2 R ET G
TERKIFE48

26 EERERWRIER

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMFor

Analysed for reporting purposes as: REWAFTAT
Current assets mBEE 32,599 17,171
Non-current assets EMENEE 164,993 91,426
197,592 108,597

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
entered into finance lease arrangements for certain of its
machines and equipment. The period of finance leases
entered into is ranged from 3 to 11 years.

HEHEREEARAR
2022 4§

HEEZE202F12A31BNEEE  EFAH
R RN ETI Y TRERERH - 58
BEHEHRAIZ 1N FERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RARMEE

26 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

26 REHESEWER(E)

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments
BEBENHE EERENRERE
2022 2021 2022 2021

Finance lease receivables comprise: RERERIFES
Within 1 year 1ELA

110 2 years 1826

2 to 5 years 2E5F

Over 5 years SENE

Less: unrealised finance income A RERBERA

Effective interest rates of the above finance leases range
from 7.33% to 9.48% per annum.

Finance lease receivables are secured over the machines
and equipment leased. The Group is not permitted to sell
or repledge the collateral in the absence of default by the
lessee.

Details of impairment assessment of finance lease
receivables for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out in Note 48.

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT AREFT ARETT

47,242 25,411 32,599 17171
44,376 25,669 32,602 18,902
107,838 63,360 87,844 51,139
49,748 24,289 44,547 21,385
249,204 138,729 197,592 108,597
(51,612) (30,132) N/A N/A
197,592 108,597 197,592 108,597

LilmEREZBRARBEF7.33%
£9.48% °

BEMERMFANEE 2 MR E R TE
R HARNRBEHNZBERAT - AEH
TR ERFEMZERR -

HE2022F12A31BIEFEE 2 BT
EFEIEEI
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2022 3§

ek mRmEE
LOAN RECEIVABLES 27 EBWRER
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETFT
Variable-rate loan receivables TFENFI R R E K 61,587 59,572
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REBAFTAT
Current assets BB E 16,347 9,909
Non-current assets EMENEE 45,240 49,663
61,587 59,572
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group HE202F12A31HIEFE - A%£H
engaged in several sales and leaseback transactions as a LB —HHEAGMHETE TERAR
buyer-lessor, in which the transfer of assets did not satisfy R EREEEBEIGA(E BT ER
the requirements of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a HAEBNE 15 ARBEEEK —HIEE - B
sale from the point of the view of the lessee. Therefore, It - REE S EEFSERREBER -
the Group recognised the transfer amount as loan
receivables.
The exposure of the Group’s variable-rate loan receivables REE 2 FEH X EWERE T X R R
to interest rate risks and relevant contractual maturity LHREEREEEREIEANT
dates are as follows:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#EFT ARBTFT
Variable-rate loan receivables HENN R EINE R
Within 1 year 1FA 20,486 14,014
2 to 5 years 2F&54F 49,310 56,493
Over 5 years SEMLE 692 329
70,488 70,836
Less: unrealised finance income Ji BEEERA (8,901) (11,264)
61,587 59,572
Details of impairment assessment of loan receivables for HZE202F12A31BLEFERKER
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 48. ZRERH A B R MEE 48 o
%ﬁabﬁ’ilﬁf‘ﬁﬁj
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBERRME
28 INVENTORIES 28 #FEH
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTFr
Raw materials R ¥ 721 465
Work in progress el 2,735 13,321
Spare parts and others R EA 55,740 13,893
59,196 27,679
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included GFE+E AR 73,049,000 7T (2021 4F :
in profit or loss amounted to RMB73,049,000 (2021: AR 47,104,000 7T) fE1B 0 A TER A FH
RMB47,104,000). X o
29 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 29 RERRELEEERA
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTHE 4,049,279 4,151,437
Less: Restricted deposits (note) B RREFR (M) (578,240) (640,967)
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEIAE 3,471,039 3,510,470

The Group's cash and cash equivalents denominated
in foreign currencies, which are not respective entities’
functional currencies, are set out below:

REBUAEER AR E BN 2 B ¥
AEZRELRSFEERENT

2022 2021
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR#F T AEFoT

Denominated in: AR EEEE -
— RMB — AR 51,281 16,487
— HK$ — BT 106 64
— US$ — T 331,205 540,739
382,592 557,290

Note: The restricted deposits mainly represent bank acceptance
bill deposits and electricity sale guarantee deposits.

st . RBREFREBRPITELERIAH

FREENHERLS -

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2022, the weighted average effective

interest rate on the Group’s bank balances is 0.25% (2021:
0.3%) per annum.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLE

e M RRMEE

HeRBRESEEHER (&)

MN20225 128318 REFRTES
ZINEFHERFEATF0.25% (2021
F:03%)°

EBAEZRARREE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARETFT

Trade payable JETE SR 500,932 473,568
Bills payable FERRIE 761,638 604,970
1,262,570 1,078,538

As at 31 December 2022, retention payables in respect of
construction contracts are included in trade payables with
amount of RMB204,660,000 (2021: RMB282,305,000)
which are normally repayable more than 1 year.
The average credit period on purchase of goods is
approximately one year (2021: one year).

As at 31 December 2022, the maturity date of bills
payable was within 6 and 12 months (2021: within 6 and
12 months).

An ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice
date is as follows:

M2022F 128318 - BNESERFFE
EEEER zEe A ARE204,660,000
JL (20214 : AR #¥282,305,0007T) * i@
BRERE—FULEE - KEWEZFEE
BEHANAE—FQ021F : —F) -

R2022%F12A31H BN ZEZEHH
fEefa A& 12ME AR (2021 4F : 618 A &
121@AMA) -

BRNESERZERITAEREBHE
)T

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFIT AREFT

Within 3 months 3{EALAR 94,006 66,186
3 to 6 months 3&6M@A 60,287 44,233
6 to 12 months 6= 121EA 7,041 2,451
1 to 2 years 18224%F 33,755 10,069
Over 2 years 2F A 305,843 350,629
500,932 473,568

e REEERAT
2022 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

31 PAYABLES FOR CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS, 31 EHEREZEMNRMR - HttEMAFIE

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS kETER
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARMBTFT
Payables for construction in progress T8 B 2 2 e 308 2,115,696 2,256,511
Retention payables EREEMNERR 1,030,618 917,272
Deposits received for disposals of subsidiaries & Ff/E A 7 FEUBEAE R 2,500 2,500
Payables on redemption of convertible loan &[Gl AJ 88 AR B3k 2 FEA 5118 — 112,150
Other payables and accruals E b FE (< 5RI8 R FERT 1B 333,678 269,184
3,482,492 3,557,617
Less: balances repayable after one year B —FRENZEE
and shown under non-current WHIRHIERED
liabilities BEZeH (745,976) (541,364)
Current portion classified under current BB P EERBEE
liabilities 2,736,516 3,016,253
32 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 32 ARE&E
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARBTFr
Construction contracts BiESR
— Billings in advance of performance — HERRIEE 59,325 139,301
33 BANK BORROWINGS 33 RITER
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT ARBTFr
Secured EHRERER 1,911,717 910,840
Unsecured EIKRRER 353,210 380,762
Total bank borrowings RITENAREE 2,264,927 1,291,602

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
2022 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EHRRME
33 BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 33 B (&)
The secured bank borrowings are secured by certain EIHRERBRITERZERD R EE Y E
buildings and power plant equipment of the Group (Note REBEEZE(MT17)  REAKER
17), cash receipts from the sale of electricity by certain ’\EEfZ NHE (24 S 2 RS
of the Group’s power plants (Note 24) and certain equity HoMIBAR 2 RRHE
interests in subsidiaries.
The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are repayable as RITERNEREEERERNAT * -
follows*:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARKFT
Within 1 year 1R 979,411 526,106
Between 1 and 2 years RE1EE2FMH 100,667 246,052
Between 2 and 5 years RE2EFE5FH 307,978 240,224
Over 5 years S5 876,871 279,220
2,264,927 1,291,602
Less: Amounts due within one year J - RREBEE TR
shown under current liabilities R—FREEz &5 (979,411) (526,106)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities FRIETRBIBEIE N5IR2 1,285,516 765,496

* The above amounts due are based on scheduled repayment
dates set out in the respective loan agreements.

The interest rate risk exposure of the Group’s bank

borrowings are as follows:

* A ERIBRHSEERZERARRE
ZEtEIERA -

AEBIBTEROFRRABAT -

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#FT ARETFr

Fixed-rate bank borrowings (& E T R ERTTIE K 228,409 254,465
Variable-rate bank borrowings TFENVARIBITIEFK 2,036,518 1,037,137
2,264,927 1,291,602

Tﬁl’] a%ﬁabﬁ’ilﬁf‘ﬁﬁj
2022 3§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE
33 BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 33

34

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s bank
borrowings are as follows:

MITER(E)

REBRITERCEREN R ZSHELMT

EHAIE
FHHERITIER
BRI BT

Effective interest rate:
Variable-rate bank borrowings
Fixed-rate bank borrowings

The fair values of bank borrowings are estimated using
discounted cash flow calculations based on the Group’s
current incremental borrowing rates for similar types
of borrowings with maturities consistent with those
remaining for the debts. The carrying amounts of non-
current bank borrowings approximate their fair values at
each end of the reporting period.

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEMTFT AEEFT

2.7%-5.2%
3.4%-4.5%

2.9%-5.3%
1.0%-4.5%

RITERZ AEE - ERAKEDHIH
REKREER - BBUERB AT ZEE
ERAE - ERREREFIRIEASHK -
RmERR - IFRBIRITERZEE S
BMHENAEEES

OTHER BORROWINGS 34 HEXK
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABRBFT AEEFT

Analysed for reporting purposes as: RBEBHITAT

Current liabilities mEasE 734,782 861,763
Non-current liabilities IEREEE 10,321,434 8,786,142
11,056,216 9,647,905

During the year, the Group has entered into agreements
(the “Agreements”) with certain PRC financial institutions
(the "Financial Institution”) and the Group drew down
RMB3,812,177,000 (2021: RMB6,417,307,000) in
aggregate from the Financial Institutions of which
RMB727,696,000 (2021: RMB1,862,924,000) was received
in the form of bank-acceptance bills. Such borrowings are
to be repayable in 2023 to 2038 with variable interest rate
ranging from 4.25% to 5.5% per annum (2021: ranging
from 4.8% to 6.13% per annum).

AEREERPEBENSREE (LT
B eplE ) FTHnR(LTEE MR
#EDIWIRFBRE R ARY3,812,177,000
JL(20214F : A R %#6,417,307,0007T )
Hrh AR¥727,696,0007T (20214 = A
R #1,862,924,00070) 2R BIRIT AN
MEZULE) o ZEERIGTE 2023 £ 20384
FLAMEE - BRENERL25%E5.66%
(20214 : {ERRFHE BL8%E6.13%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The collaterals for other borrowings are as follow:

0

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group transferred certain ownership titles
of certain property, plant and equipment to the
Financial Institutions.

The Group entered into financial guarantee contracts
in favor of the Financial Institutions for the due
performance of the Group’s obligations under the
Agreements.

Upon the discharging all the Group’s obligations
under the Agreements, the Financial Institutions will
return those ownership titles of property, plant and
eguipment to the Group for minimal considerations.
Despite the Agreements involved a legal form of
a lease, the Group accounted for the Agreements
as collateralised borrowing in accordance with the
actual substance of the Agreements.

An aggregate amount of security deposits of
RMB309,673,000 placed with the Financial
Institutions as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB272,217,000), of which RMB69,330,000
could be offset with certain repayment instalments
as agreed with the Financial Institutions (2021:
RMB81,530,000).

Other borrowings are secured by certain equity
interests in subsidiaries with an aggregated amount
of RMB3,132,215,000 as at 31 December 2022
(2021: RMB3,020,629,000).

aHEREBERAR

2022 3§

e M RRMEE

HAtpfE:R (&)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

HAi e EA RO T

AEBEKBLME  BELREZ
PIERERZ S RKE -

AEELTENR S BEE R
BEREGRANBRASEIEEETT
R o

EAREEETTHBEHORHRK
TREBEMEFECREEER
BARE EAME - BE kKRB
PrEE - BE R L RMEOEE
B AREBERERHZEZELD K
RIRRERIETZE -

R2022F 12 A3 B AHEE AR
#5 309,673,000 7T (2021 4F : ARHE
272,217,00070) - S RbirE R
BHEFAENRERECSEAA
R #69,330,0007T (20214 : AR
#81,530,0007T) °

M2022F12 A31 B E R EH—
B AR ZIREER  G5T£%8
B A R #3,132,215,000 7T (2021
F : AR 3,020,269,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

34 OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

35

34 EftER(E)

The carrying amounts of other borrowings are repayable EAEROEREEBEEERNT
as follows:

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AEEFT
Within 1 year 1R 734,782 861,763
Between 1 and 2 years RE1EFE2FHE 734,881 950,627
Between 2 and 5 years MNE2EE5FMH 3,519,321 2,366,776
Over 5 years S5ELE 6,067,232 5,468,739
11,056,216 9,647,905

SENIOR NOTES

The movements of senior notes issued by the Group

during the year are as follows:

Carrying amounts at 1 January 2022
Interest charge (Note 12)

Interest paid

Exchange differences

Carrying amounts at 31 December 2022

Less: Amounts due within one year
shown under current liabilities

Amounts show under non-current
liabilities

35 BEEE

R2022%F1 A1 HEEEE
FESH (Kt 12)
BAFE

[E 5 A

M2022%F 12 A31 B4

RERE(EE

B —ERIBZREBAE

FRBABIITER

AEEFADRITRARBEZZEHINT

Senior notes
BERE
(note)

(Hfat)

RMB’000
AEEFT

561,136
66,454

(62,723)
54,038

618,905

(618,905)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The senior notes (the “Notes”) are with principal amount of
US$90,000,000 and maturity date on 24 September 2023 unless
earlier redeemed in accordance with the terms thereof. The Notes
bear fixed interest at 10.75% per annum payable semi-annually.
The effective interest rate of the Notes is 11.76% per annum.

At any time prior to 24 September 2023, the Group may at
its option redeem the Notes, in whole but not in part, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the
Notes redeemed plus the applicable premium as of, and accrued
and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the redemption
date.

e REEERAT
2022 3R

A KRR MIEE
35 SENIOR NOTES (CONTINUED) 35 BEEE(E)
Senior notes Senior notes Total
BEER BAER pek]
(note)
(Hz)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
NREFT ANREFT NREFT
Carrying amounts at 1 January 2021 7202141 A 1 BEREEE 569,292 794,726 1,364,018
Repurchase of senior notes ERELZER — (761,153) (761,153)
Interest charge (Note 12) MEZH (Hfit12) 64,766 3,842 68,608
Interest paid BERFE (60,883) (30,066) (90,949)
Exchange differences R AR (12,039) (7,349) (19,388)
Carrying amounts at 31 December 2021 72021612 A31 REXREAEE 561,136 — 561,136
Less: Amounts due withinone year i - —EREHZ REEE
shown under current liabilities (17,029) — (17,029)
Amounts show under non-current FREaEIREE
liabilities 544,107 — 544,107
Note: Kt -

BREE ([ 2 ]) K% 490,000,000 T
FIHAA £2023F9 A 24 B (B IERE L EF0R
AIFEME) - ZEZEEFEFFEA10.75% -
FFELIMN—R o BEREZERFFELR11.76% °

M2023F9A24HAT  AEEREERDE
BEMRRBYRE  BEERSNERREA
£2100% @ I EEERER B HESBEE
B H ) 2 EAEE - AR BRI LS (18
a)e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

35

SENIOR NOTES (CONTINUED)

Note: (continued)

At any time and from time to time prior to 24 September 2023,
the Group may at its option redeem up to 35% of the aggregate
principal amount of the Notes with the net cash proceeds of one
or more sales of common stock of the Company in an equity
offering at a redemption price of 110.75% of the principal
amount of the Notes redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest,
if any, to (but not including) the redemption date; provided that
at least 65% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes
originally issued on the original issue date remains outstanding
after each such redemption and any such redemption takes place
within 60 days after the closing of the related equity offering.

35 BARE(E)
fiE : (4)

NEE A E2023F9A24 B 2 ATEEER A
(BT EEER) Z R E RpERE A RLEE
W RERIRIEAS Y 110.75% 2 BRI EE -
MEEFRANMFE (E)  FHREREHR
PE—SRZEANRERRABESFE -
FERZE%35% 2 REAS B  RH2ES
BITAVIABITEL65% L EBRASRBES
WEITREERZNAEN  BZSER IR
MRS BT RIE 2 60 RINEEA -

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
2022 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRERME

36 LEASE LIABILITIES 36 HEAE

At 31 December 2022, the lease liabilities were repayable HE2022F 128318 HEEENEEBR

as follows: s
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARMTFoT
Within 1 year or on demand 1 FERFIRERKER 13,502 11,411
Between 1 and 2 years NE1EFE 25 15,245 11,492
Between 2 and 5 years MRE2EFSEM 36,628 34,993
Over 5 years 5L 46,875 30,581
112,250 88,477
Less: Amount due for settlement JEORBBEE TR
with 12 months shown under ZARK12EAARE
current liabilities ZEE (13,502) (11,411)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months JERENBEIE F5II7R .2 AR K
shown under non-current liabilities REABREIZ&5E 98,748 77,066
37 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 37 HEMEBRRRDFAE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Tax payable in the consolidated statement of (a) FREMBMRRRPENSHTER
financial position represents:
2022 2021
RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT ARBETT

Net tax payable at 1 January 1 A1 BEMFATSTEEE 49,462 29,953
Provision for the year (Note 14) REZRERZFTSI (WL 14) 179,155 95,130
Effect of disposal of subsidiaries BEENBEARFE — (404)
Income tax paid SAFFRS R (126,898) (75,217)
Net tax payable at 31 December 12 A 31 BERFTSHFRE 101,719 49,462
e REEERAT 239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BImRMEE
37 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 37 REMBEMRRERPMER(E)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred taxation (b) EZEFTHBH
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of HAEHPBRRNFAHRDOT ¢
financial position is as follows:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE¥TFTT AREFT
Net deferred tax assets recognised RERTBE =
in the consolidated statement
of financial position 39,486 37,738
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised  iEFEF:IE & &
in the consolidated statement
of financial position (93,522) (38,089)
(54,036) (351)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during RNRERNBELERSHEERBE ZE SN
the year are as follows: T~
Deferred tax assets EREFIEEE
Accumulated Unrealised Deferred
deductible loss inter-companies gains government subsidy Total
EHTENEE FEBABATRNE ERAREE 5
022 0 0 0 022 0 02 0
RMB'000 RIB'000 RMB'000 RVB000 RMB000 RVB000 RMB000 RVB000
ARETT  A\REFT AREFL BRI AREFT AREET AREFR AREFT
At T January MATA 8875 8875 28,863 26,493 - 208 31738 37650
CreditediDebied) o theprofitorloss 08/ (G A) 2%
(Note 14) (i) - - 6,748 7,034 - (150) 6,748 6,884
Disposal of subsdiaris (Note 42(0) REMBLA WD) - - (5,000) (4,664) - 013 (5,000) (6,796)
At 31 December M2A3E 8875 8875 30,611 28863 - - 39,486 371738

At 31 December 2022, the Group had tax losses of
RMB324,654,000 (2021: RMB271,645,000) arose in
Chinese Mainland that can be carried forward to set off
against future taxable income which will expire within 1 to
5 years. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams.

2022F12B31H AEERFERK
B A 2 BiTEEE A AR 324,654,000
J0 (20214 : AR¥E271,645,0007T) © E
AR B EERTIA - &R
E5FANEE o HRRRBATRETA]
TEORIVE T AR HERE IR E TR TEE E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 37
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred taxation (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets (CONTINUED)

Such cumulative tax losses will be carried forward
and expire in year as follows:

e M RRMEE

mEMBRRRPAER (&)

(b)

ESEFRSHE (&)

FEERAEE (&)

R RBIBS B EE L EFE
B NTAAR

2022 2021

2022 2022 %
2023 20234
2024 20245
2025 20254
2026 2026 F
2027 2027 F
Total unused tax losses REARBBHEERE

At 31 December 2022, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of RMB594,182,000 (2021:
RMB547,629,000), subject to the agreement of the
Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong, arose
in Hong Kong available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The estimated tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

e REEERAT
2022 3R

RMB000 RMB'000
AR® TR AEEFT

— 15,872
63,327 82,908
73,524 87,556
23,711 27,732
46,768 57,577

117,324 —
324,654 271,645

M2022F12H31H A& HE
REBEEZHBEBEBAARE
594,182,000 7 (20214 : AR¥E
547,629,000 7T ) A # K 35 B 1& &
F o ARRRZEF R EETEAR
WARVE L IRERIEE ERER o Lbih
ST TEE 18 A] £E (R A4 8E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE
37 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

37

REMBRRRPAER (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred taxation (CONTINUED) (b) EIEFTEH(E)
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEEE
Intra-group transactions Unremitted interest Total
BBRAZRERNE FERFE &g
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT AREFr AREFT AEETT  AREFT  ARETIL
At 1 January R1A1E 38,089 4626 - — 38,089 4,626
Debited to the profit TAZER
or loss (Note 14) (B 14) 55,433 33,487 - - 55,433 33,487
Disposal of subsidiaries REMELA
(Note 42(b)) (Wt 420)) - (24) - - - (24)
At 31 December RMM2A318 93,522 38,089 - — 93,522 38,089

The deferred tax liabilities recognised relate to
temporary differences arising from intra-group
transactions including the unremitted earnings of
joint ventures and associates and the intercompany
interest payables from certain PRC subsidiaries to
overseas subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2022, deferred tax liabilities of
RMB217,870,000 (2021: RMB135,151,000) have not
been recognised for the withholding tax that would
be payable on the undistributed retained earnings
of subsidiaries of the Group, as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

EHERECHAERBEERARED
EEBERPHEBR S 2 KRERF
HEEZEREZRAH  ULX
LR BB IMNI B AR Z AR E IR
ZHEB e

FR A ZN 52 B R S 2 IR E A T B B
MEREO N AEBEER
R TER 2 AR RRAJGET S [E -
M2022F 128318 AEEKH B
REIARDIEARB BT 2 FERH
REMBIEEERSEHEEAAR
#217,870,0007C (20214 : A R
135,151,000 7T ) W AR IESHER ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38 DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are received from the PRC government
and the government of the United States of America
(“US") by the Group in form of financial subsidies for the
promotion of the development of renewable energy and
investments in the PRC and the US. Government grants
from the PRC government are recognised as income over
20 years based on the expected useful lives of the relevant
non-current assets including property, plant and equipment
invested in certain areas in the PRC, while the government
grants from the US government are recognised as deferred
income over 5 years as the relevant properties continue to
qualify as specified energy properties as defined by the US
Department of the Treasury.

The movements in deferred government grant during the
year are as follows:

38

e M RRMEE

IESE R T 5 B

TR 8 B A A SR B ER R B N SRR /A
R REIREE SR R T e (2 BT B R
Bh o RE P BIBUNT Z #TeL IR E S 3 R B
HRERENE  BEMAREBEEREZ
& A EARAE 20 F A0 HARER M A - TR
B X BB 2 8 B BI 0 X B B B R P 57
ERREEARBENE R ERREEZR
% ESFADHIEREA -

RENRLEBFHEB 2 ESHIMT

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFIT AREFT

At 1 January W1HA1H 5,215 14,693

Government grants obtained during RNEEBZ TN
the year — 954
Credited to profit or loss during the year IR T 47 B 8 (350) (1,904)
Write off on disposal of subsidiaries BEWBAT . 2ZH = (8,528)
At 31 December M12H831H 4,865 5,215
39 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT LIABILITIES 39 HBEREREARE

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTFT ARBTFT

Current ik 7.535 7,319
Non-current FERE 10,602 17,115
18,137 24,434

e REEERAT
2022 3R
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39 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(CONTINUED)

In previous year, the Group disposed its 75% equity
interests in certain wholly-owned subsidiaries to
independent third parties, and retained the remaining
25% equity interests as interests in associates. Financial
guarantees were provided by the Group to certain leasing
companies for the associates’ finance lease arrangements.
In return, these associates shall pay premium to the
Company at 2% of the outstanding debt balance under
the finance lease arrangements.

The Group has recognised financial guarantee contract
liabilities and corresponding premium receivables based
on the fair value of the guarantees provided, equal to the
present value of the premium to be received within the
leases term.

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount
of guarantees was RMB358,432,000 (2021:
RMB420,627,000), which represented the amouts
(including principal and interests) that could be required to
be paid if guarantees were called upon in entirety, of which
RMB358,432,000 had been utilised by the associates as at
31 December 2022 (2021: RMB420,627,000).

39

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

MBERERAE (F)

RZAFEE AEBHER > 2EHEA
RZIS%BEFBIE= TEEF
#R25% RIEE AR L QAR 2R - A
NAAZBE ARz BERELHRGHE
A
=

D

o

RARHPBER - RZ - BERRRX
NARBMEHE L2 REEEKHE
Z2%ERER -

REERER T HBERERAAENEZA
Bz ENRRERZANBEZERERE
WR - BIHESAS e R Z ERER
ZBE -

HE2022F 128318 ERELEE A
AR® 358,432,000 (2021 F : AR
420,627,0007C) + BN AJ e BSRIERF X
Nrz2BEReBE (BEASRFL)
AR® 358,432,000 7T (2021 F : AR
420,627,0007T ) B 2022412 A318
HEEEARIEMFERA -

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
2022 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(a)

Share capital

Ordinary shares issued of HK$0.01 each:

40

e M RRMEE

A

No. of shares

Nominal value

BB mE
000'shares RMB’000
TR AR ETFor
As at 1 January 2021 M2021F1 A1 H 8,366,855 72,412
Conversion of convertible loans into  AJEE Y E R A @A%
ordinary shares 618,474 5,087
As at 31 December 2021 7R2021%F 12 A31H 8,985,329 77,499
Cancellation of ordinary shares FEEE IR (A ()
(note (i) (67,460) (549)
Issue of ordinary shares (note (i) BATE B (A ) 57,600 493
As at 31 December 2022 720226 12H31H 8,975,469 77,443

Notes:

U]

(ii)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company purchased a total of 21,750,000 ordinary
shares of the Company through Tricor Trust (Hong
Kong) Limited, the trustee engaged by the Company
for purpose of satisfying the share awards under the
Share Award Scheme adopted by the Board.

In addition, the Company repurchased a total of
384,130,000 ordinary shares of the Company for an
aggregated consideration of RMB226,689,000 on
the Stock Exchange. 67,460,000 repurchased shares
with total par value of RMB 549,000 were cancelled
by the Company during the current year, the related
costs of repurchase were RMB39,510,000 and the
exceed of costs of repurchase over the par value of
the shares of RMB38,961,000 was charged to share
premium. And the remaining purchased shares were
cancelled by the Company subsequent to the year
end, the issued share capital of the Company was
reduced thereon.

During the current year, 57,600,000 ordinary shares
were issued for the purpose of the Group’s share
award scheme (Note 41).

aHEREBERAR

2022 3§

Mt

HZE2022F12A431BEFE
RKABEBARETEFTERM
MARM RS THRG R
B M & A A & 5% ATricor Trust
(Hong Kong) Limited * & B 5t
21,750,000 AR A2 A B A% o

BEAN + AR B TR B 32 P (00 B kR
384,130,000 [ AR A1 E @Ak - 35
K FE £ 5 A R 226,689,000
JL ° 67,460,000 % 2 [0 B % 15
HEmERARE549,0007T
EARFEENBARTES  BHE
= B K AR A A R 39,510,000
7T BIEERARR B (D EE/ A
R # 38,961,000 7C 5T A &% {7 %
B - HHEDERORFRES
RAR S - B AR AR
BBITIRA o

REE - NEEEIT T 57,600,000
R 3E A% A P Rk 1 B2 Rt 21 (Tt
41) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

40 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Treasury shares

As at 31 December 2022, 495,740,000 ordinary
shares are held as treasury shares (2021:
152,020,000 shares).

for the purpose

40 MRAMGEE (&)

(b) E=FR

M2022%F 128318 K RQ &l #F
495,740,000 f% i 18 % 1F A& JE 17 A%
(20214 : 152,020,000 %) °

No. of shares
No. of shares

of share award  for the purpose

schemes  of cancellation Total

R B Rt &l RAREHEN
ZBRBEE BROEE &t
000'shares 000’shares 000’shares
F& T& T
As at 1 January 2021 K201 1 A18 156,300 — 156,300
Repurchased during the year REEE — 28,720 28,720
Vested during the year (Note 41) NG 57/8 (f1a41) (33,000 — (33,000)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021412 A31 H 123,300 28,720 152,020
Repurchased during the year REREE 21,750 384,130 405,880
Issue of ordinary shares BITE B 57,600 — 57,600
Cancellation of ordinary shares  FE§HE @M% — (67,460) (67,460)
Vested during the year (Note 41) N 57/8 (i 41) (52,300) — (52,300)
As at 31 December 2022 72022912 B31H 150,350 345,390 495,740

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Company purchased a total of 21,750,000
ordinary shares of the Company at a price ranging
from HK$0.61 to HK$0.68 per share with a total
consideration of RMB12,762,000 through Tricor
Trust (Hong Kong) Limited, the trustee engaged by
the Company for purpose of satisfying the share
awards under the Share Award Scheme adopted by
the Board.

In addition, the Company repurchased a total of
384,130,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a
price ranging from HK$0.60 to HK$0.69 per share
with a total consideration of RMB226,689,000 on
the Stock Exchange.

H £2022F 128318 1 F &
ARBIEBBREESTERMD
B REETE THRG RE M
B2 A &) % 5% A Tricor Trust (Hong
Kong) Limited LA & 1%0.617% 7T &
0.68 B LR BRI IS HE
21,750,000l AN A &) L@ A% « 484
€4 12,762,000 TAREE -

AN AN R B AR B R FT A B R
0.6078 7T £0.6978 Jr [0 B % 7

384,130,000/ A A A E @R - W
R TEHF AREE226,689,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Treasury shares (CONTINUED)

Treasury shares for the purpose of share award

schemes

During the year ended 31 December 2015,

151,500,000 ordinary shares were repurchased from

market at a price of approximately HK$0.55 per
share for a total consideration of RMB66,572,000.
And the treasury shares are held for the purpose of

the Group’s share award scheme (the “Scheme”), of

which:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The directors of the Company approved an
aggregate number of 61,700,000 shares
under such scheme were granted to the
relevant participants of the scheme and all of
these shares have been vested to the relevant
participants of the scheme up to 31 December
2018.

On 4 April 2019, the board of directors of the
Company approved to grant an aggregate
number of 33,000,000 shares under such
scheme to two directors. 8,250,000 shares
were vested on 15 February 2020, 15 February
2021 and 15 February 2022, respectively (see
Note 41).

On 22 April 2019, the board of directors of
the Company approved a special share award
scheme of 6,000,000 shares to be awarded to
employees of the Group and all of these shares
were vested on 26 April 2019.

On 29 April 2020, the board of directors of
the Company approved a special share award
scheme of 4,000,000 shares to be awarded to
employees of the Group and all of these shares
were vested on 30 April 2020.

aHEREBERAR

2022 3§

40

e M RRMEE

A FEE (&)

(b)

EFR (&)

R R B2 EFR

HZE2015F 12 A3MALEFER
151,500,000 f% & i AR LA B AZ 490.55
BILRMSREE  BEEAAR
¥ 66,572,000 7T + W H 1E B E 17 IR
BE - ARAER 2R EENEE
(T5H&1]) - Hep -

(iii)

(iv)

RNABESRBZA SIHER
D #8815 61,700,0000% © &
£2018F 128310 AT A&
BEERHIE REZTEEE
2EE o

W

R2019F 4848 » KR A
EFEeREBEZTEHAE
33,000,000 8% FA LA 24 AN 2D
RlZMBES - 2572020
F2H158 202142 A15
BM2022%F2A15BE %8B
8,250,000 f% (R.KI7E41) »

R2019F4822H » AR A
E =gt 6,000,000 %45 7%
B 1n S2EIET & - ZAR DA A
BEGAEEHZET - R
2019 4 A 26 B ERE »

MR2020F4 A29H © AR A
E =t/ 4,000,000 8% 55 %
B {n B2EhET & - ZAR S
REGEAEEZET IR
20204 A 30 HFERERB »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RARMEE

40 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(b) Treasury shares (CONTINUED)

Treasury shares for the purpose of share award
schemes (CONTINUED)

(v)  On 18 October 2021, the board of directors
approved to grant an aggregate number of
14,000,000 shares under the Scheme to two
directors. 3,500,000 shares were vested on 15
February 2022 (see Note 41).

(vi)  On 21 April 2022, the board of directors of
the Company approved a special share award
scheme of 3,000,000 shares to be awarded to
employees of the Group and all of these shares
were vested on 10 May 2022 (see Note 41).

On 2 April 2019, the board of directors of the
Company resolved to grant an aggregate number
of 113,000,000 shares under the Scheme to the
employees of the Company.

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2019,
113,000,000 ordinary shares were issued
for the purpose of the Group's share award
scheme (Note 41), of which:28,250,000 shares
were vested on 15 February 2020, 24,750,000
shares were vested on 15 February 2021 and
23,150,000 shares were vested on 15 February
2022. (see Note 41).

On 15 October 2021, the board of directors of the
Company resolved to grant an aggregate number
of 59,100,000 shares under the Scheme to the
employees of the Company.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2022,
57,600,000 ordinary shares were issued for the
purpose of the Group's share award scheme
(Note 41), 14,400,000 shares were vested on
15 February 2022 (see Note 41).

40

AN (&)
(b) EFR(E)
BB B2 EFR ()

(vy F2021%108188 & =
ZIRIEFZET 8L/ 14,000,000
AR P LA SR A A RIRRAIESS o
R2022F28158 B % B
3,500,000 f% (R.FI5E41) ©

(vi) FA20229F 48218 KAAQA
T E gt/ 3,000,000 8% 4 7
AR S2EET & - ARG A A
REGEAEEZET - TR
2022F5 B 10BEKEE (R
BisE41) o

2019 4R2H  REIEE GRS
REZTERMARNEIRTFEH A
113,000,000 BEHIHS

() HEEHZE2019F12A31HWNF
ERN - BEEMRD EZERE
177 113,000,000 A% 38 I
(5E41) » H 28,250,000
BEE2020F2 A15H BB -
24,750,000% 7#£202142 A
158 & B ° 23,150,000 i% 7£
2022F2 15 H%E - (AH
FE41) °

A2021F 108158 KA A Al &
EgRFMARNABEIREAHR
59,100,000 I AFT&I AL (D ©

()  HZE2022F12A318FE -
RAEERG ZEEE(F
41)iMm¥17 7 57,600,000 f% &
AL - WH202252 A 158
558 7 14,400,000 A% (R
ftsEa1) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(9]

(d)

Treasury shares (CONTINUED)

Treasury shares for the purpose of share award
schemes (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
21,750,000 ordinary shares were repurchased from
market at a price of approximately HK$0.66 per
share for a total consideration of RMB12,762,000,
which are held for the purpose of the Group’s
share award scheme subject to the approval of the
directors of the Company in the future.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represented the excess
of the fair value of the shares of the former
holding company acquired pursuant to the group
reorganization in prior years, over the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

Other reserves

Other reserves mainly represent share-based
payments reserve and included share-based
compensation recognized of which the related share
options have forfeited after the vesting date or were
still not exercised at the expiry date.

aHEREBERAR

2022 3§

e M RRMEE

40 RAMEE (&)

(b)

(c)

(d)

EFR (&)

BB 82 EFR ()

REZE2022F12 A31BNEER
21,750,000 f% & B I A B % £90.66
BITHERRETISEE  BEEA
AR®12,762,0007C » &L T @A
RRARARER R EEFE -8
BUERTESNATESGHAE -

BABER

KRB ZHANBRERBATEFE
SESARE 2 RIER R R RN
RAE - BEARRMERRZIRELT
ZRtn 2 EEZ &R ©

Hitbf s

HREETZAUTFEBRRZIA
B RER 2N ZEFEXMZK
RERTRERTURERBEER
MEAERITRE

249



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

40 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

41

(e)

Retained earnings

Pursuant to the relevant laws in the PRC, each of
the subsidiaries established in the PRC is required to
allocate 10% of its profit after tax to the statutory
reserves fund until such fund reaches 50% of
the subsidiaries’ registered capital. The statutory
reserves fund can be utilised, upon approval by the
relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses
or to increase registered capital of the subsidiaries,
provided that such fund is maintained at a minimum
of 25% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. As at
31 December 2022, retained earnings of the Group
comprised statutory reserves fund amounting to
RMB1,743,603,000 (2021: RMB1,241,481,000).

SHARE AWARD SCHEMES

According to the share award scheme approved on

15 June 2015 by the board of directors of the Company,

under which a part of shares of the Company will be

awarded to the Group’s employees as an incentive (the

“Scheme”).

(a)

On 4 April 2019, the board of directors approved to
grant an aggregate number of 33,000,000 shares
under the Scheme to two directors of the Company.

On 2 April 2019, the board of directors of the
Company resolved to grant 113,000,000 new
awarded shares to not less than 30 selected persons
by way of allocate and issue of the new awarded
shares pursuant to the specific mandate, out of
which (a) 55,600,000 connected new awarded
shares will be granted to 12 connected grantees by
way of allocating and issue of new shares pursuant
to the specific mandate and (b) 57,400,000 non-
connected new awarded shares will be granted
to not less than 18 non-connected grantees. The
resolution was adopted by the special general
meeting of shareholders on 20 June 2019.

40 MRAMGEE (&)

a1

(e)

REEF

RRPEREERE  PREIRAAQT
BHEANBEARFEMEZ10%E
FEERBBAE  BEERHABEIRN
AIFEME A2 50% - &ES IR
REHER - REBQABRBFTLRA
AIFEMER25% @ EEHEBAET
WA R H RET B B g A RlEE
M&ERS - R2022412 A318 >
AEBREETRABABZETR
wm & A ARM1,743,603,000 7T
(20214 + A R #1,241,481,000
TT) °

Bt SR Bt &

KIE2015F6 A15H » ARARIESEH
HE2—BREREE - RIBEZTEA
AN —BARDBIEARBIRTEEET
(T&T&1l) -

R2019F4 48 ARFIEEE
R 4% 45T £ 4L 33,000,000 A% FB A
BENEAARZMEES o

MR2019F4A2H  ARFIESE
ARBABEE R R R R T
BN D 2 AT DR 30858
7 A 1% H 113,000,000 A% 37 25 B)
f& {7 - E A (a)55,600,000 fi% B8 & 5
RENIRGD 1B AR IR R IR %
REBEITHBROZ AR T 122 6E
EEA ¢ K (b)57,400,000 f% 3F #F 28
B D BR TR 182 IERM
EAEA o WREER2019F 6 H
20 B R RIFRIR2BIB -
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41 SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

The vesting dates of the above aggregate
146,000,000 award shares are as follows:

On 15 February 2020 (or in the event
that 15 February 2020 is not
a Business Day, the first Business
Day thereafter)

On 15 February 2021 (or in the event
that 15 February 2021 is not
a Business Day, the first Business
Day thereafter)

On 15 February 2022 (or in the event
that 15 February 2022 is not
a Business Day, the first Business
Day thereafter)

On 15 February 2023 (or in the event
that 15 February 2023 is not
a Business Day, the first Business
Day thereafter)

The fair value of the 146,000,000 shares awarded
on the grant date was valued at HK$0.3236 to

HK$0.3510 each share.

HEMEEFEEERAA

2022 F3§

e M RRMEE

41 ROEREEI(EZ)

3t #4851 146,000,000 % 22 B A% 1D
ZEBBHENT

202092 A 158 (fW202092 A 158
WIAREER  BIAHEE—EZ%XH)

25%
202142 158 (#2021 42 15 HI
IEAEHER  BAEBE—EEH£AR)
25%
20222 A 158 (202242 A 1581
IAEER  BAEBE—[EAE%A)
25%
202342 158 (f%2023F2 A 15 HI
IEREER  RIAEBE—EEEAR)
25%

Hp#EF B - % F £ 146,000,000
I EZ AR EBEAETK0.323678
JTZE 0.3510/8 7T °
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e MR MEE
41 SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

(b)

On 18 October 2021, the board of directors
approved to grant an aggregate number of
14,000,000 shares under the Scheme to two
directors.

On 15 October 2021, the board of directors of
the Company resolved to grant 59,100,000 new
awarded shares to 37 selected persons by way of
allocating and issue of the new awarded shares
pursuant to the specific mandate, out of which (a)
31,900,000 connected new awarded shares will
be granted to 15 connected grantees by way of
allocating and issue of new shares pursuant to the
specific mandate and (b) 27,200,000 non-connected
new awarded shares will be granted to 22 non-
connected grantees. The resolution was adopted by
the special general meeting of shareholders on 15
December 2021.

The vesting dates of the above aggregate
73,100,000 award shares are as follows:

On 15 February 2022 (or in the event
that 15 February 2020 is not
a Business Day, the first Business
Day thereafter)

On 15 February 2023 (or in the event
that 15 February 2021 is not
a Business Day, the first Business
Day thereafter)

On 15 February 2024 (or in the event
that 15 February 2022 is not
a Business Day, the first Business
Day thereafter)

On 15 February 2025 (or in the event
that 15 February 2023 is not
a Business Day, the first Business
Day thereafter)

The fair value of the 73,100,000 shares awarded
on the grant date was valued at HK$0.6950 to
HK$0.7876 each share.

AE%E

REEA

a1

B R B8 (F)

(b)

A2021%F 108188 - =€ RE
%5t 214804 14,000,000 i% A LA 28 8
NABIMAES °

R2021F10A15H ' ARAIEE
FRFERIBE BRI S Bl R BT
FRBRMMNAFRNAI7TEREAL
# 759,100,000 f& ¥ 8@ It - E
 (a)31,900,000 A #E A 22 B A% 17
AR R B LA 0 B R BT T AR
BEARET 15 BEBARA - &
(b)27,200,000 [i% 3 #8 8 ¥ 22 ED AR 1
R T 22 B IR A © 5ZIER
HN2021FE12 A5 BRI E
AEEZBB FHEF2HBHA
20211015 B2 AR BHA
2021411 B 26 B 2 o

485 73,100,000 AR HE B A% (D
SFEEHMT -

202242 515 H (4202242 A 15 B 3F
BEER

CAABEZFE—AEXER)
25%
202342 A 15H (4202342 A 15 B3k
CAIABEEE—EEER)
25%
202442 15 H (4202442 A 15 B 3k
CREEBFE—ELEH)
25%
202542 158 (4202542 A 15 B 3F
CAIBEEFE—EEXER)
25%

RIEFH - &®FH73,100,000 B A%
EZ2AREEAEERR0.69508TE
0.7876 8T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41 SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(continued)

49,300,000 shares were vested on 15 February
2022 and 3,000,000 shares were vested on 10 May
2022. The relevant fair value of the vested shares of
RMB22,584,000 was released from other reserves
to eliminate the related cost of treasury shares of
RMB6,812,000. The difference of RMB15,772,000
was credited to share premium.

Movements in the number of awarded shares during
the year are as follows:

e M RRMEE

41 ROEREEI(EZ)

202292 A158 & 2022F5 A
10 B + 49,300,000 X 3,000,000 &
ExkEE - BEBROCEER
AEE AR 22,584,000 Tt HAts
REPINE - WEREFR 2
MAAREE,812,0007T » AR
15,772,0007T,2 Z &5t ABRME(E

RAFRNZERD 2 BELE N
B

Number of shares

R EE
2022 2021
As at 1 January m1A1H 139,100,000 109,500,000
Granted during the year KERT 3,000,000 73,100,000
Vested during the year BB EE) (52,300,000) (33,000,000)
Forfeited during the year AREEFeK (4,700,000) (10,500,000)
As at 31 December ®W12A318 85,100,000 139,100,000

The Group recognised total expense of
RMB29,519,000 (2021: RMB8,881,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2022 in relation to the share
award schemes.

aHEREBERAR

2022 3§

H £2022F 128318 It F &
REBE AR AR 2B T 1R
S s 5EA AR 29,519,000
(20214 : AR¥8,881,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

42 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 42 HFERERERMEE

CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) REXBHAEBZRS
2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Ktat ARBFT ARBTFr
(Restated)
(Eil)
Profit before income tax B PTIS RS A& 1,153,609 939,595
Adjustments for: EECESEI=I
Finance costs YR IDN 12 546,316 446,120
Interest revenue FBUA 7 (27,435) (16,115)
Depreciation of property, plant e
and equipment KEETE 551,421 451,052
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEENE 40,605 37,562
Amortisation of other intangible H A & s
assets 97 97
Release of deferred government 3 AE IR T 478 B 8
grants 38 (350) (1,904)
Impairment loss on property, plant e
and equipment NEEREBE 17 39,139 —
Impairment loss reversed on trade FEUE B FRIE
receivable SB[ 9 — (5,485)
Impairment loss recognized/ H b FEWRIE 2 R E
(reversed) on other receivables R,/ (8EE) 9 1,000 (22,065)
Impairment loss reversed on JEW & & EERIA
amounts due from joint ventures SEE (D 9 (2,181) —
Fair value changes in financial assets AR BIEFTS
at FVTPL BEZ®EA
Bans eREE
ZARBEE 8 (82,736) (78,154)
Fair value losses on derivative ABRESFAR
component of convertible loan BEZEEE 8 — 172,636
Gain on redemption of convertible B RRES
loan & 8 — (28,524)
Share-based compensations VARGt RE2E 2 3R 41 29,519 8,881
Share of profit of associates, net JEILEEE R RN &R -
HEE (20,004) (18,265)
Share of profit of joint ventures, net ~ FE{F& &%
A - FER (151,115) (134,246)
Gain on disposal/liquidation HE KB AR
of subsidiaries, net 2 UGS - REE 8 (255,589) (259,766)
Loss on disposal/liquidation HE A ERE
of joint ventures MEEE RRZ
and associates, net E518 - FE 8 — 27,254
Exchange (gain)/loss, net &5 (Uezs) /E51E -
FER 8 (26,482) 1,348
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BER
and equipment RiEBE 8 1,263 393
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2022 ANNUAL REPORT



42 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 42

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRERME

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

RERERERMEE(F)

(a) Cash generated from operations (CONTINUED) (a) REEKMBzERE(E)
2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt ANEB¥T T AR ETFor
(Restated)
(&)
Operating profit before working &E&E&#BA]
capital changes: 2R 1,797,077 1,520,414
Increase in inventories FEEN (31,517) (15,852)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and FEE FERF M
bills receivable SR, (Em) 24,016 (673,871)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,  TEISFKIE « E& K
deposits and other receivables HAb FEURIE
AL, () 678,599 (56,460)
Decrease in contract assets ERIEERD 139,120 317,519
Increase in loan receivables eI E FAE N (2,015) (30,178)
Increase in finance lease receivables — FEURELE RS 180N (88,995) (84,457)
Increase in amounts due from NI E Q|
associates 0 (1,077) (6,721)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due YA & EFIE
from joint ventures (&), SEd (23,089) 10,511
Increase/(decrease) in trade and BN E SRR N ER
bills payable #Zn, Osd) 184,446 (59,469)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables £ fth fE < Z0 8 K fE =+
and accruals FIECRA) /1 (72,182) 386,278
(Decrease)/increase in contract ERAEE
liabilities CRLA) /I (79,976) 75,620
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due B AL EFIE
to joint ventures Z2m, Od) 1 (4,718)
Increase in amounts due to associates JE{HE ‘& A B FIAIE H1
&N 2,540 —
Cash generated from operations KEEBF RS 2,526,948 1,378,616
(b) Disposal/liquidation of subsidiaries (b) HE&E FEMEAR

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and

2021, the Group disposed certain equity interests

in its subsidiaries to independent third parties with

the net gain on disposal/liquidation of subsidiaries as

follows:

HEHEREEARAR
2022 4§

HZE2022912 A31 BHF2021 » &
EEBRLEWB AR 2D IED
ERBYE=H BB EENB
DRI Z WG  FEIT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

42 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 42 #HZAaBRE&RERMKET(E)

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Disposal/liquidation of subsidiaries (CONTINUED) (b) HE&E EEMEBAT(E)
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARMTFr
Consideration and subsequent HEMEERE
adjustment:
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB A RIS RIE TR 708,036 955,266
Proceeds from liquidation of BEMHB AR
subsidiaries PIES OV 10 99
________ 708,046 955365
Less: Carrying amounts of net T EMB AR FEE
assets of subsidiaries disposed of: 2 BREEE :
Right-of-use assets FREEE 66,824 113,628
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB KRB 1,311,321 2,964,393
Inventories FE — 321
Trade and bills receivables JBUE S IE N B 325,710 181,248
Contract assets ERIEE = 54,414
Prepayments deposits and other TENFHIE - e Rk
receivables HAth FEUCRIR 66,975 340,900
Deferred tax assets FIEFTSTREE 5,000 6,796
Cash and cash equivalents ReFReEEIAE 129,604 48,403
Other borrowings HAb &K (908,071) (2,268,627)
Bank borrowings RITER — (32,207)
Trade payables FERTE SRR (414) —
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  FEfTHIBA T 2 718 (453,325) (449,929)
Deferred government grants IEE AT B — (8,528)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFTERAE — (24)
Other payables and accruals E b R FOR K FERT RUR (24,610) (228,281)
________ 519,014 722,507
Realised profits on transactions 75 B T B A R
between the Group and these REEER 2 W=
subsidiaries 7,390 69,514
Adjustment in relation to disposal EEZEMEARIERE
of a subsidiary (Note 21) T (HE21) 88,301 —
Goodwill released upon disposal BREEHREE (A7 19)
(Note 19 @913 (2,608)
Gain on disposal/liquidation HETBEENRBARZ
of subsidiaries, net Was - FE8 255,589 259,766
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRERME

42 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 42

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Disposal/liquidation of subsidiaries (CONTINUED) (b)

Net cash inflow arising on the disposal and

liquidation:

@A

=
=

RERERERMEE(F)

HE FEHEAR(E)

RE/EEMBLRMAETIRFER

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETFT
Consideration received W 814,470 848,968
Proceeds received upon liquidation B ARBEMS
of subsidiaries 10 99
Cash and cash equivalents RN G SRR ER
derecognised from the consolidated 2 IR& RIREEEAE
financial statements (129,604) (48,403)
684,876 800,664
Net cash inflow for consideration REFWERTFERE
of prior year's disposals during FIEZHEEBFRERA
the current year 26,656 195,134
711,532 995,798

(c) Disposal of property, plant and equipment (c)

An analysis of the cash proceeds from the disposal
of property, plant and equipment is as follows:

HEYR - BERRRE

RAEReRERT  HEVE W
FREBAEFARS ¢

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARKFT

Net carrying amount (Note 17) REFE M 17) 2,460 1,036

Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BEL&E

and equipment (Note 8) ISR (iE8) (1,236) (393)

Consideration for the disposal HE (8 1,197 643
Consideration not yet received i) AR M B S R B A LM

and recorded in other receivables WK 2 $1{E — (145)

Net cash proceeds received W EIIR W a2 58 1,197 498

HEFEREEERAT
2022 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RARMEE

43 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 43 RERBEZTDZE8BIHIR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRAFMTAEBERERBE RS 2 AE
arising from financing activities, including both cash 288 RIERSRIFRSEE - HRNE
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing BEBESAE  HBALZBEREICK
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future REETREERHEEAEBGERERE
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated REPRBEHEAZRSTEAT
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
Payable on
Bank Other Lease  redemption of
borrowings  borrowings  Senior notes liabilities convertible loan Total
(Note 33) (Note 34) (Note 35) (Note 36) (Note 31)
BETE
REzz
RITER EfpEz Rizg HERR 3 &g
(Hit33) (Hit) (i) (it36) i3
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  AREFL  AREFT  ARETT  ARETR  AREFR
At 1January 2022 RA2E1R1B 1,291,602 9,647,905 561,136 88,477 112,150 11,701,270
Changes from financing cash flows: BEARENEY:
Proceeds from bank borrowings ROEHAENE 1,190,251 - - - - 1,190,251
Repayment from bank borrowings [ERSRER (253,837) - - - - (253,837)
Proceeds from other borrowings EREFEHETE - 3,084,481 - - - 3,084,481
Repayment of other borrowings [BEEME - (1531,439) - - - (1531439
Repayment of lease liablties EEEl - - = (12,037) = (12,037)
Repayment of other interested-bearing  (EREE A5t SFERZE
payables - - - - (112,150) (112,150)
Interest paid e (70,050) (497,758) (62,723) (6470) = (637,001)
Addition of lease liabilties RESEEM - - - 31,207 - 31,22
Bichange differences EizE 37,010 - 54,038 5830 - 96,878
Disposalfiquidation of subsidiaries HE/BENBATEL - (908,071) - - = (908,071)
Bills received UelES - 721,69 - - - 721,6%
Interest expenses (Note 12) MExitidiz i) 69,951 533,401 66,454 523 = 675,029
At 31 December 2022 RW2%E128318 2,264,921 11,056,216 618,905 112,250 - 14,052,298
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

e M RRMEE

43 RERBMETBZEEZIHKR(E)

Bank Other Convertible Lease Interest
borrowings borrowings ~ Senior notes loan liabilities payable Total
(Note 33) (Note 34) (Note 35) (Note 36)
HATHER Efpfe3t BrZE  AARER HERE EHE e
i) (Wit ) (i)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEEFLT  AEEFT AREFr AREFTr ARETT ARETr ARETL
At 1January 2021 RWNE1R1H 1,507,247 6,247,250 1,364,018 431,665 76,114 - 9,626,294
Changes from financing cash flows; HERSNEY:
Proceeds from bank borrowings RTEHEEIE 704,398 - - - - - 704,398
Repayment from bank borrowings [ERSER (887,142) - - - - - (887,142)
Proceeds from other borrowings At ERAERE - 4,554,383 - - - - 4,554,383
Repayment of other borrowings [EEEME - (779,665) - - - - (779,665)
Repayment of lease liabilties [EEHERE - - - - (12,590) - (12,590)
Repayment of senior notes EERLRE - - (761,153) - - - (761,153)
Repayment of other interested-bearing B E 43 5 B3R
payables - - - - - (31,879) (31,879)
Interest paid AFIE (44,169) (382,533 (90,949) (@1,971) (3,047) - (562,669)
Conversion to ordinary shares #haTak - - - (415,944) - - (415,944)
Redemption of convertible loan BETERER - - - (172,259 - 143735 (28,524)
Addition of lease liabilities RESESEM - - - - 24,920 - 24920
Fichange differences Eige (1,587) - (19,388) (11,077) (1,605) 294 (33,363)
Fair value changes RABEEY - - - 172,636 - - 172,636
Disposalliquidation of subsidiaries tE/RENBAAEY (32200 (2.268627) - - - - (2,300,834)
Bll received W32 - 1,862,924 - - - - 1,862,924
Interest expenses (Note 12) MExi iz i) 45,062 414173 68,608 36,950 4,685 - 569,478
At 31 December 2021 R20215125318 1,291,602 9,647,905 561,136 - 88477 112,150 11,701,270

44 MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group entered into financing arrangements with the
Financial Institution in respect of property, plant and
equipment and drew down an aggregate amount of
RMB3,812,177,000 (2021: RMB6,417,307,000) from
the Financial Institution, of which RMB727,696,000
(2021: RMB1,862,924,000) was received in the form
of bills. Further details of the financing arrangements
are set out in Note 34.

During the year, the Group settled certain payables
in the form of bills amounted to RMB1,364,932,000
(2021: RMB1,800,724,000).

HEMEEFEEERAA

2022 F3§

44 FEZHBEERH

(€)

HZE2022F 12 A31HILFE - A&
Bz BE RS EESRKE
RN T B E RS RS AR
AR 3,812,177,000 7t (2021
&+ AR#¥6,417,307,0007T) © E
AR #727,696,000 7T (20214 © A
R #1,862,924,00070 ) A ZHEF R
W - BB RERFIES A K34 o

REAFR NEBUAEREEAE
BHMHoENRERLTFARE
1,364,932,000 7T (20214F : A R
1,800,724,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mENBHRRMTE
45 COMMITMENTS 45 RiE
Capital expenditure: B ARRIE
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#ETFT ARETFIT
Contracted for but not provided ELA OIS HREF
in these consolidated HE BRI -
financial statements:
Property, plant and equipment WE - WEMRE 2,380,563 2,068,344
Investment commitments: REENE :
According to relevant agreements, the Group has the RIERBRTE  AEBEBUTRE RS
following investment commitments:
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR#TFT AEETIT
Investment commitments in: WE AP -
Joint ventures and associates B EMEE QT 44,500 103,540
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the following material
transactions were carried out by the Group with
related parties during the year:

e M RRMEE

46 RBEEARZ

(a)

A A B RS A RES
T AR AR EME T2 E
KR

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTFr
Provision of services and sales of MEE N B FEEDE
goods to associates and joint RERBMEEED
ventures (note (i) (BaE0) 42,386 42,366
Guarantee income from associates B N BIERUA (IVAE (7))
(note (ii)) 7,108 7,658
Finance lease of associates (note (ii)) Bt R FIRVE WA (BT (i) 2,562 2,823

Notes:

(i) The terms and conditions of sales of goods and
provision of services were mutually agreed by both
parties.

(i) Further details of these guarantees are set out in
Note 39.

(iiiy  Finance lease income arose from associates bear
interest at 8.5% per annum during the year.

Key management compensation

Key management personnel are those persons
having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group.
The total remuneration of the key management
personnel is shown below:

(b)

wist -

EmPRHERBRETRE

(i HE
Z R GRR AR A -

(i)  ARELEROFBEINNKME
39°

(i) RAEEARRERZBEEERR
FHE85% S o

AR EEE
FAREEABEERMNLARET

3 EEMENAEEES ZA
8 BREEABFMERENT

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AR STFor

Salaries and other short-term Fe kAL HESEF
employee benefits 36,821 35,003
Share-based compensation ARG B EERE 2 SRR 15,719 6,785
52,540 41,788

aHEREBERAR

2022 3§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RARMEE

47 CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 47

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

SHTEER

FHEHEREE - RERTANKE

instruments at the end of each reporting period are as BEWT :
follows:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARM¥TFT ABRHETFT
Financial assets SREE
Fair value through profit or loss A AREBER AEH 254,181 283,709
Amortized cost BB XA E 6,275,277 6,943,083
Financial liabilities cReE
Amortized cost DA SHRK ARG 8 18,685,306 16,134,453
Financial guarantee contract liabilities S ERERBE (H:739)
(Note 39) 18,137 24,434

48

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of financial
risks. The management periodically analyses and reviews
measures to manage its exposure to market risk (including
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. Generally, the
Group applies a conservative strategy regarding its risk
management and has not used any derivatives or other
instruments for hedging purposes.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s major financial
instruments include trade and bills receivable, deposits
and other receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, loans
receivables, financial lease receivables, and current account
balances with associates and joint ventures, cash and cash
equivalents, restricted deposits, trade and bills payable,
lease liabilities, payables for construction in progress, other
payables and accruals, bank borrowings, other borrowings,
and senior notes. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange
risk arises from monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group operates mainly in the PRC, the
United States of America and Hong Kong.
Majority of revenue and cost of goods sold
and operations are denominated in Renminbi
("RMB"). Almost all of the revenue and
costs are denominated in the group entities’
respective functional currencies.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency
risk primarily with respect to the changes of
exchange rate of United States dollars (“US$")
and Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is
pegged with US$, against RMB, which is the
functional currency of most of the Group’s
operating subsidiaries. As at 31 December
2022, recognized assets or liabilities that are
denominated in a currency that is not the
entities’ functional currency include cash and
cash equivalents (Note 29) and senior notes
(Note 35).

aHEREBERAR

2022 3§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES 48 HIKEKER (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(@) Market risk (CONTINUED) (a) WEER
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (CONTINUED) (i) SMEREEE
The following table demonstrates the TRREPAREXER - #FFAT
sensitivity at the end of the reporting period BEMEBEHIEEIE - ARE
to a reasonably possible change in RMB to BEERBBECREAEEY
US$/HK$ exchange rates (“RMB — US$/ g) - BEAREEREFBEEA
HK$"), with all other variables held constant, Ry BrER(AR
of the Group’s profit after tax due to changes M — X/ BT EEEE
in the carrying value of monetary assets and BIEEE) 2 BRI -
liabilities.
2022 2021
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
profit after tax  profit after tax
HEAE Ti1& 7
®/m, OBd) & O
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TFT ARMBTFT
RMB — US$/HK$ ARBHZET, BT
Appreciation of RMB by 5% AREFAES% 11,491 1,841
Depreciation of RMB by 5% AREEE5% (11,491) (1,841)
(i) Cashflow and fair value interest rate risk (i) BLRERIALIEBEFEEE

Cashflow interest rate risk is the risk that
future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the
risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate as it is issued at fixed interest rates.

The Group’s cashflow interest rate risk arises
from bank balances, loans to joint ventures,
bank borrowings and other borrowings.
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cashflow interest rate risk which
is partially offset by bank balances held at
variable rates.

BeRnEfxERAsTRTA
RIGRERERE TGN R
KB AR - AAEERN
XER AR TABERET
By [ 8] X 7| 2% ¢ B 10 1ED e L e

REREIRE R R R K A R
1T88 - TREREZER
RITER R EAER - AERE
VAF BN R BT 2 (BN R IR
ERMERRLE - ATRRA 2T
BRI IRITERER RO N -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Market risk (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Cashflow and fair value interest rate risk
(CONTINUED)

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily due
to the Group’s bank balances, interest-bearing
bank borrowings and interest-bearing other
borrowings with a floating interest rate. The
effective interest rates and terms of repayment
of the interest-bearing bank borrowings and
other borrowings of the Group are disclosed
in Note 33 and Note 34, respectively. No
sensitivity analysis has been presented for the
exposure to interest rates for bank balances as
the directors of the Company consider that,
taking into account that the fluctuation in
interest rates on bank balances is minimal, the
impact of profit or loss both for the current
and prior years is insignificant.

The following analysis demonstrates the
sensitivity at the end of the reporting period to
a reasonably possible change in interest rates
for floating rate bank borrowings, with all
other variables held constant.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2021:
50 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit
after tax for the year ended 31 December
2022 would have decreased/increased by
RMB61,477,000 (2021: RMB41,975,000).

The above sensitivity analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year.

As at 31 December 2022, The Group is
exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to financial assets at FVTPL. No
sensitivity analysis has been presented as the
directors of the Company consider that the
impact to profit or loss for both the current
and prior years is insignificant.

aHEREBERAR

2022 3§

e M RRMEE

48 BIKERER(Z)

(@) TERE(E)

(ii)

BERBR AL EEFFRRE
(&)

REEHTSN R SRR E
BEAKENIRITES BT
MR BRITEE MR
HAE5KA R o MY aE33 E
T340 B R AR BIET B IR
TTERER BEMERNER
MR FOEFR IR o RS
ERERR - RITHEBNER
FIK - AEAFREBSENF
SR AR A HIRTTHER
MR AEITRRRNE DT ©

Ty ER T EEMAEE
HRETEZIBEAT - WEH
RFNEK 2 &I 7] g B ENE HUR
M o

HRER EF T 501{E S 2
(20214 : SOfEIEE) - MFR
BEMESH[FIE - AJKE
B & 1E2022F 124318 1k
FEz2BE MR LN
A R #61,477,000 7T (2021
F: AR#41,975,0007T) °

R D BRI DR - BRER
BEPRKEEZERTAR
EEFENAESR -

M2022F12A31H - K &
EmREAR A EETAE
mZEMEETRZANER
FIERRER - RRBIEERBZ
EREAFR FFEEHEER
8 B AREITERRMER

Al ©

265



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (CONTINUED)

(iiij) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk
because the fair value of certain financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured by reference to quoted prices.
Details of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are set out in Note 22.

The Group currently does not have a policy
to hedge the other price risk. However, the
management closely monitors such risk by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
reserves and banking facilities deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows and match maturity profiles of financial assets
and liabilities. In addition to the currently available
facilities, the management of the Group expects that
further banking facilities will be available by pledging
those newly completed power plant equipment.

The table below analyses the financial liabilities of
the Group into relevant maturity groups based on
the remaining period at the reporting date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at
the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ek mRmEE
48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 48 HIKEKER (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (CONTINUED) (b) RBESERE)
As at 31 December 2022 72022912 A831H
Weighted
average On demand Total Total
effective orless than 6to12 1102 Over  undiscounted arrying
interest rate 6 months months years 2years cashflows amount
Mg ik
LTS HiR6fEA 6212085 122§ WENE BEMEEE  GEEESE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ABETT ARETT ARETT ABETT
Trade and bil payable ER85EREE N/A 1125074 137,49 - - 1,262,570 1,262,570
Payables for construction BRI ER
in progress, other payables HibEMEREN R
and accruals N/A 2,165,721 570,789 457,214 288,762 3,482,492 3,482,492
Amounts due tojoint ventures  ERFAEAE5A NIA 156 - - - 156 156
Amounts due to associates TW@‘& A N/A 2540 - - - 2540 2540
Senior notes BrZE 11.8% 34,440 642,911 - - 677,351 618,905
Bank borrowings i&wﬂé? 1,60% —5.20% 591,154 497618 141,79 1,406,525 2,637,091 2264927
Other borrowings bR 4,00% —5.90% 613,443 619,253 1,259,848 12,100,842 14,593,386 11,056,216
Lease liabilities e 4,00% —5.55% 9,532 9,532 19,202 118,235 156,501 112,250
4,542,006 24771599 1,878,058 13,914,304 20,812,087 18,800,056
Financial quarantee isued HRERAR (1 59)
Maximum amount
quaranteed (Note 39) N/A 358,432 - - - 358,432 18,137
e REEERAT

2022 F3§

267



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 48 HBEBEE(ZF)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (CONTINUED) (b) FBESLE(E)
As at 31 December 2021 7202112 H31H
Weighted
average  Ondemand Total Total
effective or less than 6to12 1102 Over  undiscounted arrying
interest rate 6 months months years 2 years cashflows amount
MmETs AR

BRHE  OR6@A  6E12(3A 1225 2L BERSEE  FERESE
AMB1000 AMB000 AMB1000 RMB1000 AMB000 AMB1000
ARETE  ARETT  ARETT ARRTT  ARETT  ARETT

Trade and bills payable BREHTERER /A 877,678 200,860 - — 1,078,538 1078538
Payables for construction ~~ BEBE R -

in progress, other payables £ ft R TR REUE

and accruals N/A 2,403,847 612,406 288,727 252,637 3,557,617 3,557,617
Amounts due to joint ventures  [ERALLEFUR N/A 155 - - - 155 155
Senior notes ERELEERES 83%—11.8% 29,923 30,437 613,881 - 674,241 561,136
Bank borrowings FER 1.7% —5.23% 98,748 475,527 273,104 598,569 1,445,948 1,291,602
Other borrowings Hhfgst 48%—6.13% 810,787 513952 1438286 10034501 12,797,506 9,647 905
Lease liabilities HERE 4.00% —5.3% 8,083 8,083 16,509 78974 111,649 88,477

- 4229221 1,841,265 2,630,507 10,964,681 19,665,674 16,225,430

Financial quarantee issued  BITSERAR (439

Maximum amount

quaranteed (Note 39) - 420627 - - - 420,627 24,434
The amounts included above of variable interest rate LT E e BB BRI KT A
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities LEBIZUSMNREHEEREHR
are subject to change if changes in variable interest EHEZHEGABECEHERY
rates differ from those estimate of interest rates 2.
determined at the end of the reporting period.
The amounts included above for financial guarantee L SRIERENTHTEZEES
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group BRHREERESH  2HERET
could be required to settle under the arrangement FTASEAREEEREE 2 &K

for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is T o
claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(o)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties or debtors provided
by the Group is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position, and
the amount of financial guarantees provided by the
Group as disclosed in Note 39.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group generally does
not hold collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial
assets, except for financial lease receivables and loan
receivables whose credit loss can be mitigate by the
underlying leased assets.

The Group’s credit risk primarily attributable to its
trade and other receivables, contract assets and
amounts due from associates and joint ventures
which is arose during the course of the Group’s
business operations. The Group has set policies in
place to review the recoverability of these receivables
on an ongoing basis and assess the adequacy of
provision for impairment.

For trade receivables, the management of the Group
limit credit risk by assessing the credit quality of
the customers, perform ongoing credit evaluation
taking into account its financial position, past trade
experience and other factors. The Group’s trading
terms with its customers are mainly on credit. The
credit period is generally 30 to 180 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group has
concentration of credit risk because trade receivables
from its top five customers accounted for 40%
(2021: 51%) of the Group’s trade receivables as at
31 December 2022.

Tﬁl’] a%ﬁabﬁ’ilﬁf‘ﬁﬁj

2022 3§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(o)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(CONTINUED)

For the amounts due from associates and joint
ventures, financial positions of the associates and
joint ventures are regularly monitored in order to
minimize the credit risk associated with receivables
due from associates and joint ventures.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables to minimize credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
management. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances based on
provision matrix or individually and other debtors
individually. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risks of the Group’s bank balances are
limited because these balances are placed with
reputable financial institutions.

The credit risks on financial guarantee provided by
the Group and finance lease receivables are limited
as the counterparties have no default in the past
and the management of the Group does not expect
any loss arising from non-performance by these
counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

e M RRMEE

48 BIKERER(Z)
() EHRERRBREBEFEE)
AEBERBERER D BT EEE

AT HER -

Trade receivables, contract assets

Internal credit rating Description and finance lease receivables Other financial assets
BUESZEN  AEEEA

nBERER i EEGIDE HeREE

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 12-month ECL

does not have any past-due amounts

Rk RAUT L RORRRE - RALTANEE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit

risk since initial recognition through information
developed interally or external resources

R ABII RGN EART -
BMRRANREERREEZEN

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

X BRBRREERETREARE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is

in severe financial difficulty and the

Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
i EREXARBAFERENIHAE

BEERENEFANRENS

HEHEREEARAR
2022 4§

EEREANERERRR —AREERAE  NERRMEREX

Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired Lifetime ECL—
not credit- impaired

EEREARRAERAR —ARLERAE  EEREIARBERAX
—RSLERAE

Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired Lifetime ECL—
credit- impaired

BEREONEEERER — R EERAE EEREINEEERER

—BEERHE
Amount is written off Amount is written off
SREHH SR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 48 BIEERERE(Z)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment () EREREBRRESEE)
(CONTINUED)

TRFAIHTARENERMEE
MERRERR O - LRk AR

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL

assessment:

ERERFHENTE

Gross carrying
Internal credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount
RN REASEAFREESERRL REEE
RMB'000
AREFT
Financial assets at amortized costs
RESRATEZERER
Trade receivables (Note 24)
e E S (Hrit 24)
— Sale of electricity Low risk (note (b)) Lifetime ECL 811,282
—EHE &R (Wi b)) BEFERNERERE
— Others Low risk (note (b)) Lifetime ECL 546,820
— Efth &R (2 1) EEFEANEREREX
Loss Credit-impaired 6,048
Bx ERRE
1,364,150
Other receivables (Note 25) Low risk (note (a)) 12-month ECL 571,41
Eftr U (3T 25) (&R (Frit @) 12EAAREHERER
Doubtful (note (a)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 48,197
R (it @) EEFENNRRERE
(REEERRE)
Loss Credit-impaired 3,000
EPS ERAE
622,608
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRERME

48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 48 HBEBEE(&F)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment () EREREBRRRESEE)
(CONTINUED)
Gross carrying
Internal credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount
REBERTR AR AFEHREERRX KEEE
RMB'000
ARETR

Amounts due from associates
(Note 20)

B D RERA W 20)
— trade nature
—E51tE

— non-trade nature

—FEFUE

Amounts due from joint ventures
(Note 21)

RaECEFA W21

— trade nature

—B51E

— non-trade nature

—FEFUE

HEMEEFEEERAA

Low risk (note (b))
ERR (Wi m)

Loss

Bx

Low risk (note (a))
&R (Hrit @)
Low risk

{ERR

Low risk (note (b))
ERR WD)

Low risk (note (a))

ERkR (HiE)

Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)

BEFEANESREREL
(REEERAE)

Credit-impaired

ERRE

12-month ECL

12ERNEHEEREE

Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)

EEFENARRERE
(REEERRE)

Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)

EEFENNRRERE
(REEERRE)

12-month ECL

12{EANEHERER

7,803

2,307

48,073

29,959

88,142

4,893

85,670

90,563
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 48 HBEBEE(ZF)

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment () EREREBRRESEE)
(CONTINUED)
Gross carrying
Internal credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount
R NEASRAFERRREREX REGE
RMB000
ARBTFT
Loan receivables (Note 27) Low risk (note (a)) 12-month ECL 61,587
FWER (Hit27) (&R (At @) 12{EAREHERER
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 29) Low risk 12-month ECL 3,471,039
ReRREEEER (Wit29) &Rk 12{EANEHEREX
Restricted deposits (Note 29) Low risk 12-month ECL 578,240
RREER (N 29) EER 12EARESEREX
Other items:
AftER
Contract assets (Note 23)
RREEHH23)
— Tariff adjustment amounts Low risk (note (b)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) —
—EYWEERAENE &R (Hie b)) BEFERNESREREL
(REEERRE)
— Others Low risk (note (b)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 206,728
—Hit &R (Hii b)) BEFESNESREREL
(REEERRE)
206,728
Finance lease receivables Low risk (note (b)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 197,592
(Note 26)
AR ERYGA (fri 26) &R (Wi b) EEFENNRRERE
(REEERRE)
Premium receivable for financial Low risk (note (b)) 12-month ECL 18,137
guarantee contracts (Note 39)
BERGBERA R (H39) &R (Hi 1) 12{ERNBESERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

48

Bt 75 [ Bex

e M RRMEE

EE(E)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (c) ERERRRBETEE)

(CONTINUED)

Notes: Kiat -

(@)  For the purposes of internal risk management, the (@ AABREBEEZEHN AEE
Group uses past due information to assess whether FRBESIEHTEERRR
credit risk has increased significantly since initial BYiaERE R G EEZEM -
recognition.

Not past due/
no fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
ki i,
EE E BRI st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TFT AR¥TFTT ARMTFT
2022 2022
Amounts due from associates FE MBSk & N B FRIE — 48,073 48,073
Amounts due from joint ventures fEM & & EEFKIE — 85,670 85,670
Other receivables HAth YRR 48,197 571,441 619,608
Loan receivables FEME K — 61,587 61,587
2021 2021
Amounts due from associates JE LBt % fklﬁ — 40,743 40,743
Amounts due from joint ventures Bl A &R — 18,059 18,059
Other receivables HAth YRR 24,921 860,766 885,687
Loan receivables FEWE R — 59,572 59,572
HEFEREBBRAR

2022 F3§
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e MBRRME

48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(b)

For trade receivables (including trade-related
amounts due from joint ventures and associates),
finance lease receivables and contract assets, the
Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS
9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL.
The Group determines the expected credit losses on
these items on an individual balance basis, except
for trade receivables and contract assets in relation
to its sales of electricity which are based on provision
matrix.

The trade receivables arising from sales of electricity
are mainly due from the local state grid companies
in various provinces in the PRC. The management
considered the probability of default of trade
receivables is remote since the local grid companies
are state-owned and taking into account the past
payment histories of the debtors, adjusted for
general economic conditions of the new energy
industry and an assessment of both current as well
as forecast direction of market conditions at the
reporting date. Accordingly, the management is of
the opinion that the credit risk of trade receivables
arising from sales of electricity is limited.

The Group writes off a receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or when the trade receivables are over
two years past due, whichever occurs earlier.

48

MBEREE (E)

(c)

ERERRKRERNE (&)

Wyt - (&

(b)

BRERE ZA(BREES5EE
ZRERREZEERBERFZR
B BEHERUGRENRAGRE
B ARERKEENBREE
RNE 9 Z LA BHEE
mRAMEMERRRZBRE
1 o AEEHRME B B E £ EH
s B8 2 HIEFRHE BIRK
EENERREEE  REHE
ENERCERESERLER
BERENFER -

fEY B 5 8RR E 2R E o B
FAZEMAMENRIRREZE
WENHETIH - RAEEEH
B2 FE AL 5 R R (OB R 2R
By AREHENREEG A
BENRAF - WREBEBEESLN
RALER - FBERITE —REEE
A - MERBIMANEYTS
AR R B Ut RV - Bt B
BERRZRENHEEEZEK
EHERFERRARZARS

EAEEMRABBARREEZ
SRR B B B PR U B B S 8 ()
e BEEBALERNEERDE
ABERRN - HE YA B
BRFR  AREHLEERAE) -
AREEE L RUR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRMEE

48 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES 48 HIKEKER (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
() Credit risk and impairment assessment (o) FEHRRBRRRERNREE)
(CONTINUED)
Notes: (CONTINUED) st - (&
(0  (CONTINUED) @ &)
The following tables shows the movement in lifetime TERBY TIRRBE T AR
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables EWE P EEREEEFERANTE
under the simplified approach: SHERBAZEE -
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
EEFE BEFE
MRTER HRTER
(5:iE=FS 5k -FS
(REEEFARNE) (RESARE) #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARMETFT AR¥FTT
As at 1 January 2021 R2021F1A1H — 9,983 9,983
Impairment losses reversed JREE D — (5,485) (5,485)
As at 31 December 2021 M2021F12 A31H — 4,498 4,498
Impairment losses reversed A — (1,405) (1,405)
As at 31 December 2022 2022912 A318 — 3,092 3,092

For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying
amount represents the maximum amount that Group
has guaranteed under the relevant contract. The
maximum amount that the Group has guaranteed
under the relevant contract was RMB338,643,000 as
at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB420,627,000). At
the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company have performed impairment assessment,
and concluded that there has been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the
financial guarantee contracts. Details of the financial
guarantee contracts are set out in Note 39.

HEMEEFEEERAA

2022 F3§

HRUKERER  EELE
BAEBEREEBERERZ
BEma e REIE2022412A4
BVHIEFE - AEEREBEE
REAFERzZERSBEAAR
# 338,643,000 (2021 : A R
#420,627,00070) - EEHREH
K ARBEBCEITRIENE
WS H &R T8 B VIR FERZ I %
BRAERAKR - EARK M KE
EEm - BKEREAERFRME
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e MBRRME

49 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 49 SBMTACZAREE

INSTRUMENTS

In estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial REBERBREG 2 Ti5E R 2 ATE 212
liabilities, the Group uses market-observable data of EfztemEErERABEAREBE - I
the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not REZEGEE-—EBRBNE - REEEET
available, the Group determines the appropriate valuation ERBEE 2 MERMMNAAEETAR
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements and WEFTE - WRBE BT EMAZERE
works closely with the qualified valuers to establish the SRR 2 [ ERT A AE o

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

Fair value of financial instruments that are measured SRITAZAARBERSEREETTE
at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial rEERDEMEENSHEBEARAE
liabilities are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Bit 8 TREBTUABETELE/ME
The following table gives information about how the fair ENEREBEZAABEZEM -
values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined.
Fair value hierarchy
AREEBR
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1BR F2BR E3ER fam
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETFT ARETFT AR¥TFT AREFT
At 31 December 2022 R2022512A31H
Financial assets at FVTPL BALEETZEAR
ZYH A Bm 2
Unlisted equity securities FLmiERES — — 66,782 66,782
Listed equity securities, at fair value AR (EEEE)
LERES 85,565 - — 85,565
RMB wealth management products A RIS ER - — 210 210
Contingent consideration in disposal &2 Z MiB a2 8,
of subsidiaries BYE — - 93,060 93,060
Bills receivable, at FVTPL WAREEFERR
BE AR ZER
B — 8,564 — 8,564

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

49 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of financial instruments that are measured

at fair value on a recurring basis (CONTINUED)

49 E£RITAEZAR

i ()

e M RRMEE

EMTAZAABERSREEETIHE

(#)

Fair value hierarchy

AREEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£1ER ELER EIER o]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEBFT AEEFT AEEFT AREFT
At 31 December 2021 RW2021512A318
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAREEEAREE
FJABml 2 BEE
Unlisted equity securities FEMERES — — 76,631 76,631
RMB wealth management products ~ A RMEIEEE R — — 10,000 10,000
Contingent consideration in disposal J& E i @2 72 kA 4B
of subsidiaries — — 111,914 111,914
Bills receivable, at FVTPL MBEEAAZ
ﬁ/\%a YA LIS — 85,164 — 85,164

HEHEREEARAR
2022 F3f
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RARMEE

49 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 49

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of financial instruments that are measured

at fair value on a recurring basis (CONTINUED)

There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, and there were
no transfers into or out of Level 3 during both years.

Information of level 2 and level 3 fair value measurement

are as follow:

(%)

ERMIRZAARBHEE)

EMTAZAABERSREEETHE

HZE2022412 A31 B %2021 12 A 31
BIEFEES

—EBREE_ERERE

B EEMFT  REBARELE=F

“HEM=F AR BEFEERNAT

used to capture the present value
of the expected future economic
henefits to be derived from the
ownership of the investees, based on
an appropriate discount rate.
WNE- WhERBERENAA &
REPFENAE - BREHEUR
REAFBEEBZARAEAS
ERERALRE «

Comparable market value — in this
approach, the fair value of unlisted
equity instruments is determined
at the price of the most recent
financing.

At REE — EERhAR  F
mEETANAABENRI K
RENERIET -

Financial assets/ Fair value Valuation technique(s)
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)
EREE/SHER MBE RAEBEESR RETEREEEH EXFERES 2 ER
2022 2021
(RMB'000) | (RMB'000)
(AR®TR) | (A\R%TT)
Unlisted equity securities 66,782 76631 |Llevel3 Income approach-in this approach, the | Long-term pre-tax operating margin,
FEMERES 23R discounted cash flow method was taking into account management’s

experience and knowledge of market
conditions of the specific industries,
ranging from 65% to 67% (2021:
65% t0 67%).

RERAAETER  ZR3EEE
LBENERETRTSERLE
B 165%5167% 7% (20215 -
65% 2167%)

Discount rate of 12% (2021:12%)
determined using a Capital Asset
Pricing Model (note (a)).

ERERREATATEREA12%
(20215 12%) (Wi 3)

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of financial instruments that are measured

49 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

49 E£RITAEZAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRMEE

BB (E)

EMTAZAABERSREEETIHE

at fair value on a recurring basis (CONTINUED) (&)
Financial assets/ Fair value Valuation technique(s)
financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)
EREE/SHER MEE RABEESR RETERBELH EXFERESER
2022 2021
(RMB'000) | (RMB000)
(AR®TR) | (ARBTT)
RMB wealth management 210 10,000 | Level3 Discounted cash flow method was used | Basic performance comparison
products FIEH to capture the present value of the benchmark
AEBBRED contracted cash flows discounted at | ERS£EH HEE
a rate that reflects the market credit
risk.
BememhieARnmsERER
LTRERGIERRRERE R
e
Contingent consideration 93,060 111,914 | Level3 Discounted cash flow method was used | Probability to meet the conditions set out
in disposal of EIER to capture the present value of the in the share purchase agreements,
subsidiaries expected future economic benefits including whether and when the
RENBATZIEHE that will flow into the Group arising disposed power plants could be
from the contingent consideration, registered in the List (note (b).
based on an appropriate discount | FARGEEREPRTEN 2 M8
rate. It AERERESHRANAE
RAFRREREE REEELFR | HRREEMMASRHESTE
X HEIRUERRAREEY £ (MEE ) «
BEAREERNS 2 RME -
Bills receivable 8,564 85,164 | Level2 Discounted cash flow method was used | N/A
EHER FIER to capture the present value of the | T
contracted cash flows discounted at
a rate that reflects the market credit
risk.
BeneirhieArnmsERak
LTRERGIEARRERE R
g o
BHEREBERAR

2022 F3§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RARMEE

49 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of financial instruments that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@  Anincrease in the discount rate used in isolation would
result in a decrease in the fair value measurement of the
unlisted equity securities, and vice versa. A 5% increase/
decrease in the discount rate holding all other variables
constant would decrease/increase the carrying amount
of the unlisted equity securities by RMB1,228,000 and
RMB1,297,000 respectively (2021: RMB1,333,000 and
RMB 1,409,000 respectively).

(b) A decrease in the probability for the power plants to
be registered in the List sooner used in isolation would
result in a decrease in the fair value measurement of the
contingent consideration, and vice versa.

49

ERMIRZAARBHEE)

EMTAZAABERSREEETHE
(%)

o

(@) BE—EEMARBERRLETREAR

BEENRLD  RZIFA - fFEHMAT

BEFEZBERT  WRAERLHAS

T.ﬂs%ﬂﬂiﬂiimﬁﬁzﬁﬁwﬁﬁ

DRIR L A R 1,228,000 7T K

AR #1,297,0007C (20214 : AR #
1,333,000 LA A R # 1,409,000 7T ) °

(b)) HEREEBERREFELATHLE
BEREEMINE SHBYEE 2 AT aE 1R
D BEHRREHE A REEFER
Do RZIA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRERME

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 49
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of financial instruments that are measured

at fair value on a recurring basis (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement

ERMITAZAREHE(E)

ERMITACAABERSEEEETIE

Contingent RMB

consideration Derivative wealth

Investmentsin in disposal of ~ Unlisted equity ~ componentof ~ management

a convertible bond subsidiaries securities  convertible loan products

RENEAR TRRER N

TaREFRE ZHEHE FLTEEES ATERS EHER

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETR AREFR AR#TT ARETT

Balance as at 1 January 2021 202151 A1 AfEE 32,787 131,664 17,629 20512 —
Reclassification from interests in an BERTRRENE

associate - — 17,502 — —

Addition g — 50,951 - - 3,372,930

Settlement I - (70,701) — — (3,384,437)

Fair value changes MMEEE 4,404 - 52,243 172,636 21,507

Disposal of unlisted equity securities L& FTESES — - (8.756) — —

Redemption of convertible loans BRI RRER (37,191) — — (58,964) —

Converted to ordinary shares BHALER - - — (132,650) -

Exchange differences ERER — - (1,987) (1,534) -

Balance as at 31 December 2021 72021612 A31 BETEH — 111914 76,631 - 10,000

Addition Fib = 28,148 = = 5,851,562

Settlement Wi - (47,002) - — (5,911,440)

Fair value changes MMEEE — - 1,857 - 50,088

Disposal of unlisted equity securities HEF FTERES — - (16,193) - -

Exchange differences EHESR — — 4,487 - -

Balance as at 31 December 2022 72022512 A31 Bf &S - 93,060 66,782 - 210

e REEERAT
2022 3R
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ma

49

50

PA R Rk MY

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of financial instruments that are not
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position, together with the interest accruals, approximate
their respective fair values at the end of the reporting
period.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholders’ returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

49

50

EMITEZAR

mitE (%)

FEEMUDNABEAEZEMIAZA

REE

RAREERR  HAMBARKF LA
HRAGEZEMEEMBEZREE

B BFREAFE  BREHREEZA
AEEIM -
EXEBER

AEEEREANTIERNRREAELE
AR - EMAEE AT E LA K F AR
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i M ARRAE R A E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

50 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the liability-
to-asset ratio and the gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is
calculated as total borrowings divided by total capital.
Total borrowings represented bank borrowings plus other
borrowings, senior notes, convertible loan, and lease
liabilities. Total capital is calculated as total equity plus
total borrowings.

The Group's total borrowings and total capital positions as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

50

e ISR R MIEE
EXEBEE(F)

AEENEERBRREANQRELERE
WEDRER o Lt R R EFBRRRAER
RERTESD - BB ARITESNLE
HiptEs - BARE - IBRERLEE
{8 - BEAXREE bR AR IERERER

\
A

i

R2022F K2021F12 A31H » A&EE
ERERE A A BFEARRIOT -

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#ETFT ARETFT

(Restated)

(Eit)

Total borrowings Ep et 14,052,298 11,589,120
Total equity HEmAERE 8,094,892 7,562,887
Total capital AR 22,147,190 19,152,007
Gearing ratio BERAEEE 63.45% 60.51%
Liability-to-asset ratio BEAGBE 70.21% 68.55%

e REEERAT
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e R RMEE
51 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 51 ZALFZBBARREZ
COMPANY
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT
Assets: BE:
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RHB ARz 1,365,681 1,369,289
Deposits b7 547 547
______ 1,366,228 1,369,836
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE B B N B R 1,561,318 561,442
Amounts due from joint ventures JEUN A &P FEFIR 429 262
Deposits e 52,285 47,818
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREFEER 103,776 151,202
Financial assets at fair value AR EEN=EEHE
through profit or loss FFABREREE 85,566 —
______ 1,803,373 760,724
Total assets EEB®R 3,169,601 _______ 2,130,560
Liabilities: g81F:
Non-current liabilities FRBEMS
Senior notes BREE — 544,107
Financial guarantee contract liabilities PBERERAE 66,963 74,006
_________ 66,963 618113
Current liabilities RBAaE
Senior notes BERER 618,905 17,029
Bank borrowings RITEK 352,769 366,161
Other payables and accruals L Ath < 5RIE S FE T SRIR 15,123 118,887
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NG 252,944 171,574
______ 1239741 673,651
Total liabilities ames 1306704 1,291,764
Net current assets nBpEE®FE 00000 563,632 87,073
Net assets EEFE 1,862,897 838,796
Equity i
Share capital (Note 40) R&A (B75E 40) 77,443 77,499
Reserves (note) & (H5E) 1,785,454 761,297
Total equity RERBE 1,862,897 838,796
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of FE2N2023F2 A28 BIZEW T A &
directors on 28 February 2023. e
Liu Shunxing Liu Jianhong
2 )i 2 ZE4

Chairman and Executive Director

EFRTERHTEF

Vice Chairperson and Executive Director

EFERHLTERATESF

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRERME

51 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 51 ZXAQARZB#ERREK(E)

COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: Kt -

N AR A A 82

Movements in components of reserves of the Company

Share Treasury  Contributed Other  Accumulated
premium Shares surplus reserves losses Total
(Note (40(c))
REE EFR AR HittftE ZitER k]
(Hizt40(c)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETFT ARETFT AREFT
Balance at 1 January 2021 R20215 181 B 313,780 (760) 2,359,063 104,896 (1,992,390 784,589
Loss and total comprehensive AFEHERZANGER

income the year — — — — (212,142) (212,142)
Conversion to ordinary shares B AL ER 410,857 — — — — 410,857
Share-based compensation DA BEEZ [ — — — 8,881 — 8,881
Vesting of shares under share award %Ik 2 58

scheme 6,990 222 — (10,837) — (3,625)
2020 final dividend 20205 ERE — — — — (208,857) (208,857)
Repurchase of ordinary shares LRIREE (Kt 40)

(Note 40) — (18,406) — — — (18,406)
Balance at 31 December 2021 202112 A31 AES 731,627 (18,944) 2,359,063 102,940 (2,413,389) 761,297
Loss and total comprehensive AFEHERZANGER

income the year - — — — 1,458,024 1,458,024
Share-based compensation MR REEZ IR - — — 29,519 — 29,519
Vesting of shares under share award 2EIf%(% 2 58

scheme 15,772 331 — (22,854) — (6,481)
2021 final dividend 2021 FERE = = = = (230,272) (230,272)
Ordinary share issued {EREFRETZ LR

as treasury shares — (493) — — — (493)
Cancellation of treasury shares HHEER (38,961) 39,510 - - = 549
Repurchase of ordinary shares LRIREE (Hit40)

(Note 40) — (226,689) — — — (226,689)
Balance at 31 December 2022 R2022E 12 A31 AES 708,438 (206,285) 2,359,063 109,875 (1,185,637) 1,785,454

e REEERAT
2022 3R
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REMBRRME
52 SUBSIDIARIES 52 KMEAQF
As at 31 December 2022, particulars of the principal M2022F 12 831 FEWB AR 2540
subsidiaries are as follows: BT -
Place of incorporation/
registration and
operations and Percentage of equity
Name kind of legal entity ~ Registered share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
AT /SRR
EXHUR
£H ERRER A ARAEERERIY IERK
Direct Indirect
Bi B
Century Concord Wind Power ~ The PRC, Registered capital of 100% 100% Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd. limited company RMB3,100,000,000
heREREERAT hE - BRAA AMARARE RERRK
3,100,000,0007
Haotai New Energy The PRC, Registered capital of 100% 100% Sales of solar power equipment
Equipment Ltd. limited company RMB500,000,000 and new energy equipment
ERMERERERAA hE - BRAA AMARARE ABHRERITERREHE
500,000,000t
Concord Power Consulting & ~ The PRC, Registered capital of 70% 70% Power system design,
Design (Beijing) Corp., Ltd. limited company RMB50,000,000 research and exploitation
FRENIREA(R) hE - ARAR HTERARY BEZGHT HERRY
RiVERAR 50,000,000
Beijing Century Concord The PRC, Registered capital of 80% 80% Wind power plant operation
Operation and Maintenance limited company RIMB60,000,000 and maintenance
Co,, Ltd.
IRbRERRERIARLT P& BRAW AMERARS AERBETREE
60,000,007t
Yanyuan Century Concord The PRC, Registered capital of 100% 100% Solar power plant investment
Solar Power Co., Ltd. limited company RIMB56,000,000 and operation
ERBAtEEERAT hE - BRAA HERARS AGEERRERET
56,000,000 70
Naidong Century Concord Solar ~ The PRC, Registered capital of 100% 100% Solar power plant investment
Power Co,, Ltd. limited company RIMB146,150,000 and operation
NREGAGRETARAT  #8 ARAR aMERARY KB ERRAREN
146,150,000 7C
288 CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED
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e REEERAT
2022 3R

REMERRMEE
52 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 52 MEAQE(E)
Place of incorporation/
registration and
operations and Percentage of equity
Name kind of legal entity ~ Registered share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
AT/ ERR
EXHUR
£H EEERER A ARAEERERIY IERK
Direct Indirect
B% B
Eryuan Century Concord The PRC, Registered capital of 100% 100% Solar power plant investment
Solar Power Co,, Ltd. limited company RIB48,000,000 and operation
ERFAABHEEERAT 8 ARAT AMARARE AGHERREREN
48,000,000
Jilin Century Concord The PRC, Regstered capital of 100% 100% Wind power plant investment
Wind Power Investment limited company RIMB195,820,000 and operation
Co,, Ltd.
EMFARNEERAERAR 48 ARAT HARARE RERRARET
195,820,000 ¢
Jingmen Lixi Wind Power The PRC, Registered capital of 100% 100% Wind power plant investment
(o, Ltd. limited company RMB37,300,000 and operation
AMRERNEERRAT wE - RO AMARARE RERIRE JEr
37,800,0007
Yongzhou Jiepai Century The PRC, Registered capital of 100% 100% Wind power plant investment
Concord Wind Power limited company RMB1,901,834,000 and operation
Co., Ltd.
AMREFRENEERRAT $E ARAT HERARS RERRERET
1,901,834,0007C
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AR
52 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 52 KMiBAE(E)

Place of incorporation/

registration and
operations and Percentage of equity
Name kind of legal entity ~ Registered share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
AT /SRR
EXHUR
tR EEERER A ARAEERERIY IERK
Direct Indirect
Bi B
Xiangyang Xiangzhou Century  The PRC, Registered capital of 100% 100% Wind power plant investment
Concord Yushan Wind Power  limited company RMB91,000,000 and operation
Co, Ltd.
ZE2NBeRLENEE B BRAT HERARY AERRARET
BRAR 91,000,000 ¢
Wuhe Century Concord The PRC, Registered capital of 100% 100% Wind power plant investment
Yinmahu Wind Power limited company RIMB110,630,000 and operation
Co,, Ltd.
IAhaREAENEE hE - ARAR HERARE BERRERER
BRAR 110,630,000
Yongzhou Qiaotoupu Century - The PRC, Regstered capital of 100% 100% Wind power plant investment
Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd.  limited company RMB133,920,000 and operation
ANEERGARNER wE - BRAE HERARS BERRARET
ARAR 13392000070
Suzhou Deren Wind Power The PRC, Registered capital of 100% 100% Wind power plant investment
Co,, ltd. limited company RIB70,000,000 and operation
BEMECENEERRAT mE - RO HERARS RERRARET
70,000,00070
Jingmen Shengjingshan The PRC, Registered capital of 100% 100% Wind power plant investment
Wind Power Co,, Ltd. limited company RMB97,100,000 and operation
APERLENEEERRE  HE ARAF HHETARS BEBRERET
97,100,000
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SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of incorporation/

e M RRMEE

52 MEAQE(E)

registration and
operations and Percentage of equity
Name kind of legal entity ~ Registered share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
AT /SRR
EXHUR
tR EEERER A ARAEERERIY IERK
Direct Indirect
B% 3
Yongzhou Hongtang Century ~ The PRC, Registered capital of 100% 100% Wind power plant investment
Concord Wind Power Co., Ltd. ~ limited company RMBS0,000,000 and operation
AMHERRENEE hE - BRAR AERARY BERRERER
ARAR 80,000,000 7
Tianjin Green Energy The PRC, Regstered capital of 100% 100% Equipment Lease operation
International Leasing sino-foreign equity RMB1,000,000,000
Co,, Ltd. joint venture
RERFHRARESRRAT E PaELx  EMETARE REHE
1,000,000,0007C
Wuhe Juhe Wind Power The PRC, Registered capital of 100% 100% Wind power plant investment
Co,, Ltd. limited company RMB78,000,000 and operation
BAREENESERAT wE - RO AMARARE RERIREJE
78,000,00070
* The English translation of the names of the subsidiaries are

for identification only. The official names of these entities
are in Chinese.

The table above lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. As at 31 December
2022, there was no non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Group that have material non-controlling interests.

e REEERAT
2022 3R

* ZEMBARAENE X FEHRS
o REBEMIEABREY /R

N ERBBITEESRRAUAFEREE
EYEYBRAEBLEEFEEEND
B AR e & 1E2022F 128318 > K
EEFZEMBARZIEEH M ERESE
R o
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T FEHBEBRE
RESULTS 4
For the For the For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
2022 20214 20204 20194 20184
12A31H 12A31H 12A318 12A31H 12A31H
HEE HFE HFE IEFE HFE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT ARETFT
(Restated)
(&)
Revenue and WAR
other income Hepl A 2,739,500 2,278,275 2,042,095 1,867,591 1,444,748
Profit for the year KRAAERRR
attributable to equity iyl
shareholders of
the Company 871,817 787,534 673,405 604,293 502,406
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITIES 5E  AERER
As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
R2022 5 12021 12020 F A 2019% 20185
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A318 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ANEEFT ANREFTL ANREFIT ANREFT
(Restated)
(i)
Total assets LELE 27,172,516 24,044,818 19,528,281 19,892,437 18,412,808
Total liabilities afEps (19,077,624)  (16,481,931)  (13,033,779)  (13,923,236)  (12,866,069)
Net assets BEFE 8,094,892 7,562,887 6,494,502 5,969,201 5,546,739
Equity attributable to KATER
equity shareholders R E b
of the Company 7,831,747 7,413,926 6,419,868 5,943,303 5,518,228
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